Committee Agenda

Epping Forest
District Council

Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee
Monday, 13th October, 2014

You are invited to attend the next meeting of Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee,
which will be held at:

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Monday, 13th October, 2014

at 6.30 pm .
Glen Chipp
Chief Executive
Democratic Services Jackie Leither Tel: 01992 564756
Officer Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
Members:

Councillors D Stallan (Chairman), R Bassett, W Breare-Hall, Ms S Stavrou and G Waller

MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO BRING THEIR COPIES OF
THE DESIGN STANDARDS HANDED OUT AT A PREVIOUS MEETING

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda.
3. MINUTES (Pages 5 - 14)
To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Committee held on 21 August 2014.
4. TERMS OF REFERENCE (Pages 15 - 16)

To note the Terms of Reference of the Cabinet Committee, as amended by a Leaders
Decision on the 27 August 2014.

5. FEASIBILITY REPORTS (Pages 17 - 446)

(The Director of Communities) To consider the attached report (CHB-007-2014/15).



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee 13 October 2014

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require that the
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive,
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee. Two weeks’ notice of non-urgent
items is required.

7. FUTURE MEETINGS

Members of the Cabinet Committee are asked to note the dates of the next two
meetings:

Tuesday 18 November 2014; and
Thursday 18 December 2014.

8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information
Paragraph Number
Nil Nil Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24
hours prior to the meeting.

Confidential tems Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules
contained in the Constitution require:

(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the
press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest.

(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the
completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed
to exclude the public and press.

(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the
completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee 13 October 2014

report rather than decision.

Background Papers: Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the
advice of any political advisor.

Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer
responsible for the item.



This page is intentionally left blank



Commiittee:

Place:

Members

Present:

Other

Councillors:

Apologies:

Officers
Present:

Also in

attendance:

Agenda Iltem 3

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Council Housebuilding  Cabinet Date: Thursday, 21 August 2014
Committee

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Time: 6.30 - 7.54 pm
High Street, Epping

Councillors D Stallan (Chairman), W Breare-Hall, Ms S Stavrou, G Waller
and C Whitbread

Ms H Kane, Mrs J Lea, Mrs A Mitchell MBE and Ms G Shiell

Councillor R Bassett

A Hall (Director of Communities), P Pledger (Assistant Director (Housing
Property and Development)) and J Leither (Democratic Services Assistant)

| Collins (Pellings LLP) and Dan Read (East Thames Group)

1. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

The Cabinet Committee noted that Councillor C Whitbread substituted for Councillor
R Bassett.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(a) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, A Hall, Director of
Communities declared a personal interest in agenda item 5, Acceptance of Tender —
Council Housebuilding Phase 1, by virtue of being a Board Member of Riversmead
Housing Association, for whom it was understood, that one of the tenderers was
currently undertaking a building contract. The Director had determined that his
interest was not pecuniary and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of
the issue. However the Director stated that he would take no further part in the
discussion, from the time that he became aware that he had an interest.

MINUTES
Resolved:

(1) That the minutes of the last meeting held on 17 April 2014 be taken as read
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Director of Communities presented the amended Terms of Reference of the

Cabinet Committee and advised that there was an error in Paragraph 14 which could
be amended by a Leader’s Decision.

Page 5 1



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 21 August 2014

Decision:

(1 That the Leader of the Council be recommended to make a Leader’s Decision
to amend the Cabinet Committee’s Terms of Reference. Members agreed at a
meeting of the Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee on 17 April 2014 that Ward
Members would be consulted on New Development Naming, as well as local
councils. This was omitted from the subsequent Leader’s Decision and the last
amended Terms of Reference that followed on 16 May 2014.

Reasons for Decision:

To ensure all members of the Cabinet Committee are aware of the amended
Paragraph 14 of the Terms of Reference.

Other Options Considered and Rejected:
None.
5. ACCEPTANCE OF TENDER -COUNCIL HOUSEBUILDING PHASE 1

The Assistant Director (Housing Property and Development) presented a report to
the Cabinet Committee regarding the tender process for the Design and Build
Contract for Phase 1 of the Council Housebuilding Programme.

The Assistant Director advised that a tender exercise had been undertaken in
accordance with Contract Standing Orders for the Design and Build Contract for
Phase 1 of the Council Housebuilding Programme which had resulted in 4 out of 5
tenders being returned. The tenders were then evaluated by Pellings LLP, the
Employer's Agent acting on behalf of the Council's Development Agent, East
Thames. However, it was recommended by Pellings LLP that any appointment
should be subject to the Council undertaking a financial evaluation of the tenderers
that were being considered which should be carried out and reported to the Cabinet
Committee in order for a decision to be made on which tender to accept.

He advised that whilst all 12 of the Contractors on the East Thames Contractors
Framework List were contacted, only 2 expressed an interest to tender. Therefore, a
further 3 Contractors known to Pellings LLP, as having the necessary experience of
working on similar schemes of size and nature, were added as a result. All of those
invited to tender were registered on Constructionline and therefore could be invited to
tender under the Council’'s Contract Standing Orders. The Tender List was made up
of the following Contractors:

e Countryside Properties Ltd — (Original East Thames Contractors Framework
List)

Hill Partnership Ltd — (Original East Thames Contractors Framework List)
Broadway Construction Ltd — (Suggested by Pellings LLP)

Bugler Developments Ltd — (Suggested by Pellings LLP)

MK Building Contractors (UK) Ltd - (Suggested by Pellings LLP)

Tenders were issued to all 5 Contractors listed above, based on a JCT Design and
Build Contract using the designs approved by the Area Plans Sub-Committee and
the comprehensive set of Council's Employers’ Requirements. The pre-tender
estimate for the works was £3,119,000

Page 6 2



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 21 August 2014

The tenders were received on 27 June 2014 and opened by the Housing Portfolio
Holder on the same day. The tenders were registered as follows:

Tenderer Place Tender Sum

MK Building Contractors (UK) Ltd 1 £3,066,839.00
Broadway Construction Ltd 2 £3,245,143.62
Hill Partnership Ltd 3 £3,503,274.83
Bugler Developments Ltd 4 £3,744,504.97
Countryside Properties Ltd Did not Tender

Arithmetical checks were carried out by Pellings LLP on all of the tenders received,
with the two lowest tenders being analysed in detail. The tenders submitted by MK
Building Contractors (UK) Ltd and Broadway Construction Ltd as lowest and second
lowest respectively represented fully compliant bids.

Whilst a detailed tender evaluation report has been received from Pellings LLP, it
was their recommendation that any appointment was subject to financial checks by
the Council. Due to the limited time available to undertake this in advance of the
Agenda being published, it was recommended that a further evaluation into the
financial credit standing of the lowest and second lowest tenderers be carried out,
and the outcome reported to the Cabinet Committee before a decision was reached.

The Chairman proposed that the meeting then went into private session to discuss
the confidential part of this report.

6. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
Decision:
(1 That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the items of
business set out below on the grounds they would involve the likely disclosure of

exempt information as defined in the paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972:

Agenda Exempt Information
Item No Subject Paragraph Number
5 Acceptance of Tender for Council 3

Housebuilding Phase 1 (Revised)

7. ACCEPTANCE OF TENDER - COUNCIL HOUSEBUILDING PHASE 1
(CONTINUED)

The Assistant Director (Housing Property & Development) stated that this report was
to be read in conjunction with the report on the acceptance of tenders for Phase 1 of
the Council Housebuilding Programme at Agenda Item 5. This report considered the
financial credit rating of each of the two lowest tenderers and ranked them as either
high medium or low risk.

Councillor Whitbread proposed that this item should be deferred to the Cabinet
meeting on the 8 September 2014 and that a more detailed report on the financial
standing of all the tenderers be prepared and considered. Councillor Waller
seconded this proposal.

Page 7 3



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 21 August 2014

Decision:

(1) That this item be deferred and an updated report with more information on the
financial standing of all the tenderers be submitted to the Cabinet at its next meeting
on 8 September 2014.

Reasons for Decision:

The Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee had agreed to tender the works using
the East Thames Framework Agreement, based on a Design and Build Contract.
Therefore, this tender exercise satisfied that decision and had been undertaken in
line with the Council's Development Strategy and the Council’s Contract Standing
Orders. However, in view of the recommendation by Pellings LLP, although a
financial review had been undertaken of the lowest tenderers, similar information was
not available on all of the other tenderers.

Other Options Considered and Rejected:

To accept the lowest (or second lowest) tender without undertaking a financial check
on the remaining tenderers. However, this could expose the Council to the potential
risk of entering into a high profile contract with a company financially unfit to
complete the works.

8. INCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
Decision:
(1 That the public and press be invited back into the meeting.
9. NAMING OF NEW COUNCIL HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS - PHASE 1

The Director of Communities presented a report to the Cabinet Committee with
regard to the naming of new Council Housing Developments — Phase 1. He advised
that at its meeting in April 2014 the Cabinet Committee recommended to the Leader
of the Council that the Terms of Reference for the Cabinet Committee be amended to
incorporate the future naming of developments undertaken through the Council
Housebuilding Programme. Since the Phase 1 development in Waltham Abbey was
shortly due to commence on site, it was necessary to set out the approach that was
to be taken when agreeing the street and building names and addresses.

The Director advised that it was the Council’s legal responsibility, exercised through
the Director of Neighbourhoods, to ensure that all new properties were allocated an
appropriate address as it facilitated:

e Emergency Services locating properties;
Consistency of property based information across local government
databases and within the community;

¢ Reliable delivery for post and other such deliveries; and
Location of address for visitors to the area.

The Director stated that the Council had already got in place a Policy that aids
developers in suggesting street and building names, for which the Council had the
power to approve or reject under the Towns Improvement Clauses Act 1847 (S64
and S65) in conjunction with S21 of the Public Health Act Amendment Act 1907.

Page 8 4



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 21 August 2014

Taking account of the Council’'s Policy, it was recommended that the Cabinet
Committee considered and agreed the approach they wished to take in respect of
street naming for the Phase 1 development sites.

The Chairman proposed, on the initial suggestion of the Director, that the Cabinet
Committee considered the name “John Scott Court”, for the 9 new flats to be built at
Harveyfields, Waltham Abbey, in recognition of the Council’s former Chief Housing
Officer and District Health and Housing Officer, who retired in 2007 after giving 29
years’ loyal service to the Council and residents of the Epping Forest District.

Members had welcomed and supported this proposal.
Decision:

(1) That, following the consideration at its last meeting and the subsequent
Leader's Decision, the Cabinet Committee’s approach to the naming of new
developments be clarified as follows:

(a) that, subject to the Cabinet Committee already agreeing a suitable
name for new Council housing developments or names not being required
(e.g. where existing numbering can be utilised), Town and Parish Councils be
invited to submit a list of 5 street names / property names in preference order
for new Council housing developments in their locality, having regard to the
Council's Street Naming and Numbering Policy;

(b) that the relevant ward members be consulted on the list of names
submitted by Town and Parish Councils; and

(c) that the names of new streets or properties be determined by the
Cabinet Committee, having regard to the list of names put forward by the
Town and Parish Councils and the views of ward members;

(2) That the ten converted self-contained flats at Marden Close, Chigwell be
numbered 1 to 10 Marden Close, Lambourne Road, Chigwell - with odd numbers
given to ground floor flats and even numbers given to first floor flats;

(3) That, at Faversham Hall, Chigwell, the two new ground floor flats be
numbered 13-14 Faversham Close, Chigwell and the existing first floor flat be
numbered 15 Faversham Close, Chigwell;

(4) That the new Council housing development comprising 9 flats at Harveyfields,
Waltham Abbey be named “John Scott Court’, after the Council’'s former Chief
Housing Officer and District Health and Housing Officer, - who retired in 2007 after
giving 29 years’ loyal service to the Council and the tenants and other residents of
the Epping Forest District;

(5) That the four new Council houses to be provided adjacent to 12 Oakwood,
Waltham Abbey be numbered 13 - 16 Oakwood, Roundhills, Waltham Abbey and the
two new Council houses to be provided adjacent to 27 Greenleas, Waltham Abbey
be numbered 29 and 31 Greenleas, Roundhills, Waltham Abbey; and

(6) That, in accordance with (1) above, Waltham Abbey Town Council be invited
to submit a list of 5 street names / property names in preference order for Cabinet
Committee to consider at a future meeting, after consultation with ward members, for
the following new Council housing developments:

Page 9 5



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 21 August 2014

10.

(a) comprising four houses and two duplex flats at the site of the former
Red Cross Hall, Roundhills, Waltham Abbey (new street name required) ; and

(b) comprising two new houses to the rear of 66-72 Fairways (new
property hame required); and

(7) That the detailed address and numbering arrangements for all of the
developments be agreed in consultation with the Director of Neighbourhoods.

Reasons for Decision:

There was a legal requirement that all streets were named and properties numbered.
In line with the Terms of Reference of the Cabinet Committee it was required to
consider and approve the naming of each new Council Housebuilding development,
following consultation with the Parish or Town Councils and Ward Members in line
with the Council’s Policy on Street Naming and Numbering.

Other Options Considered and Rejected:

Since all new developments required an address and the Council had the legal
responsibility to ensure streets were named and properties numbered, the only other
options available were whether to name the addresses now or at a later date.

PHASE 1 AND 2 PROGRESS REPORT

The Assistant Director (Housing Property and Development) presented a progress
report to the Cabinet Committee on Phases 1 and 2 of the Council Housebuilding
Programme. He advised that in July 2013, February 2014 and April 2014, the
Cabinet Committee considered feasibility studies, investment reports and progress
reports for Marden Close and Faversham Hall conversions as well as Phases 1 and
2 of the Council’'s Housebuilding Programme. This report provided Members with an
update on both the progress to date and the budget position.

Marden Close and Faversham Hall Conversion

In July 2014 the Housing Portfolio Holder agreed the appointment of PA Finley
Limited to undertake the Design and Build Contract for the conversion of 20 bedsits
at Marden Close and the ground floor of Faversham Hall into 12 self-contained 1
bedroom flats, in the sum of £819,861 (excluding the Development Agent’s fees of
around £70,000). The contract was currently being drawn up and the Date of
Possession was estimated to be around the beginning of September 2014, after the
detailed design had been completed by the Contractor. Completion was estimated to
be 12 months later, around September 2015.

Phase 1

Earlier on the agenda the Cabinet Committee considered the tender for Phase 1 of
the Council’'s housebuilding programme. However, this was referred to the Cabinet
on 8 September 2014, once further financial checks on each of the tenderers had
been carried out.

Phase 2

Since the Cabinet Committee agreed to progress with a 56-home scheme at the
Burton Road site in Loughton as Phase 2 of the Council Housebuilding Programme,
Pellings LLP, the Architects appointed by the Council’'s Development Agent, East

Page 10 6



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 21 August 2014

1.

Thames, had undertaken consultation with the Council’s Planning Officers and
developed the designs in line with their observations around overlooking issues. This
had resulted in a slight reduction from 56 new homes to 52. The mix, subject to
planning permission will therefore be as follows:

2 x 2-bed houses

15 x 3-bed houses

13 x 1-bed flats

22 x 2-bed flats

27 off street parking spaces

The estimated cost for Phase 2 remained at around £8.9m with a £1.512m subsidy to
achieve a 30-year pay-back and a positive NPV. This excluded the sum of £18,400
agreed by the Cabinet Committee as a financial contribution to the NHS to fund
healthcare by way of a Unilateral Undertaking, subject to the money being
specifically spent on services in the Loughton area.

Recommended:

(1) That the current progress with regard to Marden Close and Faversham Hall,
as well as Phases 1 and 2 of the Council housebuilding programme be noted, and in
particular a reduced number of new affordable homes proposed at Burton Road,
Loughton as Phase 2 from 56 homes to 52;

(2) That the current budget position be noted, based on:

(a) Marden Close and Faversham Hall tender sum already agreed by the
Housing Portfolio Holder in the sum of £890,000 (Works and Fees) for
12 new self-contained flats;

(b) Phase 1 tender to be considered by the Cabinet taking account of
further financial checks on each of the tenderers for 23 homes at
Roundhills and Harveyfields, Waltham Abbey; and

(c) Phase 2 feasibility estimate of £8.9m (Works and fees) for 52 new
homes at Burton Road, Loughton.

(3) That the Programme timetable at Appendix 1 of the report to the Cabinet
Committee be noted.

Reasons for Decision:

It was a requirement that the Housebuilding Cabinet Committee received regular
updates on progress and monitors expenditure against the Housebuilding budget as
delegated by the Cabinet.

Other Options Considered and Rejected:
None, this report was for noting only.
OUTCOME OF HCA AFFORDABLE HOUSING GRANT APPLICATION

The Assistant Director (Housing Property and Development) presented a report to
the Cabinet Committee regarding the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) bid.
The Assistant Director advised that following the launch of the 2015-18 Affordable
Homes Programme Bid Prospectus by the HCA, the Council Housebuilding Cabinet
Committee agreed at its last meeting in April 2014 that East Thames submit a bid on
behalf of the Council for a total of £500,000 to subsidise the development costs of 40

Page 11 7



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 21 August 2014

12.

13.

new affordable homes, making up Phase 2 of the Council Housebuilding Programme.
It was recently announced that this bid was successful, subject to the Council being
able to achieve Investment Partner Status with the HCA and the Council being able
to deliver the new affordable homes within the timescale of the Bid Programme 2015-
18.

Resolved:

@) That it be noted, the Council’s bid to the Homes and Communities Agency
(HCA) for £500,000 Affordable Housing Grant to subsidise the development of 40
new affordable homes as part of Phase 2 of the Council’s Housebuilding Programme,
made up of £12,500 per property, has been approved by the HCA.

(2) That it also be noted that the grant was conditional on the Council being able
to achieve Investment Partner Status with the HCA and the Council being able to
deliver the new affordable homes within the timescale of the Bid Programme 2015-
18.

Reason for Decision:

This report is for noting only. No decision was required.

Other Options Considered and Rejected:

None, this report was for noting only.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY - YEAR 2 UPDATE

The Assistant Director (Housing Property & Development) advised the Cabinet

Committee that this item had been withdrawn from the Agenda and would be
reported to a future meeting.

RISK REGISTER UPDATE

The Assistant Director (Housing Property and Development) presented a report to
the Cabinet Committee regarding the Risk Register which had been reviewed and
updated by Pellings LLP.

The Chairman advised that the Risk Management Schedule print was too small and
ineligible and asked Officers if this could be enlarged for future reports.

Resolved:

(1) That the Programme-wide Risk Register for the Council Housebuilding
Programme be noted; and

(2) That the Risk Management Schedule print be enlarged for future reports.
Reason for decision:
The Council's Housebuilding Programme was a major undertaking, involving

significant amounts of money and risks. It was essential that the Officer Project Team
and the Cabinet Committee record, monitor and mitigate those risks.

Page 12 8



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 21 August 2014

14.

Other Options Considered and Rejected:

(a) Not to have a Risk Register — but it would not be appropriate to contemplate
such an option; and

(b) To request amendments to the format or content of the Programme-wide Risk
Register.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

The Cabinet Committee noted that there was no other urgent business for
consideration.

CHAIRMAN

Page 13 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Agenda Item 4

Council House Building Cabinet Committee

TERMS OF REFERENCE AND MEMBERSHIP

Terms of Reference

1.

To consider and recommend to the Cabinet the Development Strategy for the Council’s House
Building Programme on an annual basis.

To consider and sign-off development appraisals and financial appraisals produced by the
Council’s appointed Development Agent for sites previously identified by the Cabinet as having
development potential and that could be included within the Council’s House Building Programme.

To approve the submission of detailed planning applications, and/or if more appropriate outline
planning applications, by the Council’s appointed Development Agent for sites that the Cabinet
Committee considers are suitable for development and viable, having regard to the development
appraisals and financial appraisals for the sites.

To invite ward members to attend meetings of the Cabinet Committee when potential development
sites in their ward are under consideration, and to provide an opportunity for ward members to
provide comments on proposed developments, before development appraisals and financial
appraisals are signed-off and approvals to submit planning applications are given.

To approve the subsequent development of sites considered suitable for development and viable
that receive planning permission, subject to the acceptance of a satisfactory tender for the
construction works.

To approve, and include within financial appraisals, the use of the following sources of funding for
the development of individual sites within the Council’s House Building Programme:

(a) The agreed Housing Capital Programme Budget for the House Building Programme;

(b) Capital receipts made available through the Council’'s Agreement with the Department of
Communities and Local Government allowing the use of receipts from additional Right to Buy
(RTB) sales as a result of the Government’s increase in the maximum RTB Discount to be
spent on House Building;

(c¢) Financial contributions received from developers for the provision of affordable housing within
the District, in lieu of on-site affordable housing provision, in compliance with Section 106
Planning Agreements; and

(d) Grant funding received from the Homes and Communities Agency.

To approve the submission of the Council’'s Pre-Qualification Questionnaire to the Homes and
Communities Agency (HCA), applying for Investment Partner status with the HCA.

To consider and accept tenders received for the construction works on sites included within the
Council House Building Programme.

To determine whether, in addition to the potential development sites already considered by the
Cabinet, sites with development potential within the following categories should be added to either
the House Building Programme’s Primary List or Reserve List and detailed development appraisals
and financial appraisals undertaken by the Council’'s Development Agent:

(a) Other specific garage sites comprising 6 or less garages;

(b) Specific garage sites where garage vacancies arise with no waiting list of applicants; and
(c) Specific areas of Council-owned land on housing sites considered to be surplus to

requirements.
Page 15



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

To determine whether sites on the Reserve List of potential development sites previously agreed
by the Cabinet should be promoted to the Primary List, and detailed development appraisals and
financial appraisals undertaken by the Council’'s Development Agent, due to:

(a) There being insufficient numbers of properties that can be viably developed from the Primary
List of potential development sites to deliver a House Building Programme of 120 new homes
over a six-year period; and/or

(b) The Cabinet subsequently deciding to increase the size of the House Building Programme and
there being insufficient numbers of properties that can be viably developed to deliver a larger
Programme.

To monitor and report to the Cabinet on an annual basis:
(a) Progress with the Council House Building Programme; and

(b) Expenditure on the Housing Capital Programme Budget for the Council House Building
Programme, ensuring the use (within the required deadlines) of the capital receipts made
available through the Council’'s Agreement with the Department of Communities and Local
Government allowing the use of receipts from additional Right to Buy (RTB) sales as a result
of the Government’s increase in the maximum RTB Discount to be spent on house building.

To approve applications to the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) (or any successor body) to
obtain HCA Investment Partner Status (or similar), in order to enable the Council to seek funding
from the HCA, and to approve funding bids to the HCA for developments within the Council House
Building Programme (added by Leader Decision — 21.3.14).

To consider and approve the future use of any potential development site previously identified by
either the Cabinet or Cabinet Committee as having possible development potential for Council
House Building where it either does not gain planning consent, is deemed inappropriate to develop
undevelopable by the Cabinet Committee for whatever other reason or where the development
appraisal identifies that the site is economically undevelopable. (Added by Leader Decision —
16.5.14)

To decide, where necessary, the names of developments undertaken through the Council House
Building Programme, following consultation with the Parish or Town Councils and Ward Members.
(Added by Leader Decision — 27.8.14)

Membership

Housing Portfolio Holder (Chairman)

Finance and Technology Portfolio Holder
Planning Portfolio Holder

Environment Portfolio Holder

Safer, Greener and Highways Portfolio Holder

Frequency of Meetings

As and when required, as determined by the Housing Portfolio Holder.

Page 16



Agenda Iltem 5

Report to the Council Housebuilding
Cabinet Committee

Report reference: CHB-007-2014/15  Epping Forest
Date of meeting: 13 October 2014  District Council
Portfolio: Housing

Subject: Feasibility Reports — Council Housebuilding Programme
Responsible Officer: Paul Pledger (01992 564248)

Assistant Director of Housing (Property)

Democratic Services: Jackie Leither (01992 564756)

Recommendations:

(1) That the Cabinet Committee considers the viability of each of the 14 (fourteen)
individual feasibility studies taken from the Cabinet approved list of Primary Sites, as
listed below, for consideration for inclusion in a future phase of the Council
Housebuilding Programme;

Kirby Close Loughton - Garages 1-4
Whitehills Road, Loughton - Garages 354-380
Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill (Site A) - Garages 1-24
Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill (Site B) - Garages 25-38
Hornbeam House Buckhurst Hill - Garages 1-22
Bourne House, Buckhurst Hill - Garages 12-36
Pentlow Way Buckhurst Hill - Garages 1-19
Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill - Garages 1-24
Lower Alderton Hall, Loughton - Garages 440-445
Bushfields, Loughton - Garages 51-70
Chequers Road, Loughton (Site A) - Garages 146 - 171
Chequers Road Loughton (Site B) - Garages 231-258

. Marlescroft Way, Loughton - Garages 581-591
Ladyfields, Loughton - Garages 332-353

S3TFTTS@meoo Ty

(2) That for any sites not considered viable for Council house-building, alternative
uses be agreed based on the following options:

a. To sell the site for social housing to a Housing Association in return for a
capital receipt to fund future Council house-building and to gain nomination
rights for Council housing applicants;

b. To sell the site for private development, either for residential or other use in
return for a capital receipt to fund future Council house-building;

c. To divide up the site and sell the land to local residents to extend their private
gardens in return for a capital receipt to fund future Council house-building;

d. To demolish the garages, re-surface and mark out the land and to leave the site
as open car parking for local residents;

e. To sell the site to a Town or Parish Council for their own purposes (eg. public
amenity space) in return for a capital receipt to fund future Council house-
building; or

f. To continue to market and rent the garages to local residents.

Page 17



Executive Summary:

Each of the 14 sites included with this report are presented as individual feasibility studies,
which identify the number of units and the mix that achievable for each site, along with the total
scheme cost and the subsidy required to deliver the affordable housing on each site. At this
stage, Members are to consider the merits of each site and agree which are to progress for
inclusion in a future phase of the Council House-building Programme in line with the Policy on
Prioritisation of Sites.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

At its meeting in August 2014, the Cabinet Committee asked that each of the sites on the
Primary List of approved sites be progressed to feasibility stage to create a bank of sites for
future phases of the House-building Programme. The 14 (fourteen) sites included in this report
are the first of 22 sites that were completed in Loughton and Buckhurst Hill along with the Burton
Road site back in November 2013, albeit not reported at that time. Each site is presented on its
own merits at this stage. However, when all 22 sites have been considered by the time of the
next meeting in November 2014, the Cabinet Committee will then be asked to batch the sites in
line with the Policy on Prioritisation of Sites.

Other Options for Action:
1. Not to progress with any of the schemes presented in this report.
2. To develop the sites with a different number of homes, or with an alternative mix of

property types or parking allocation.
Background:

1. At its meeting in July 2012 the Cabinet agreed a list of 65 Primary sites for Council
house-building and also that the Council's Development Agent (once appointed)
prepares feasibility studies on all of those sites.

2. Furthermore, at its meeting in April 2014, the Cabinet Committee agreed to accelerate
the House-building Programme by increasing the number of homes per year from 20 to
30 over a 10-year programme as opposed to a 6-year programme that was previously
the target. This has resulted in the need to bring forward the feasibility studies for each of
the sites at the request of the Cabinet Committee.

3. Attached to this report are 14 individual feasibility studies in Loughton and Buckhurst Hill.
Each feasibility study considers the number and mix of units capable of being delivered
on each site. It also estimates the total scheme cost for each site along with an estimate
of how much subsidy will be required. A summary table, bringing together all of the key
information from the feasibility reports can be found at appendix 1.

4. The Cabinet Committee are at this stage only expected to make a decision around which
sites are considered viable and suitable for development. The decision as to which sites
will be packaged to form a future phase will be taken in November 2014, when the
remainder of the 8 sites in Loughton and Buckhurst Hill are to be considered by the
Cabinet Committee. The ultimate decision on phasing of areas will be undertaken in
accordance with the Policy on Prioritisation of sites agreed by the Cabinet Committee as
follows:

a. That locations be grouped together into the following two Groups and the Priority

Page 18



Orders shown:
Group A (Locations with sites that could potentially deliver 10 or more homes):

Priority Location

Loughton
Waltham Abbey
Epping
Buckhurst Hill
Ongar

North Weald

OO WN -

Group B (Locations with sites that could potentially deliver less than 10 homes):

Priority Location

Theydon Bois
Nazeing

Roydon

Coopersale

High Ongar
Matching Green/Tye

OO WN-=-

That development packages/phases be formulated each year, on a rotational
basis - in the Priority Order shown in Group A above - until the capacity for the
potential number of homes in a location reduces to less than 10, at which point
the location be moved into Group B.

For those sites that are, for whatever reason, not considered to be viable or unsuitable
for redevelopment as part of the Council’s House-building Programme, then the Cabinet
Committee is to consider what future use should be investigated based on the following
options:

a.

f.

To sell the site for social housing to a Housing Association in return for a capital
receipt to fund future Council house-building and to gain nomination rights for
Council housing applicants;

To sell the site for private development, either for residential or other use in return
for a capital receipt to fund future Council house-building;

To divide up the site and sell the land to local residents to extend their private
gardens in return for a capital receipt to fund future Council house-building;

To demolish the garages, re-surface and mark out the land and to leave the site
as open car parking for local residents;

To sell the site to a Town or Parish Council for their own purposes (eg. public
amenity space) in return for a capital receipt to fund future Council house-
building; or

To continue to market and rent the garages to local residents

It is important to point out that whilst each of these feasibility reports are for sites that are
all based in Loughton and Buckhurst Hill, this is due to the fact these sites had already
been prepared in November 2013, prior to the decision being reached on Burton Road
forming Phase 2 of the Council’'s House-building Programme. As a result, these sites
were “parked” at that time ready to bring forward at some time in the future as part of a
rolling programme of feasibility studies.

Page 19



7. Feasibility studies for sites in Epping, Parklands and North Weald will follow at a meeting
scheduled for December 2014, with other sites in other parts of the District coming
forward in the New Year.

Resource Implications:

£8.64m inclusive of works and fees. However, the actual costs and the year in which it will be
expended will be determined at a future date.

Legal and Governance Implications:

Within its Terms of Reference, the House-Building Cabinet Committee is expected to consider
each site and package of works and either approve it to progress to detailed planning stage or
agree an alternative use.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

The sites being considered are currently used as garage blocks, rented to garage tenants. A
large proportion of the site contains a former Council depot and garages which are either vacant
or not used to park vehicles (Source: ECC Parking Standards) Redeveloping these garages
and/or amenity land will add value to and enhance the local environment and streetscape.

Consultation Undertaken:
None.
Background Papers:

Development Strategy, along with the following Policies:

Affordable Rents Policy;

Funding the House-building Programme;

Accelerating the House-building Programme;

Future use of garage sites unsuitable for redevelopment; and
Prioritisation of sites

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

Within the financial viability assessment, the greatest risks are that the assumptions prove to be
incorrect resulting in each site being un-viable.

These risks are mitigated by the Council being able to either add more subsidy or not to
progress the works beyond the planning stage.

In addition, a site specific risk register has been compiled and included within the individual
feasibility reports.

Page 20



Equality and Diversity

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for No
relevance to the Council’'s general equality duties, reveal any potentially

adverse equality implications?

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment N/A
process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?

It should be noted that an Equality Impact Assessment has already been formulated for
Housing Strategy and Development.

How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been
addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group?

N/A

Page 21



Due Regard Record

This page shows which groups of people are affected by the subject of this report. It
sets out how they are affected and how any unlawful discrimination they experience
can be eliminated. It also includes information about how access to the service(s)
subject to this report can be improved for the different groups of people; and how they can
be assisted to understand each other better as a result of the subject of this report.

S149 Equality Act 2010 requires that due regard must be paid to this information when
considering the subject of this report.

Within the Housing Service Strategy, it has been identified that the target groups that are
affected by the Council’s house building programme are people in need of:
- Affordable Housing,
- Homelessness assistance,
Supported housing for special needs groups,
- Owners and occupiers of poor condition housing
Council and housing association tenants.

From that, it was identified that generally, there is an under provision of suitable
accommodation for nearly all target groups. This has been reaffirmed in the most recent
Strategic Housing Market Assessment.

Decision making is affected by funding and other factors, such as the availability of
building land suitable for particular groups e.g. the elderly or young families.

There is no evidence of unlawful discrimination in relation to the provision of affordable
housing.

Page 22



Appendix 1

House Building Programme - Proval Financial Modelling November 2013
. Total . . .

Sites Ward unit mix unit works | Scheme Costs SUbs.'dy SUbs'd.y Perl rsc per unit NPV IRF n

number (TSC) required unit %
Kirby Close Loughton - Garages 1-4 Loughton Roding 4 x2b4p 4 £ 659,700 | £ 760,139 | £ 160,000 | £ 40,000 | £ 190,035 [ £ 241,256 5.33
Whitehills Road, Loughton - Garages 354-380 Loughton St Mary's | 3 x 3b5p 3 £ 612,000 | £ 703,375 | £ 204000 | £ 68,000 £ 234458 £ 202411 5.34
Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill (Site A) - Garages 1-24 Buckhurst Hill East | 3 x 3b5p 3 £ 543,120 | £ 626,656 | £ 126,000 | £ 42,000 | £ 208,885 | £ 201,130 5.33
Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill (Site B) - Garages 25-38 |Buckhurst Hill East | 3 x 3b5p 3 £ 575100 | £ 662,281 | £ 162,000 | £ 54,000 | £ 220,760 | £ 201,505 5.33
Hornbeam House Buckhurst Hill - Garages 1-22 Buckhurst Hill East | 2 x 3b5p 2 £ 427500 | £ 491,835 | £ 158,000 | £ 79,000 | £ 245918 | £ 134,022 5.33
Bourne House, Buckhurst Hill - Garages 12-36 Buckhurst Hill East | 2 x 3b5p 2 £ 427,500 | £ 491,018 | £ 164,000 | £ 82,000 | £ 245509 | £ 134,839 5.34
Pentlow Way Buckhurst Hill - Garages 1-19 Buckhurst Hill East | 4 x1b2p 4 £ 525900 | £ 602,226 | £ 248,000 [ £ 62,000 | £ 150,557 | £ 137,377 5.32
Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill - Garages 1-24 Buckhurst Hill East | 4 x 3b5p 4 £ 831,900 | £ 654,427 | £ 288,000 £ 72,000 | £ 163,607 | £ 269,287 5.34
Lower Alderton Hall, Loughton - Garages 440-445 Loughton Alderton 2 x2bdp 2 £ 367,500 | £ 423742 | £ 124000 | £ 62000 | £ 211,871 [ £ 120,955 5.34
Bushfields, Loughton - Garages 51-70 Loughton Alderton 2 x2b4p 2 £ 402,900 | £ 463,120 | £ 163,000 | £ 81,500 | £ 231,560 | £ 120,487 5.33
Ghequers Road, Loughton (Site A) - Garages 146 - 171 Loughton Alderton 3 x 3b5p 3 £ 599,700 | £ 689,713 | £ 189,000 | £ 63,000 | £ 229904 | £ 201,073 5.33
@hequers Road Loughton (Site B) - Garages 231-258 Loughton Alderton 2 x2b4p 2 £ 402,900 | £ 463,120 | £ 163,000 | £ 81,500 | £ 231,560 | £ 120,487 5.33
(Rrlescroft Way, Loughton - Garages 581-591 Loughton Alderton 2 x2bdp 2 £ 318,300 | £ 369,102 | £ 64,000 [ £ 32,000 | £ 184,551 | £ 124,231 5.34
(Bdyfields, Loughton - Garages 332-353 Loughton Alderton 7 x 2b4p 7 £1,076400 [ £ 1239919 | £ 210,000| £ 30,000 £ 177,131 | £ 417,493 5.35
'loﬂt;tals 36 £6,498,720 | £ 7,177,159 | £ 2,059,000 | £ 741,000 | £ 2,501,813 [ £ 2,182,886
Notes:

Rents = 1bed £119.59, 2 bed £165.58, 3 bed £180
Financial target = loan payback in year 30




This page is intentionally left blank



Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report
Site: 1-4 (Garages) Kirby Close, Loughton 1G10 3BA

Rev: A

Ref:  1JC/srs/612.023
Date: September 2014

Page 25



Pellings

Contents

1. Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
2. Existing Site and Surroundings

3. Proposals

4. Planning Issues and Risks

5.
6
7
8
9

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

. Site Access and Buildability Issues

. Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
. Proposed Procurement Route

. Impact on Parking

10.Legals
11.Costs
12.Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices

A: Development Proposals — Drawings 612.023.P2-7B
Site Photographs

Existing Site Plan 201206014-AJ

Statutory Services Information

Information on Possible Contamination

Cost Build-up

nmoow

Page 26



1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

3.0

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

612023

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District
Council for a six year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having
possible development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP have been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites and
which will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located in a residential area midway between Buckhurst Hill and
Loughton stations.

The site consists of 4 garages and hardstanding and it is accessed by way of a
4m wide vehicular access on Pentlow Way. The site adjoins residential plots on
three sides (semi-detached houses with gardens are situated to the north, south
and west). To the east the site is adjoined by a steep grass bank at the bottom of
which is a roadway and the other side of this are three storey flats. The area in
general is residential with two storey houses and three storey flats of various
styles.

There are points of vehicular access into the site from the rear of adjoining
properties.

Proposals
Read in conjunction with drawings 612.023.P2-7B attached at Appendix A.
The proposals are :

Erection of a 4 x two storey 2 bedroom houses each with rear gardens
Provision of 12 parking spaces and access/landscaping

Our proposals maintain the vehicular access as referenced in 2.3 above.
Planning Issues and Risks
Relevant Planning Policies/Considerations

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest District Council is the
Combined Local Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area and it is not designated for any
particular purposes in the Epping Forest District Council Combined Local Plan
1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006. The site does not lie in a Flood Zone on
the Environment Agency Flood Map.

Page 27

1-4 (Garages) Kirby Close REV A 1



4.3.

4.4.

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.8.

5.4.

612023

There are no specific policies which prevent the loss of existing garages although
policy ST4 (Road Safety) states that planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion or harm
to the character or appearance of the area. Parking spaces to meet with the
Council’'s standards are proposed for the new dwellings.

It will be necessary to undertake a Parking Survey and to prepare a Transport
Statement to demonstrate that the loss of the garages and proposed development
would not cause any parking shortfalls or harm to highway conditions or the
amenities of the area.

The site is located in the settlement of Loughton and the proposal would be
consistent with policy CP7 which encourages the efficient use of existing built-up
areas by the ‘recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-used land to
accommodate the development’ and the ‘re-use of urban sites, which are no
longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in the foreseeable future, for
alternative land uses'.

The proposal would comply with policy H4A which states the need for a range of
dwellings, including an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet
identified housing need on a site-by-site basis.

The development of small family homes with rear gardens and private and
communal parking would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the
area and may comply with Epping Forest’s design policies and guidance.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Southern Gas

Cable and Wireless

Virgin Media

Thames Water

BT

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy
Environment Agency

UK Power Networks

Responses received to date are from the Environment Agency, National Grid, UK
Power Networks, Virgin Media and Thames Water.

The Environment Agency has not pointed out any watercourses which cross the
site.

National Grid: No apparatus appears to be located on the site.
UK Power Networks: No apparatus appears to be located on the site.
Virgin Media: No apparatus appears to cross the site

Thames Water: Plans indicate that a foul sewer crosses the site , close to its
entrance

Page 28

1-4 (Garages) Kirby Close REV A 2



5.5.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

612023

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be
any particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic
associated with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area and, accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and
within normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues
have been highlighted with use of the domestic garages, and also a former
horticultural nursery. Possible contaminants in respect of the former use as a
nursery are summarised and indicated within the note produced by EFDC
Planning and Economic Development Directorate at Appendix E.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may
include asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and
the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal
with any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

The site is accessed by way of a narrow driveway and as at present, our
proposals do not include a turning head for refuse or emergency vehicles.
Accordingly, subject to detailed design, an independent refuse storage area may
be required along with sprinkler provision to the new houses for fire protection.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P2-7B, Party Wall matters may be relevant
to development, particularly adjacent to 20 Kirby Close.

Confirmation of ownership will be required in due course.

Such Party Wall matters may be undertaken ahead of the build contract by direct
appointment by EFDC, or included as a requirement for the contractor to deal with
within the build contract. This later approach, however, would carry increased risk
to programme and cost.

Existing vehicular access is retained as indicated above.

Page 29

1-4 (Garages) Kirby Close REV A 3



8.0

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

612023

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East
Thames Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage D planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be
subsequently confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East
Thames Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement
documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual
contract packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory
services, highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure
size of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East
Thames Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’'s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide —
September 2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as
statutory planning guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest
whole number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards
for new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking
surveys, to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any
planning or highway problems.

Page 30

1-4 (Garages) Kirby Close REV A 4



10.0

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

11.0

11.1.

12.0

12.1.

612023

Legals

We have been provided with a Summary Report of legal matters from EFDC
Solicitors. The report makes reference to the suggested appropriation of land for
planning purposes which would extinguish any prior rights of way.

The report makes reference to possible rights of light risk. A blanket policy
against such risk might be considered.

Various vehicular access into adjacent properties but these are unaffected by
proposals.

Costs

It is considered that a budget of £659.700.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

Recommendations and Conclusions

Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for
taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Pellings LLP

Page 31

1-4 (Garages) Kirby Close REV A 5



Appendix A

Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023.P2-7B

Page 32



retained?

vehicle/ turning

TQTALS

ité Area 0.053 Ha
4/x 2 Bed Houses @ 77 sqm
2 Parking Spaces

Vehicular gccess
etained?,

NOTES

P R E L I M I N RY Rev Date Description Name Pellings LLP Architecture & Planning m Building Surveying m Project Management m
A 24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY Cost Consultancy m CDM Co-ordination
Report all discrepancies, errors and omissions £020 8460 9114 020 83130019 e bromley@pellings.co.uk

Do not scale from fhis drawing - el . www.pellings.co.uk

Verify all dimensions on site before commencing any work or ’ s

preparing sfop drawings = “" East Thames HA 5T EFDC House Building Programme
All materials, components and workmanship are to comply with

all the relevant British Standards, Cedes of Practice, and Pel I I n s TITLE L DATE SCALE DRAWN
appropriate manufacturers recommendations that fram time to EX|St|ng and Proposed Plans NOV 2013 1:500 @A3 NP

fime shall apply Kirby Close DRAWING No

For all specialist work, see relevant drawings 6 1 2 ‘ 023 ‘ P2 7 ‘ B
|

This drawing and design are co ht of PELLINGS LLP
Is drawing sign ar pyrig

CHK




Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 34



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 38



#g= Epping Forest
%, District Council

L3
L7

s

% A “‘q’
Se
*s
? &
$
Rad
>
24.4m
3
4 T
R
&
EN
&
~
&
24Tm
>
&
g
£
@
] 236m
5 (]
re
5 Coust

Green Wak
2
Co
33
: e
r
N Contains Ordnance Survey & Royal Mail Data
< © Crown Copyright & Database Right 2011
R NG A ] EFOC License No: 100018534 2011
Directorate of Environment & Street Scene Project Content Date
Civic Offices Potential Site for Coundil House | Kirby Close 04/07/12
o St Building Program Loughton Scale
CcM18 4.52 ’ Drawmg No 1:1250 @ A4
Tet 01992 564000 . Drawn By
201206014 - AJ Robert Irwin

Page 39




Appendix D

Statutory Services Information

Page 40



Plant Protection
. 4 National Grid
t Onal B’Ed Block 1 Floor 1
n a ] Brick Kiln Street
Hinclde:
LE10 ONA ) . )
E-mail: plantprotection@nationalgrid.com
Telephone: +44 (0)800 688588

Adam Greenhalgh

Pellings National Grid Electricity Emergency Number:
24 Widmore Road 0800 40 40 90*

Bromley National Gas Emergency Number:

Kent 0800 111 889*

BR1 1 RY * Available 24 hours, 7 days’week.

Calls may be recorded and monitored.

www.nationalgrid.com

Date: 24/10/2013
Our Ref: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_042163
Your Ref: KIRBY CLOSE

RE: Proposed Works, IG10 3BAkirby close,loughton,essex
Thank you for your enquiry which was received on 17/10/2013.
Please note this response and any attached map(s) are valid for 28 days.

An assessment has been carried out with respect to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc's and National
Grid Gas pic's apparatus. Please note it does not cover the items listed in the section "Your Responsibilities
and Obligations”, including gas service pipes and related apparatus.

For details of National Grid's network areas please see the National Grid website
(http://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/) or the enclosed documentation.

As your works are at a "proposed” stage, any maps and guidance provided are for information
purposes only. This is not approval to commence work. You must submit a "Scheduled Works"
enquiry at the earliest opportunity and failure to do this may lead to disruption to your plans and
works. National Grid will endeavour to provide an initial assessment within 14 days of receipt of a

Scheduled Works enquiry and dependent on the outcome of this, further consultation may be
required.

In any event, for safety and legal reasons, works must not be carried out until a Scheduled
Works enquiry has been completed and final response received.

Naticnal Grid is a trading name for: National Grid is a frading name for:
National Grid Electricity Transmissicn plc National Grid Gas plc
Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N SEH Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, Lendon WC2N 5EH

Registered in England and Wales, No 2366977 P agﬁégis&rr in England and Wales, No 2006000



Your Responsibilities and Obligations

The "Assessment" Section below outlines the detailed requirements that must be followed when planning or
undertaking your scheduled activities at this location.

It is your responsibility to ensure that the information you have submitted is accurate and that all relevant
documents including links are provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you near
National Grid's apparatus, e.g. as contained within the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations.

This assessment solely relates to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc (NGET) and National Grid Gas plc
(NGG) apparatus. This assessment does NOT include:

e National Grid's legal inter est (easements or wayleaves) in the land which restricts activity in proximity
to National Grid's assets in private land. You must obtain details of any such restrictions from the
landowner in the first instance and if in doubt contact National Grid.

e Gas service pipes and related apparatus

Recently installed apparatus

e Apparatus owned by other organisations, e.g. other gas distri bution operators, local electricity
companies, other utilities, etc.

It is YOUR responsibility to take into account whether the items listed above may be present and if they could
be affected by your proposed activities. Further "Essential Guidance" in respect of these items can be found
on the National Grid Website (http;//www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance. pdf).

This communication does not constitute any formal agreement or consent for any proposed development work;
either generally or with regard to National Grid's easements or wayleaves nor any planning or building
regulations applications.

NGG and NGET or their agents, servants or contractors do not accept any liability for any losses arising under
or in connection with this information. This limit on liability applies to all and any claims in contract, tort (including
negligence), misrepresentation (excluding fraudulent misrepresentation), breach of statutory duty or
otherwise. This limit on liability does not exclude or restrict liability where prohibited by the law nor does it
supersede the expres s terms of any related agreements.

If you require further assistance please contact the National Grid Plant Protection team via e-mail (click here) or
via the contact details at the top of this response.

Yours faithfully

National Grid Plant Protection Team

Page 42 Page 2 of 6



ASSESSMENT

Affected Apparatus
The National Grid apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity of your proposed works is:

e High or Intermediate pressure (above 2 bar) Gas Pipelines and associated equipment
e Low or Medium pressure (below 2 bar) gas pipes and associated equipm ent. (As a result it is highly
likely that there are gas services and associated apparatus in the vicinity)

Requirements
BEFORE carrying out any work you must:

e Carefully read these requirements including the attached guidance documents and maps showing the
location of National Grid apparatus.

o Contact the landowner and ensure any proposed works in private land do not infringe National Grid's
legal rights (i.e. easements or wayleaves). If the works are in the road or footpath the relevant local
authority should be contacted.

e Ensure that all persons, including direct labour and contractors, working for you on or near National
Grid's apparatus follow the requirements of the HSE Guidance Notes HSG47 - "Avoiding Danger from
Underground Services' and GS6 - 'Avoidance of danger from overhead electric power lines'. This
guidance can be downloaded free of charge at hitp://www.hse.qov.uk

e In line with the above guidance, verify and establish the actual position of mains, pipes, cables,
services and other apparatus on site before any activities are undertaken.

Page 43 Page 3 of 6



GUIDANCE

High Pressure Gas Pipelines Guidance:

If working in the vicinity of a high pressure gas pipeline the following document must be followed:
‘Specification for Safe Working in the Vicinity of National Grid High Pressure Gas Pipelines and Associated
Installations - Requirements for Third Parties' (SSW22). This can be obtained from:
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/S0ACACOA-ED26-41A7-91FA-
83163A98270F/23790/TSPSSW22 J537 Rev0807.pdf

Excavating Safely - Avoiding injury when working near gas pipes:
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/2D2EEA97-B213-459C-9A26-
18361C6EQBOD/25249/Digsafe leaflet3e2finalamends061207.pdf

Standard Guidance

Essential Guidance document:

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance. pdf

General Guidance document:
hitp://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/55C13C4D-A1AA-4813-BFDA-

1CF59F88B326/51318/GeneralGuidance.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of gas pipes guidance (Credit card):
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/A3D37677-6641-476C-9DDA-

E89949052829/44257/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCard.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of electricity cables guidance (Credit card):
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/35DDECED-D754-4BA5-AF3C-
D607D05A25C2/44858/ExcavatinaSafelyCreditCardelectricitycables. pdf

Copies of all the Guidance Documents can also be downloaded from the National Grid Website:
hitp://www.nationalgrid. com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/downloads/

Page 44 Page 4 of 6



ENQUIRY SUMMARY

Received Date
17/10/2013

Your Reference
KIRBY CLOSE

Location

Centre Point: 542217, 194829

X Extent: 58

Y Extent: 49

Postcode: IG10 3BA

Location Description: IG10 3BA kirby close,loughton,essex

Map Options

Paper Size: A4

Orientation: LANDSCAPE

Requested Scale: 500

Actual Scale: 1:5000 (GAS)

Real World Extents: 1445m x 785m (GAS)

Recipients
pprsteam@uk.ngrid.com

Enquirer Details
Organisation Name: Pellings

Contact Name: Adam Greenhalgh

Email Address: bromley@pellings.co.uk

Telephone: 0208 460 9114

Address: 24 Widmore Road, Bromley, Kent, BR1 1RY

Description of Works
MAP FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES

Enquiry Type
Proposed Works

Activity Type
General Excavation

Work Types
Work Type: Plans Only

Page 45

Page 6 of 6



ot abed

ID: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_042163}View extent: 1445m, 785m

Map not to be used for construction

Map 1 of 1 (GAS)

USER: roy.x.jones LP MAINS
MP MAINS
DATE: 24/10/2013 B

DATA DATE: 15/10/2013 [LHP MAINS

REF: KIRBY CLOSE

MAP REF: TQ4294
CENTRE: 542217, 194829

NHP MAINS

Om 100m
Approximate scale 1:5000
on A4 Colour Landscape

This plan shows those pipes owned by National Grid Gas plc in its role as a Licensed Gas Transporter (GT).

Gas pipes owned by other GTs, or otherwise privately owned, may be present in this area. Information

with regard to such pipes should be obtained from the relevant owners. The information shown on this plan is

given without warranty, the accuracy thereof cannot be guaranteed. Service pipes, valves, syphons, stub connections,
etc., are not shown but their presence should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by
National Grid Gas plc or their agents, servants or contractors for any error or omission. Safe digging

practices, in accordance with HS(G)47, must be used to verify and establish the actual position of mains,

pipes, services and other apparatus on site before any mechanical plant is used. It is your responsibility to ensure

that this information is provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you on or near gas
|apparatus. The information included on this plan should not be referred to beyond a period of 28 days from the date

MAPS Plot Server Version 1.7.6

nationalgrid

Requested by: Pellings

This plan is reproduced from or based on the
OS map by National Grid Gas plc, with the sanction

of issue. of the controller of HM Stationery Office.
| >< I Depth of Diameter Material 1 Crown Copyright Reserved. Ordnance Survey
i Cover \/ sypten O Change Change ) ) Licence number 100024866




*

Adam Greenhalgh

SPHatfield <SPHatfield@environment-agency.gov.uk>

From:

Sent: 23 October 2013 17:49

To: Adam Greenhalgh

Subject: RE: Epping Forest DC - potential development sites
Dear Adam,

Further to your letters dated 16 October (your ref: AG/dh/612.023/05), we have the following comments to
make on the specific sites listed below (please note that comments on three sites — Rear of shops,
Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill;, Pentlow Way, Buckhurst Hill and Site B, Marlescroft Way, Loughton — will
follow on or before 7 November due to additional site constraints).

Sites: Burton Road, Debden

White Hills, Loughton

Thatchers Close, Loughton

Site A, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles’) Lane, Loughton
Site B, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles’) Lane, Loughton
Site A, Chequers Road, Loughton

Site B, Chequers Road, Loughton

Site A, Langley Meadow, Loughton

Site B, Langley Meadow, Loughton

Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill

Hornbeam House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Bourne House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Bushfields, Loughton

Etheridge Road, Loughton

Lower Alderton Hall Lane, Loughton

Ladyfields, Loughton

Kirby Close, Loughton

Chester Road, Loughton

Hillyfields, Loughton

Comments

~A\S we are in an area of serious water stress, we endorse the efficient use of water resources. Residential
(@\Jevelopments such as your proposal should take advantage of water efficient technologies. This is in line
with Epping Forest's local policy CP5 which states that the efficient use of water is encouraged through
water efficient appliances and rainwater harvesting for example.

Page 47



We suggest you use water efficiency measures and aim to achieve 105 litres/person/day. This is equivalent
to level 3/4 for water within the Code for Sustainable Homes. Achieving this standard within new homes *
can be accomplished at very little additional cost, and is significantly cheaper than retrofitting such
measures later.

Page 48



Every opportunity should be taken to maximise Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) such as green
roofs, ponds, swales and permeable pavements, to alleviate surface water runoff. | have attached a copy of
our SuDS guidance, which contains the SuDS hierarchy, to help you with your designs. The methods at the
top of the hierarchy are preferred because they are beneficial in terms of sustainability and biodiversity.
The hierarchy should be used in descending order. Tanks should only be used as a last resort. Epping
Forest's local policy U3B on sustainable drainage systems advocates this approach.

As the sites are all under a hectare in Flood Zone 1, they fall within cell F5 of our Flood Risk Standing
Advice consultation matrix. Epping Forest Local Planning Authority will therefore be responsible for
assessing flood risk at these sites.

Kind regards,

Clark Gordon

Sustainable Places Planning Advisor
Environment Agency

North East Thames Area - Hatfield Team
01707 632308

ey -

CLIMATE READY

& please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?

ay be legally privileged. If you
the sender immediately, delete it

We have checked this email and its atftacnments for wviruses. But you should still check
any attachment be i
We may have to mal
Freedom of Informatit
attachments sent to c
someone other than the s

ked to under the
Email messages and
so be accessed by

A—

Page 49



(c) Crown Copyright and database rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 100018208 Date: 24/10/13 Scale: 1:1083

Map Centre: 542209.5,194836.2 Data updated: 25/08/13

Telecoms Plan A4

Important Information - pleass read
Tha pumoss of this plan i to identify Vign Medis spperstus. Wa heve tried o rrake | s sccurels ss possibile but we cannot
‘et bs Boouracy. n addition, we caution Tl within Vingin Mecia spparstus Cars mary be inetances whare maina volage
P cabins harve baen piaced insids green, rether Ten black ducting. Furher detsls can ba found using the ‘Aflsctsd
Postondes pdf, which can b downionded from fhis websts.

Tm.mnw Tl redy aciedy on this pien I you sre campng out sry sxcevetion of ofhed works in e vickity of Viegn Media

sctual of ny undery vica must be v dataction squipment, sic. snd selsbished
on #a befors sy mechanical piant ks ussd. Accordingly, Unissd It i dus b of Virgin Medka, ta yood of
s o n Tha plan of for By loss o darmage caused of

agenta, Virgin Media .
wraing from tha uss of andior ey reliance on this plan.

This plans In producad by Virgin Madia Linvisd from Ordrance Survey © Crown Copyright 100016208

Duct, Trench

Chamber

+

Cabinet

A

| agreenhalgh@pellings.co.uk

=

media



i "USYBLAPUN B8 SYIOM AUR D10}8Q B)IS UO PaljLIaA Bq JSNLU SeDIAIS

° way pus 1955y pauopueqy pue suew Jo uosod ([emoe By "UDISSIWO 10 0118 AUR J0) JD)BAA SOLIEY |

A — - Aq peideooe s| sensosieym pupy Aue jo Ayqey oN “peledionue eq pinoys
33Ty A asuasald Jay) Ing umoys jou aue sadid eaineg ‘pejuud e1ep ay) 1o} pljEA

.—&ﬁﬂ; . ueIphn ) 1e1eM pasodoid S| UoljEWIOU! S|y "paajuelent aq jouues Aoeinaoe ay) pue ‘Ajueliem pue
soul M——.—. e uonebigo inoyum uemB s) ued siyy uo umoys snjesedde ay) jo uonisod
_ _ yo OAJEA. = - —— J9leAN BleAld ay 1 ‘pemuuad jou aJe saidod Jayun o ejep dew ay) Jo S8sn Jayjo Auy

“Auo yueid 181ep SBWEY] Jo uoleao| ay) Bumeis jo sesodind ay) 1oj pasn

:! 1alaln ulel Jalepn aq 0} s| dew sy 'GFEGLO00L -1aqunN asuasy] eay0 Aeuonels "WH

_ u__D.S.mm:___mn@;m_m::wemm_ 10 19]|01jU0T) 8y} JO uooUES 8y Yim deyy Aeaing aouBupI By uo paseg

PV ue|d 19]EM UES|D €1/80/9} ‘pelepdn BlEg  Z'9EBYEL'G'60ZTHS BNuUBD dep €£801:1 ‘@|Bdg E€LI0L/ET @1ea S¥E610004 Aoning sauBupiQ 210z SIUB eseqeiep pue 1yBufdod umard (o)




T

Ve N
131eM
sawey]

|

L Jol N B

Ampunog oIS

way) pug

;OYUBLY MO
GOLURY PMIODUTRY

BOLUBYY PAIGLICT

[0dA) wange snoueg inop3)
EENEEAERRE RN Jrny pasoalg
[ty pmnige wegousp o)
- - - 1655y A1PALY

Uiy BInssaly

JAMOS, PRUDRUTTY

TAMAS POUKLIDD

‘UayENapUN BB SYIoM AU B10JBq 9)IS L0 PBILBA Bq 1SN S82IAIBS pUB SuleW jo uomisod
|Enjoe 8y ] ‘UOISSIWO Jo Jous Aue Joj Jalep sawey) Aq pajdesoe st Jeasosieym pury Aue

jo Aliqel) oN “pajedionue aq pinoys sauasald Jiay] Ing umoys jou ale sadid eoueg ‘pajuud
a1ep ay) Joj plleA s uonewIo SIy) pasjuelend aq jouues Aoeinooe ay) pue 'Aueuem

pue uonebiqo noynm uamB s1 ued siyy uo umoys snjesedde ay) jo uonisod ay | papiuad
jou ase se1dod Jeypn po ejep dew ay) jo sasn Jayio Auy "Auo Jue|d JeIepA SBWEY ] JO UOREDO|

A e TS IS ay) Buimain jo sasodind auy Joj pasn aq o} s| dew siy]'SEE6LON0L -1equnN asuaal a0
_ u___:_.cc.mm:___mn@:m_mncmm.__mm_ sfouByY 104 1amag o4 fieuonels “WH JO 18]j01uon 8Uy) Jo uoioues syl unm deyy AeAing eouBUPIQ B} UO paseg
PV ueid J9IEmIISEM £1/80/91 :pojepdn eleg  Z'9EBY6L'G'60ZZYS :@nuaD dew €801:1 9|88 EL/0L/EZ ®ea S¥EG1L0004 ABnNg saurupIQ Z10Z sWib eseqmep pur wbuAdod umod (o)

e e QG

IS0 A5uM

Page o2




Page 53



Appendix E

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District
Council by way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential
contamination across all the primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites
that move forward to Planning Applications.

Page 54



Appendix F

Cost Build-up

Page 55



Site P2 7, 20 Kirby Close, Loughton 1G10 3BA
Indicative Estimate of Cost

for East Thames HA

28 November 2013

Gross Internal floor area m2 fi2
Affordable Flat Units 0 0
Allowance for communal space @ 20% 0 0
Affordable House Units 308 3,315
TOTAL GIA 308 3,315
ltem  Element Qty Unit Rate Total
Elunit £
1.0 Demolition
1.1 Demolition 55 m? 50 2,754
2.2 Site clearance 1,087 m? 10 10,868
1.2 Allowance for removal of asbestos 4 No 800 3,200
Sub-total say 20,000
2.0 Affordable Flat units (xx nr. units)
2.1 Flats Private areas 0 m? 1,350 0
2.2 Flats communal areas (20% allowed) 0 m? 900 0
Sub-total say 0
3.0 Affordable House units (04 nr. units)
™ 3.1 House areas 308 m? 1,250 385,000
Sub-total say 390,000
4.0 Abnormals / E/o and External Works
4.1 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 240 m? 40 10,000
4.2 Communal Gardens 244 m? 30 7,000
4.3 Access road, parking and turning 475 m? 65 31,000
4.4 Pedestrian paving 0 m? 50 Incl.
4.5 Cross over / highways adaptions 2 item 2,000 4,000
4.6 Allowance for contaminated ground 0 item Excl.
4.7 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 172 m 160 28,000
4.8 Allowance for achieving CfSh Level 3 4nr 4,500 18,000
Sub-total say 100,000
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 510,000
CONTINGENCY @ 5% 30,000
CONTRACTORS DESIGN FEES @ 8% 43,200
PRELIMS AND OVERHEADS AT 15% 76,500
Py TOTAL INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 2,142 659,700

clarifications and Assumptions

Estimate based on Pellings Feasibility drawings and standard ETG specifications
GIA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on a Q3 2014 start on site

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

Al units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 3

roofs) will be used
Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Hazardous material removal

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by TFL or other statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, S108, S278 Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Itis assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber floor structure, sloped tiled

Page 56




Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report
Site: 354-380 (Garages) Whitehills Road, Loughton IG10 1TU

Rev: A

Ref:  1JC/srs/612.023
Date: September 2014

Page 57



Pellings

Contents

1. Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
2. Existing Site and Surroundings

3. Proposals

4. Planning Issues and Risks

5.
6
7
8
9

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

. Site Access and Buildability Issues

. Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
. Proposed Procurement Route

. Impact on Parking

10.Legals
11.Costs
12.Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices

A: Development Proposals — Drawings 612.023/P2-13A
Site Photographs

Existing Site Plan : 201206014 - AV

Statutory Services Information

Information on Possible Contamination

Cost Build-up

nmoow

Page 58



1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

3.0

3.1

3.2.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

612023

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District
Council for a six year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having
possible development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP have been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites and
which will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located in a residential area 750m to the north of Debden station in
Loughton.

The site consists of 26 garages and hardstanding and it is accessed by way of a
2.5m driveway between properties on Whitehills Road. The site is adjoined by
residential plots on three sides and a school on its southern side. The area in
general consists of two storey family houses (semi-detached and detached) with
front and rear gardens.

There are some mature trees on or adjacent to the site which may need to be
recognised in final design.

Proposals
Read in conjunction with drawings 612.023.P2-13A attached at Appendix A.
The proposals are :

Erection of a 3 x two storey 3 bedroom detached houses each with gardens
Provision of 6 parking spaces and access/landscaping

Planning Issues and Risks
Relevant Planning Policies/Considerations

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest District Council is the
Combined Local Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area and it is not designated for any
particular purposes in the Epping Forest District Council Combined Local Plan
1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006. The site does not lie in a Flood Zone on
the Environment Agency Flood Map.

There are no specific policies which prevent the loss of existing garages although
policy ST4 (Road Safety) states that planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion or harm
to the character or appearance of the area. Parking spaces to meet with the
Council’'s standards are proposed for the new dwellings.

Page 59

354-380 (Garages) Whitehills REV A 1



4.4,

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.8.

5.4.

5.5.

6.0

6.1.

612023

It will be necessary to undertake a Parking Survey and to prepare a Transport
Statement to demonstrate that the loss of the garages and proposed development
would not cause any parking shortfalls or harm to highway conditions or the
amenities of the area.

The site is located in the settlement of Loughton and the proposal would be
consistent with policy CP7 which encourages the efficient use of existing built-up
areas by the ‘recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-used land to
accommodate the development’ and the ‘re-use of urban sites, which are no
longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in the foreseeable future, for
alternative land uses'.

The proposal would comply with policy H4A which states the need for a range of
dwellings, including an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet
identified housing need on a site-by-site basis.

The development of small family homes with rear gardens and private and
communal parking would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the
area and may comply with Epping Forest’s design policies and guidance.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Southern Gas

Cable and Wireless

Virgin Media

Thames Water

BT

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy
Environment Agency

UK Power Networks

Responses received to date are from the Environment Agency, National Grid, UK
Power Networks, Virgin Media and Thames Water.

The Environment Agency has not pointed out any watercourses which cross the
site.

National Grid: No apparatus appears to be located on the site.

UK Power Networks: There do not appear to be any installations on the site,
although there is believed to be a substation adjacent to the site access road.

Virgin Media: No apparatus appears to be located on the site.
Thames Water: No drains or sewers are located on any part of the site.

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be
any particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic
associated with a development of this nature.

Page 60

354-380 (Garages) Whitehills REV A 2



6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

8.0

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

612023

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area and, accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and
within normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues
have been highlighted with use of the domestic garages.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may
include asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and
the like, please see Appendix E.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal
with any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

The site is accessed by way of a narrow driveway and as at present, our
proposals do not include a turning head for refuse or emergency vehicles.
Accordingly, subject to detailed design, an independent refuse storage area may
be required along with sprinkler provision to the new houses for fire protection.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P2-13A it is not considered that Party Wall
matters will be relevant to the development.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East
Thames Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage D planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be
subsequently confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East
Thames Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement
documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual
contract packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory
services, highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure
size of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East
Thames Housing Group and EFDC.

Page 61

354-380 (Garages) Whitehills REV A 3



8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

11.0

11.1.

612023

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide —
September 2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as
statutory planning guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest
whole number)

The proposals may be considered to meet the Council's parking standards for
new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking
surveys, to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any
planning or highway problems.

Legals

We have been provided with a Summary Report of legal matters from EFDC
Solicitors. The report makes reference to the suggested appropriation of land for
planning purposes which would extinguish any prior rights of way.

The report makes reference to possible rights of light risk. A blanket policy
against such risk might be considered.

There is existing access from No. 70 Whitehills Road into a proposed private
garden. However, it is advised that this would be extinguished on appropriation of
the land.

Costs
It is considered that a budget of £612,000.00 should be allowed for this scheme,

inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

Page 62

354-380 (Garages) Whitehills REV A 4



12.0

12.1.

612023

Recommendations and Conclusions

Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for
taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Pellings LLP

Page 63

354-380 (Garages) Whitehills REV A



Appendix A

Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023/P2-13A

Page 64



NOTES

Report all discrepancies, errors and omissions

Do not scale from fhis drawing

Verify all dimensions on site before commencing any work or
preparing shop drawings

All materials, components and workmanship are to comply with
all the relevant British Standards, Codes of Practice, and
appropriate manufacturers recommendations that from time to
fime shall apply

For all specialist work, see relevant drawings

This drawing and design are copyright of PELLINGS LLP

Oak View School

PRELIMINARY

Page 65

TOTALS

Site Area 0.091 Ha
3 x 3 Bed Houses @ 93 sqm
6 Parking Spaces

Oak View School

Rev Date Description Name Pellings LLP Architecture & Planning m Building Surveying m Project Management m
24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY Cost Consultancy s CDM Co-ordination
- t020 8460 9114 0208313 0019 e bromley@pellings.co.uk
www.pellings.co.uk
CLIENT PROJECT I,
n East Thames HA EFDC House Building Programme
TITLE . DATE SCALE DRAWN CHK
Existing and Proposed Plans NOV 2013 1:500 @A3 NP
e ' 612023/P2-13
| 023 A
1



Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 66



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 70



O
(

1.3m

Oak View School

YA

12 1e

—

Contains Ordnance Survey & Royal Mail Data
© Crown Copynght & Database Right 2011
EFOC License No: 100018534 2011

=
Directorate of Environment & Street Scene Project Content Date
chfg'fu'oets Potential Site for Council House | White Hills 04/07/12
19 Suee Building Program Loughton Scale
chne ez Drawing No 1:1250 @ A4
Tel. 01992 564000 ’ Drawn By
201206014 - AV Robert frwin

Page 71



Appendix D

Statutory Services Information

Page 72



Appendix E

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District
Council by way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential
contamination across all the primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites
that move forward to Planning Applications.

Page 73



Appendix F

Cost Build-up

Page 74



Whitehills Road, Epping Forest
Indicative Estimate of Cost
for East Thames HA

Friday, 6 December 13

Gross Internal floor area m2 ft2
Affordable Flat Units 0 0
Allowance for communal space @ 20% 0 0
Affordable House Units 279 3,003
TOTAL GIA 279 3,003
Item Element Qty Unit Rate Total
£lunit £
1.0 Demolition
1.1 Demolition 340 m? 50 16,976
2.2 Site clearance 600 m? 10 6,000
1.2 Allowance for removal of asbestos 26 Per roof 1,000 26,000
Sub-total say 50,000
2.0 Affordable Flat units (xx nr. units)
2.1 Flats Private areas 0m? 1,350 0
2.2 Flats communal areas (20% allowed) 0 m? 900 0
Sub-total say 0
3.0 Affordable House units (03 nr. units)
3.1 House areas 279 m? 1,250 349,000
Sub-total say 350,000
4.0 Abnormals / E/o and External Works
4.1 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 465 m? 40 19,000
4.2 Communal Gardens 56 m? 30 2,000
4.3 Access road, parking and turning 269 m? 65 17,000
4.4 Pedestrian paving 0 m? 50 Incl.
4.5 Cross over / highways adaptions 1 item 2,000 2,000
4.6 Allowance for contaminated ground 0 item Excl.
4.7 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 187 m 160 30,000
4.8 Allowance for achieving CfSh Level 3 3nr 4,500 14,000
Sub-total say 80,000
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 480,000
CONTINGENCY @ 5% 20,000
CONTRACTORS DESIGN FEES @ 8% 40,000
PRELIMS AND OVERHEADS AT 15% 72,000
TOTAL INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 2,194 612,000

Clarifications and Assumptions

Estimate based on Pellings Feasibility drawings and standard ETG specifications

GlA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on a Q3 2014 start on site

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 3

It is assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber floor structure, sloped tiled roofs) will be
used

Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Asbestos (except removal of low risk asbestos roofs priced above) and hazardous material removal
Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by TFL or other statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, S108, S278 Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Page 75




This page is intentionally left blank



Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report

Site: 1-24 (Garages) Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill IG9 6JS
(Site A)

Rev: A

Ref:  1JC/dh/612.023
Date: September 2014

Page 77



Pellings

Contents

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
Existing Site and Surroundings
Proposals

Planning Issues and Risks
Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
Site Access and Buildability Issues
Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
Proposed Procurement Route

© ©o N o g~ wDdRE

Impact on Parking

10.Legals

11.Costs

12.Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices
A: Development Proposals — Drawings 612.023/P2-1A
B: Site Photographs
C: Existing Site Plan 20120014-B
D: Statutory Services Information
E: Information on Possible Contamination
F: Cost Build-up

Page 78



1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

3.0

3.1.

3.2.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

612023

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District
Council for a six year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having
possible development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP have been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites and
which will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located on the eastern side of Buckhurst Hill in a residential area
comprising houses and flats approximately 500m south of Buckhurst Hill station.

The site consists of 24 garages and hardstanding and it is accessed by way of a
7m wide entrance at the end of Hornbeam Close. The site adjoins residential
plots (semi-detached dwellings with rear gardens) to the north and west.
Cascade Close to the north consists of semi-detached and detached two storey
houses with gardens and 2-40 Hornbeam Close to the south is a five storey block
of flats with communal amenity space. To the east is open space.

There is a mature tree to the right hand side as you enter the site.

Please refer to Appendix B, Photographs of the existing site, locations cross
referenced to Appendix A.

Proposals

Read in conjunction with drawings 612.023.P2-1A attached at Appendix A.
The proposals are :

1 x 3 bed house, 2 storey

2 x 2 bed houses, 2 storey

Provision of 7 parking spaces and garden/landscaped areas

Planning Issues and Risks

Relevant Planning Policies/Considerations

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest District Council is the
Combined Local Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area it is not designated for any
particular purposes in the Epping Forest District Council Combined Local Plan
1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006. The site does not lie in a Flood Zone on
the Environment Agency Flood Map.

Page 79

1-24 (Garages) Hornbeam Close (Site A) REV A 1



4.3.

4.4.

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

612023

There are no specific policies which prevent the loss of existing garages although
policy ST4 (Road Safety) states that planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion or harm
to the character or appearance of the area. Parking spaces to meet with the
Council’'s standards are proposed for the new dwellings.

It will be necessary to undertake a Parking Survey and to prepare a Transport
Statement to demonstrate that the loss of the garages and proposed development
would not cause any parking shortfalls or harm to highway conditions or the
amenities of the area.

The site is located in the settlement of Buckhurst Hill and the proposal would be
consistent with policy CP7 which encourages the efficient use of existing built-up
areas by the ‘recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-used land to
accommodate the development’ and the ‘re-use of urban sites, which are no
longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in the foreseeable future, for
alternative land uses'.

The proposal would comply with policy H4A which states the need for a range of
dwellings, including an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet
identified housing need on a site-by-site basis.

The development of small family homes with rear gardens and private and
communal parking would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the
area and may comply with Epping Forest's design policies and guidance.

There is a potential Right of Way running East to West across the site.

Adjacent development is somewhat raised relevant to the site, and could
potentially increase the risk of overlooking issues.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Southern Gas

Cable and Wireless

Virgin Media

Thames Water

BT

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy
Environment Agency

UK Power Networks

Responses received to date are from the Environment Agency, National Grid, UK
Power Networks, Virgin Media and Thames Water.

The Environment Agency do not note any significant constraints but recommend
measures to achieve water efficiency and the use of Sustainable Urban Drainage
systems.

National Grid: No apparatus appears to cross the site

UK Power Networks: No apparatus appears to cross the site

Page 80

1-24 (Garages) Hornbeam Close (Site A) REV A 2



5.3.3.

5.4.

5.5.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

8.0

8.1.

612023

Virgin Media: No apparatus appears to cross the site

Thames Water: No apparatus appears to cross the site. A sewer runs below the
northern boundary of the site.

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be
any particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic
associated with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area, and accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and
within normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues
have been highlighted with use of the domestic garages, and also a former
horticultural nursery. Possible contaminants in respect of the former use as a
nursery are summarised and indicated within the note produced by EFDC
Planning and Economic Development Directorate at Appendix E.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may
include asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and
the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal
with any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023.P2-1A, Party Wall matters will be relevant to
development, particularly adjacent to No. 6 Cascade Close.

Confirmation of ownership will be required in due course.

Such Party Wall matters may be undertaken ahead of the build contract by direct
appointment by EFDC, or included as a requirement for the contractor to deal with
within the build contract. This later approach, however, would carry increased risk
to programme and cost.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East
Thames Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

Page 81

1-24 (Garages) Hornbeam Close (Site A) REV A 3



8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

612023

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage D planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be
subsequently confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East
Thames Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement
documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual
contract packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory
services, highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure
size of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East
Thames Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide -
September 2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as
statutory planning guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling
Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest
whole number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards
for new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking
surveys, to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any
planning or highway problems.

Legals
We have been provided with a Summary Report of legal matters from EFDC
Solicitors. The report makes reference to the suggested appropriation of land for

planning purposes which would extinguish any prior rights of way.

The report makes reference to possible rights of light risk. A blanket policy
against such risk might be considered.

Page 82

1-24 (Garages) Hornbeam Close (Site A) REV A 4



10.3.

11.0

11.1.

12.0

12.1.

612023

There is reference to an existing footpath within the Housing Management Report.
However, this is unaffected by proposals.

Costs

It is considered that a budget of £543,120.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

Recommendations and Conclusions

Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for
taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Pellings LLP

Page 83

1-24 (Garages) Hornbeam Close (Site A) REV A 5



Appendix A

Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023.P2-1A

Page 84



Allotment
Gardens

NOTES
Report all discrepancies, errors and omissions P RE LI M I NARY

Do not scale from this drawing - el
Verify all dimensions on site before commencing any work or
preparing shop drawings

All materials, components and workmanship are to comply with
all the relevant British Standards, Cedes of Practice, and
appropriate manufacturers recommendations that from time to
fime shall apply

For all specialist work, see relevant drawings

This drawing and design are copyright of PELLINGS LLP

TOTALS

Site Area 0.089 Ha
1 x 3 Bed Houses @ 93 sqm
2 x 2 Bed Houses @ 77 sqm
7 Parking Spaces

Allotment

Gardens

Rev Date Description Name Pellings LLP Architecture & Planning m Building Surveying m Project Management m
24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY Cost Consultancy m CDM Co-ordination
1020 8460 9114 0208313 0019 e bromley@pellings.co.uk
www.pellings.co.uk
CLIENT PROJECT o
n East Thames HA EFDC House Building Programme
TITLE . DATE SCALE DRAWN CHK
Existing and Proposed Plans NOV 2013 1:500 @A3 NP
o 1 612/023/P2-1 A
|
_ 1

mll



Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 86



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 87



Page 88



—
—

Page 89



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 90



(== Epping Forest
W\ District Council

CHESTNUT cLogg

24

9

Le

(4

El Sub Sta

20

12

1

2625

0

3| 1a

5a

5 3a
oo Tl

7

~

H— oo oo

13a| 13 11a| 11 ] 9a 9 7a

ol

21019 J17a( 17 |15a | 15

The Cottage

EX605435

ovorz

Allotment
Gardens

[13
bl

4

1L

ere | pe

Allotment Gardens

14.9m

Contains Ordnance Survey & Royal Mail Data
© Crown Copyright & Database Right 2011
EFDC License No: 100018534 2011

I—_/’
Directorate of Environment & Street Scene Project Content Date
CivicOffices Potential Site for Council House | Hornbeam Close 04/07/12
High Street Building Program Buckhurst Hill Scale
e Bz 1:1250 @ A4
Tel. 01992 564000 Drawing No. Page 91 Drawn By
201206014 - B Robert Irwin




Appendix D

Statutory Services Information

Page 92



A0 AN
I0NIS NI W E

- \r(s‘hoe

LY e NENYQY o )

ey




6 abed

:F—-_\\‘*t
|
|

oo
o <)
.
L -.____.;

ID: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_042143)

\View extent: 723m, 393m

Map not to be used for construction

[Map 1 of 1 (GAS)

USER: roy.x.jones

LP MAINS

DATE: 24/10/2013

MP MAINS -
IP MAINS —— - ——

DATA DATE: 15/10/2013

LHP MAINS

REF: HORNBEAM CLOSE

NHP MAING ——————— e e e

MAP REF: TQ4193
CENTRE: 541998, 193421

Oom 1 50m
Approximate scale 1:2500
on A4 Colour Landscape

v D 0N/ g O D.amater$ Matoria

Cover

Change Change

This plan shows those pipes owned by National Grid Gas plc in its role as a Licensed Gas Transporter (GT).

Gas pipes owned by other GTs, or otherwise privately owned, may be present in this area. Information

with regard to such pipes should be obtained from the relevant owners. The information shown on this plan is

given without warranty, the accuracy thereof cannot be guaranteed. Service pipes, valves, syphons, stub connections,
etc., are not shown but their presence should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by
National Grid Gas ple or their agents, servants or contractors for any error or omission. Safe digging

practices, in accordance with HS(G)47, must be used to verify and establish the actual position of mains,

pipes, services and other apparatus on site before any mechanical plant is used. It is your responsibility to ensure

that this information is provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you on or near gas

apparatus. The information included on this plan should not be referred to beyond a period of 28 days from the date
of issue.

[MAPS Plot Server Version 1.7.6

nationalgrid

Requested by: Pellings

This plan is reproduced from or based on the

OS map by National Grid Gas plc, with the sanction
of the controller of HM Stationery Office.

Crown Copyright Reserved. Ordnance Survey
Licence number 100024886




(

Adam Greenhalgh

From: SPHatfield <SPHatfield@environment-agency.gov.uk>
Sent: 23 October 2013 17:49

To: Adam Greenhalgh

Subject: RE: Epping Forest DC - potential development sites
Dear Adam,

Further to your letters dated 16 October (your ref: AG/dh/612.023/05), we have the following comments to
make on the specific sites listed below (please note that comments on three sites — Rear of shops,
Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill; Pentlow Way, Buckhurst Hill and Site B, Marlescroft Way, Loughton — will
follow on or before 7 November due to additional site constraints).

Sites: Burton Road, Debden
White Hills, Loughton
Thatchers Close, Loughton
Site A, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles') Lane, Loughton
Site B, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles’) Lane, Loughton

A Site A, Chequers Road, Loughton

Site B, Chequers Road, Loughton

Site A, Langley Meadow, Loughton

Site B, Langley Meadow, Loughton

Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill

Hornbeam House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Bourne House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Bushfields, Loughton

Etheridge Road, Loughton

Lower Alderton Hall Lane, Loughton
Ladyfields, Loughton

Kirby Close, Loughton

Chester Road, Loughton

Hillyfields, Loughton

Comments

As we are in an area of serious water stress, we endorse the efficient use of water resources. Residential
evelopments such as your proposal should take advantage of water efficient technologies. This is in line

~ith Epping Forest's local policy CP5 which states that the efficient use of water is encouraged through

water efficient appliances and rainwater harvesting for example.

1
Page 95



Every opportunity should be taken to maximise Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) such as green
roofs, ponds, swales and permeable pavements, to alleviate surface water runoff. | have attached a copy of
our SuDS guidance, which contains the SuDS hierarchy, to help you with your designs. The methods at the
top of the hierarchy are preferred because they are beneficial in terms of sustainability and biodiversity.
The hierarchy should be used in descending order. Tanks should only be used as a last resort. Epping
Forest's local policy U3B on sustainable drainage systems advocates this approach.

As the sites are all under a hectare in Flood Zone 1, they fall within cell F5 of our Flood Risk Standing
Advice consultation matrix. Epping Forest Local Planning Authority will therefore be responsible for
assessing flood risk at these sites.

Kind regards,

Clark Gordon

Sustainable Places Planning Advisor
Environment Agency

North East Thames Area - Hatfield Team
01707 632308

¥

The climate is changing. Are you?

Ja k)
oo

L.

LIMATE READY O RHOn M

&5 please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?

Information in this message may be confidential and may be legally privileged. If you
have received this message by mistake, please notify the sender immediately, delete it
and do not copy it to anyone else.

We have checked this email and its attachments for viruses. But you should still check
any attachment before opening it.

We may have to make this message and any it public if asked to under the

Freedom of Information Act, Data Prot for litigation. Email messages and
attachments sent to or from any Environment address may alsc be accessed by
someone other than the sender or recipient, for business purposes.

Page 96



37810001 14AMI0] Umar) @ ASANG SOUTURIQ) WAy PAIRUN WO UIBIA AQ Peanpaxd & ueyd syl
‘LB g U0 O] AW JO/PUE |0 @90 g woy Duue

O_—UWE P—— 10 paene elewep 10 110y Auw 10} 10 ey 04 Ly Kus 504 & SABY 10U i DOy LBl “wueOs
10 vea/ogium 5 ‘Tpapy LIBKA J0 T0eCDSU DY) O 8D B FPETUN KBARIOSTY “PeEN B U [EURLDAW AUR B10j8q B} LD

PRYEGEYe pUS 318 ‘JUsuwrdinbe UCEONEP BIGED Aq PeYUSA BG T BT puncudiepun Auw jo uonod ERCE By sLedde

i W00 LIEAA 10 AYLYDIA B4 Uy 1J0M L0 J0 UBEAEIXE K8 110 Burku e nok  ueid a0 A@(os Aes 10U 1enuw nod ‘s

_ — Bulgen Jequeyd youseiL 10ng EIGEM MU WOY PEPEONLMOP 8] LSS LI * i PepocyRoy

P9y, Sa DU pUNcy BQ LTI SER0 8y “BURIND YIRG UL SR ‘U000 Bore DOSIK USSQ BARY 491080 Jemod

gyl b o] o Pkl ot gl o
_ v_:.oo.mm:___mn@:m_m:cum._mm_ o pecs sweord - uopeua| R
¥V Ue|d swiodajs | €L/80/GZ :palepdn eled  9'vBPEBL'8B6LYS :9nuaD dey €80L:1 :9|898 €L/0L/PT @1eq 60261000} Aoning BouBUPIQ 110Z SIBY 8seqelEp pue JyBukdod umald (o)

Page 97

Iy

L ! ! !
— S

, I S JE I _H_
) g i 1211
~ e = 5
ﬂﬂfrﬂ_ 1% '
- }\f‘/\
—~ T ; -

e




86 obed

[

CHESTNUT CLosz

L :%’,"f \ . 'v‘ ~
/ SN ~
. / N :'; - ]
‘ gy o S
S— | If "~ ] o
") |" /] LS |

Thames Water for any error or omission. The actual position of mains and

services must be verified on site before any works are undertaken.

Abandoned Asset

(c) Crown Copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100019345 Date: 23/10/13 Scale: 1:1083 Map Centre: 541988,193484.6 Data updated: 16/08/13 Clean Water Plan A4
Based on the Ordnance Survey Map with the sanction of the Controller of |agraenhalgh@pellings.co.uk
H.M. Stationary Office License Number:- 100019345.This map is to be Water Main e L L CL e,
used for the purposes of viewing the location of Thames Water plant only.
Any other uses of the map data orf urther copies are not permitted. The Private Water R ———————— " { V73 — L
position of the apparatus shown on this plan is given without obligation e Th
and warranty, and the accuracy cannot be guaranteed. This information is ames
valid for the date printed. Service pipes are not shown but their presence Proposed Water < «cevecneannnn. Hydrant . water
should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by End It

n em [ ] Sy



121eMm
sawey]

|

x3.3.3:..:@&@;@.&::&9%_

8009 @

Awpunog roLs
waj pug

s[oyue JaIO
AOLUEY PBUOPUCTY
BOUURLY PAUKILIGD
BpoUue 830UNS

sjoyuey Ino 4

(341 WRNEE £E0LID HCRD)

SEsEESEEEENEEEEEN 1955y pasodos4
tadiAl enge seiuen mopD)

. SE D 1955y 210ALS
IRl 3INSSald

ARag pauopuegy

IBMAS PAUKILIDD

18MBS 83BING

JOMeS N0

‘uayenapun ale syiom Aue 210Jaq alis UO PayUBA aq ISNLW SaDIAIBS pUB sulew jo uonisod
[EMOE 8] "U0ISSIWO JO Joua Aue Joj Jalepn sawey | Aq peldasoe si JeABosIEUM puly Aue

10 Aujiqey| oN “psiedionue aq pinoys aoussaid l1ay) Inq umoys jou ale sadid esinag “pejund
81D 8U) 10} PI[EA SI UOHEBWIOJUI SIY ]| “pasiuelent aq Jouues AoBINDOE 8y pue ‘Alueliem

pue uonebiqo 1noyym uaaIb si ueid siy) uo umoys smesedde auy Jo uomisod ey “peniwed
jou ale saidod Jayun po eiep dew ey Jo sasn Jaylo Auy Ajuo jue|d J8JEA SBLWEY] JO UOIEDO)
oy} Buimaia jo sasodind oyy J0) poasn oq o) s dew SIYL'SFEE OO0 -1equINN 8susdr eIy
AJBUOIEIS "W'H JO J3||01U09) 8y} JO UOOUES 8Y) yiim depy) ABAINS 8ouBupIO By} UO paseq

PV ue|d Jajemalsepn

€1/80/91 :pejepdn ejeq

9'v8YEGL ‘8861 PG :eua) dey

€801:} ‘9|€2g

EL/0L/ET Bled G¥E6L0001 ABAINg aaurupIQ Z10Z SIUBH aseqeep pue wBuAdos umoid (2)

Page 99



Appendix E

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District
Council by way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential
contamination across all the primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites
that move forward to Planning Applications.

Page 100



Appendix F

Cost Build-up

Page 101



Site P2 1, Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill 1G9 6JU
Indicative Estimate of Cost
for East Thames HA

28 November 2013
Gross Internal floor area m2 fi2
Affordable Flat Units 0 0
Allowance for communal space @ 20% 0 0
Affordable House Units 247 2,659
TOTAL GIA 247 2,659
ltem  Element . Qty Unit Rate Total
Elunit £
1.0 Demolition
1.1 Demolition 400 m? 50 19,999
2.2 Site clearance 498 m? 10 4,977
1.2 Allowance for removal of asbestos 24 No 800 19,200
Sub-total say 44,000
2.0 Affordable Flat units (xx nr. units)
2.1 Flats Private areas 0 m? 1,350 0
2.2 Flats communal areas (20% allowed) 0 m? 900 0
Sub-total say 0
3.0 Affordable House units (03 nr. units)
= 3.1 House areas 247 m? 1,250 309,000
Sub-total say 310,000
4.0 Abnormals / Elo and External Works
4.1 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 284 m? 40 11,000
4.2 Communal Gardens 311 m? 30 9,000
4.3 Access road, parking and turning 152 m? 65 10,000
4.4 Pedestrian paving 0 m? 50 Incl.
4.5 Cross over / highways adaptions 2 item 2,000 4,000
4.6 Allowance for contaminated ground 0 item Excl.
4.7 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 113 m 160 18,000
4.8 Allowance for achieving CfSh Level 3 3nr 4,500 14,000
Sub-total say 70,000
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 424,000
CONTINGENCY @ 5% 20,000
CONTRACTORS DESIGN FEES @ 8% 35,520
PRELIMS AND OVERHEADS AT 15% 63,600
TOTAL INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 2,199 543,120

A
Jarifications and Assumptions

Estimate based on Pellings Feasibility drawings and standard ETG specifications

GIlA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on a Q3 2014 start on site

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 3

It is assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber floor structure, sloped tiled
roofs) will be used

Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

-

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Hazardous material removal

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by TFL or other statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, S108, S278 Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Page 102




Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report
Site: 25-38 (Garages) Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill (Site B)

Rev: A

Ref:  1JC/dh/612.023
Date: September 2014

Page 103



Pellings

Contents

1. Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
2. Existing Site and Surroundings

3. Proposals

4. Planning Issues and Risks

5.
6
7
8
9

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

. Site Access and Buildability Issues

. Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
. Proposed Procurement Route

. Impact on Parking

10.Legals
11.Costs
12.Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices

A: Development Proposals — Drawings 612.023/P2-2A
Site Photographs

Existing Site Plan 201206014-B

Statutory Services Information

Information on Possible Contamination

Cost Build-up

nmoow

Page 104



1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

3.0

3.1

3.2.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

612023

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District
Council for a six year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having
possible development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP have been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites and
which will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located on the eastern side of Buckhurst Hill in a residential area
comprising houses and flats approximately 600m south of Buckhurst Hill station.

The site consists of 14 garages and hardstanding and it is accessed by way of a
4.5m driveway between residential sites (no. 2 Hornbeam Road and Hornbeam
House). There is a ‘pump house’ on the northern side of the site believed to
pump drainage. The site adjoins residential plots (no. 2 Hornbeam Road and the
neighbouring houses are two storey terraced and Hornbeam House is a five
storey block of flats with communal amenity space). To the east is open space.

Proposals
Read in conjunction with drawing 612.023/P2-2A attached at Appendix A.
The proposals are :

2 x 3 bed houses, 2 storey
Provision of 11 parking spaces and garden/landscaped areas

Planning Issues and Risks
Relevant Planning Policies/Considerations

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest District Council is the
Combined Local Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area it is not designated for any
particular purposes in the Epping Forest District Council Combined Local Plan
1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006. The site does not lie in Flood Zone on the
Environment Agency Flood Map.

There are no specific policies which prevent the loss of existing garages although
policy ST4 (Road Safety) states that planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion or harm
to the character or appearance of the area. Parking spaces to meet with the
Council’'s standards are proposed for the new dwellings.

Page 105

25-38 Hornbeam Close (Site B) REV A 1



4.4,

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.3.

5.4.

5.5.

612023

It will be necessary to undertake a Parking Survey and to prepare a Transport
Statement to demonstrate that the loss of the garages and proposed development
would not cause any parking shortfalls or harm to highway conditions or the
amenities of the area.

The site is located in the settlement of Buckhurst Hill and the proposal would be
consistent with policy CP7 which encourages the efficient use of existing built-up
areas by the ‘recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-used land to
accommodate the development’ and the ‘re-use of urban sites, which are no
longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in the foreseeable future, for
alternative land uses'.

The proposal would comply with policy H4A which states the need for a range of
dwellings, including an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet
identified housing need on a site-by-site basis.

The development of small family homes with rear gardens and private and
communal parking would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the
area and may comply with Epping Forest’s design policies and guidance.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Southern Gas

Cable and Wireless

Virgin Media

Thames Water

BT

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy
Environment Agency

UK Power Networks

Responses received to date are from the Environment Agency, National Grid, UK
Power Networks, Virgin Media and Thames Water.

The Environment Agency do not note any significant constraints but recommend
measures to achieve water efficiency and the use of Sustainable Urban Drainage
systems.

National Grid: No apparatus appears to cross the site

UK Power Networks: No apparatus appears to cross the site

Virgin Media: No apparatus appears to cross the site

Thames Water: Plans indicate that a pressure main and sewer connected to the
pump house cross the northern side of the site

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Page 106

25-38 Hornbeam Close (Site B) REV A 2



6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

8.0

8.1.

8.2.

612023

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be
any particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic
associated with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area and, accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and
within normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues
have been highlighted with use of the domestic garages, and also a former
horticultural nursery. Possible contaminants in respect of the former use as a
nursery are summarised and indicated within the note produced by EFDC
Planning and Economic Development Directorate at Appendix E.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may
include asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and
the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal
with any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

The site is accessed by way of a narrow driveway and as at present, our
proposals do not include a turning head for refuse or emergency vehicles.
Accordingly, subject to detailed design, an independent refuse storage area may
be required along with sprinkler provision to the new houses for fire protection.

As indicated above, the site includes a Thames Water pumping station, indicating
that the drainage in the area is pumped and not gravity. New proposed
accommodation is therefore likely to require similar pumped drainage.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P2-2A it is not considered that Party Wall
matters will be relevant.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East
Thames Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage D planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Page 107

25-38 Hornbeam Close (Site B) REV A 3



8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

612023

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be
subsequently confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East
Thames Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement
documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual
contract packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory
services, highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure
size of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East
Thames Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide —
September 2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as
statutory planning guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest
whole number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards
for new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking
surveys, to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any
planning or highway problems.

Legals
We have been provided with a Summary Report of legal matters from EFDC
Solicitors. The report makes reference to the suggested appropriation of land for

planning purposes which would extinguish any prior rights of way.

The report makes reference to possible rights of light risk. A blanket policy
against such risk might be considered.

Page 108

25-38 Hornbeam Close (Site B) REV A 4



10.3. The report has identified a pedestrian access into the allotment area to the rear of
the site. The access is largely unaffected by proposals, but it may be prudent to
move the access point to improve its location. This can be dealt with at time of
detailed planning application.

11.0 Costs

11.1. It is considered that a budget of £575,100.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

12.0 Recommendations and Conclusions

12.1. Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for

taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Date: IS*QMWZOM/"

Pellings LLP

Page 109

612023 25-38 Hornbeam Close (Site B) REV A 5



Appendix A

Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023/P2-2A

Page 110



7 é
HO%W@ 5444

T1T abed
HORNBEAM ROAD .—.

9¢

o

NOTES

Report all discrepancies, errors and omissions

Do not scale from this drawing

Verify all dimensions on site before commencing any work or
preparing shop drawings

All materials, components and workmanship are to comply with
all the relevant British Standards, Cedes of Practice, and
appropriate manufacturers recommendations that from time to
fime shall apply

For all specialist work, see relevant drawings

This drawing and design are copyright of PELLINGS LLP

PRELIMINARY

4

Y—V

Allotmen
Gardens
Dra

No refuse or emergency
vehicle turning

HORNBEAM ROAD

Rev  Date Description

o e

Name

Pellings

Pellings LLP

24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY
0 8460 9114 f020 8313 0019 e bromley@pellings.co.uk
www.pellings.co.uk

t

CLIENT

East Thames HA

Allotmen
Gardens

Dra

TOTALS

Site Area 0.085 Ha
3 x 3 Bed Houses @ 93 sqm
11 Parking Spaces

Architecture & Planning m Building Surveying m Project Management m

Cost Consultancy m

PROJECT

EFDC House Building Programme

Co-ordination

TITLE

Existing and Proposed Plans
Hornbeam Road

DATE SCALE
NOV 2013 1:500 @A3

CHK

DRAWN
NP

DRAWING No

612 023 P2-2 A

mll




Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 112



Appendix B - Site Photographs

1.




Page 114



Page 115



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 116



(== Epping Forest
W\ District Council

CHESTNUT cLogg

24

9

Le

(4

El Sub Sta

20

12

1

2625

0

3| 1a

The Cottage

= EX605435

ovorz

Allotment
Gardens

5a

5 3a
oo Tl

7

~

H— oo oo

13a| 13 11a| 11 ] 9a 9 7a

ol

21019 J17a( 17 |15a | 15

[13
bl

4

1L

ere | pe

Allotment Gardens

14.9m

Contains Ordnance Survey & Royal Mail Data
© Crown Copyright & Database Right 2011
EFDC License No: 100018534 2011

I—_/’
Directorate of Environment & Street Scene Project Content Date
CivicOffices Potential Site for Council House | Hornbeam Close 04/07/12
High Street Building Program Buckhurst Hill Scale
eans 11250 @ A4
Tel. 01992 564000 Drawing No. Page 117 Drawn By
201206014 - B Robert Irwin




Appendix D

Statutory Services Information

Page 118



A0 AN
I0NIS NI W E

- \r(s‘hoe

LY e NENYQY o )

ey




02T abed

:F—-_\\‘*t
|
|

oo
o <)
.
L -.____.;

ID: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_042143)

\View extent: 723m, 393m

Map not to be used for construction

[Map 1 of 1 (GAS)

USER: roy.x.jones

LP MAINS

DATE: 24/10/2013

MP MAINS -
IP MAINS —— - ——

DATA DATE: 15/10/2013

LHP MAINS

REF: HORNBEAM CLOSE

NHP MAING ——————— e e e

MAP REF: TQ4193
CENTRE: 541998, 193421

Oom 1 50m
Approximate scale 1:2500
on A4 Colour Landscape

v D 0N/ g O D.amater$ Matoria

Cover

Change Change

This plan shows those pipes owned by National Grid Gas plc in its role as a Licensed Gas Transporter (GT).

Gas pipes owned by other GTs, or otherwise privately owned, may be present in this area. Information

with regard to such pipes should be obtained from the relevant owners. The information shown on this plan is

given without warranty, the accuracy thereof cannot be guaranteed. Service pipes, valves, syphons, stub connections,
etc., are not shown but their presence should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by
National Grid Gas ple or their agents, servants or contractors for any error or omission. Safe digging

practices, in accordance with HS(G)47, must be used to verify and establish the actual position of mains,

pipes, services and other apparatus on site before any mechanical plant is used. It is your responsibility to ensure

that this information is provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you on or near gas

apparatus. The information included on this plan should not be referred to beyond a period of 28 days from the date
of issue.

[MAPS Plot Server Version 1.7.6

nationalgrid

Requested by: Pellings

This plan is reproduced from or based on the

OS map by National Grid Gas plc, with the sanction
of the controller of HM Stationery Office.

Crown Copyright Reserved. Ordnance Survey
Licence number 100024886




(

Adam Greenhalgh

From: SPHatfield <SPHatfield@environment-agency.gov.uk>
Sent: 23 October 2013 17:49

To: Adam Greenhalgh

Subject: RE: Epping Forest DC - potential development sites
Dear Adam,

Further to your letters dated 16 October (your ref: AG/dh/612.023/05), we have the following comments to
make on the specific sites listed below (please note that comments on three sites — Rear of shops,
Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill; Pentlow Way, Buckhurst Hill and Site B, Marlescroft Way, Loughton — will
follow on or before 7 November due to additional site constraints).

Sites: Burton Road, Debden
White Hills, Loughton
Thatchers Close, Loughton
Site A, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles') Lane, Loughton
Site B, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles’) Lane, Loughton

A Site A, Chequers Road, Loughton

Site B, Chequers Road, Loughton

Site A, Langley Meadow, Loughton

Site B, Langley Meadow, Loughton

Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill

Hornbeam House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Bourne House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Bushfields, Loughton

Etheridge Road, Loughton

Lower Alderton Hall Lane, Loughton
Ladyfields, Loughton

Kirby Close, Loughton

Chester Road, Loughton

Hillyfields, Loughton

Comments

As we are in an area of serious water stress, we endorse the efficient use of water resources. Residential
evelopments such as your proposal should take advantage of water efficient technologies. This is in line

~ith Epping Forest's local policy CP5 which states that the efficient use of water is encouraged through

water efficient appliances and rainwater harvesting for example.

1
Page 121



Every opportunity should be taken to maximise Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) such as green
roofs, ponds, swales and permeable pavements, to alleviate surface water runoff. | have attached a copy of
our SuDS guidance, which contains the SuDS hierarchy, to help you with your designs. The methods at the
top of the hierarchy are preferred because they are beneficial in terms of sustainability and biodiversity.
The hierarchy should be used in descending order. Tanks should only be used as a last resort. Epping
Forest's local policy U3B on sustainable drainage systems advocates this approach.

As the sites are all under a hectare in Flood Zone 1, they fall within cell F5 of our Flood Risk Standing
Advice consultation matrix. Epping Forest Local Planning Authority will therefore be responsible for
assessing flood risk at these sites.

Kind regards,

Clark Gordon

Sustainable Places Planning Advisor
Environment Agency

North East Thames Area - Hatfield Team
01707 632308

¥

The climate is changing. Are you?

Ja k)
oo

L.

LIMATE READY O RHOn M

&5 please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?

Information in this message may be confidential and may be legally privileged. If you
have received this message by mistake, please notify the sender immediately, delete it
and do not copy it to anyone else.

We have checked this email and its attachments for viruses. But you should still check
any attachment before opening it.

We may have to make this message and any it public if asked to under the

Freedom of Information Act, Data Prot for litigation. Email messages and
attachments sent to or from any Environment address may alsc be accessed by
someone other than the sender or recipient, for business purposes.

Page 122



807810001 1PUAI0] umar) @ ASang SaUTURIQ Way PR BIPOT UBAA AQ peonpaxd o uerd syl

O_—Um_ U UK # U0 BOUBNS AUB JOPUR |0 89N Byl wo Dursue
. e ————— 10 patnes eOeurep 1 1ro0f Au 10} 20 LBy 01 Uy Aue 305 & oam 10u i S1pOyY Ll uatie
10 sealogiue 51 ‘Tpepy LKA Jo Touetbeu Bu) O 8NP 1 | FIOjUN "ABLIRICTY “PEEN B U [EUSLIAW AUR 820/8q T3 UO

Primcese pUe i “Tomixinbe UoTowep P A7 PEGUA B 1 ST pUnGiiepun KU Jo Uonyiod TR ey sninsedde

WP LA O AVUISA B0 Uy 1OM J8UI0 J0 UBNeAEIXe Auw 100 Burlur ese nok 5 ued wa Lo Keyos Aeu 1ou tenw nok ‘wiojey)

_ _ ouIqED lequieyn usuesL ‘1ong rogegenion sy popospumon oy uss onis i pemred

Pa2eyy, e Durm punoj BQ LD R 1IN “BURInNg KNG UL MK ‘U000 opreu POOTK LSS BASY 91QED Jamd

SOTYOA SUPSW B10UM BOUTTIL 8 kel recid® wpoyy LBKA B UORIPPE U] “A2RINOOE T KATLIGM

- ' DOrTEod ¥ Byer Pora samy op “smeedde mpoyy U Anueps o1 w ued wu jo svocind By

_ v_:.oo.mm:___mn@:m_m:cum._mm_ pecs sweord - uopeua| R

bV ue|d swoasja | €1L/80/SZ ‘paiepdn eled  9'¥BYEBL'8BELYS :anuan dey £80L:L :8jE0g ELI0LIYE Brea 50261000} ASAINS BIUBUPIQ §10Z SIBY 95EqERIEP PuUE WBUAED UMOID (0)

Page 123

b
NIS

]
AL
L

e
T




v2T obed

[

CHESTNUT CLosz

L :%’,"f \ . 'v‘ ~
/ SN ~
. / N :'; - ]
‘ gy o S
S— | If "~ ] o
") |" /] LS |

Thames Water for any error or omission. The actual position of mains and

services must be verified on site before any works are undertaken.

Abandoned Asset

(c) Crown Copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100019345 Date: 23/10/13 Scale: 1:1083 Map Centre: 541988,193484.6 Data updated: 16/08/13 Clean Water Plan A4
Based on the Ordnance Survey Map with the sanction of the Controller of |agraenhalgh@pellings.co.uk
H.M. Stationary Office License Number:- 100019345.This map is to be Water Main e L L CL e,
used for the purposes of viewing the location of Thames Water plant only.
Any other uses of the map data orf urther copies are not permitted. The Private Water R ———————— " { V73 — L
position of the apparatus shown on this plan is given without obligation e Th
and warranty, and the accuracy cannot be guaranteed. This information is ames
valid for the date printed. Service pipes are not shown but their presence Proposed Water < «cevecneannnn. Hydrant . water
should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by End It

n em [ ] Sy



121eMm
sawey]

|

x3.3.3:..:@&@;@.&::&9%_

8009 @

Awpunog roLs
waj pug

s[oyue JaIO
AOLUEY PBUOPUCTY
BOUURLY PAUKILIGD
BpoUue 830UNS

sjoyuey Ino 4

(341 WRNEE £E0LID HCRD)

SEsEESEEEENEEEEEN 1955y pasodos4
tadiAl enge seiuen mopD)

. SE D 1955y 210ALS
IRl 3INSSald

ARag pauopuegy

IBMAS PAUKILIDD

18MBS 83BING

JOMeS N0

‘uayenapun ale syiom Aue 210Jaq alis UO PayUBA aq ISNLW SaDIAIBS pUB sulew jo uonisod
[EMOE 8] "U0ISSIWO JO Joua Aue Joj Jalepn sawey | Aq peldasoe si JeABosIEUM puly Aue

10 Aujiqey| oN “psiedionue aq pinoys aoussaid l1ay) Inq umoys jou ale sadid esinag “pejund
81D 8U) 10} PI[EA SI UOHEBWIOJUI SIY ]| “pasiuelent aq Jouues AoBINDOE 8y pue ‘Alueliem

pue uonebiqo 1noyym uaaIb si ueid siy) uo umoys smesedde auy Jo uomisod ey “peniwed
jou ale saidod Jayun po eiep dew ey Jo sasn Jaylo Auy Ajuo jue|d J8JEA SBLWEY] JO UOIEDO)
oy} Buimaia jo sasodind oyy J0) poasn oq o) s dew SIYL'SFEE OO0 -1equINN 8susdr eIy
AJBUOIEIS "W'H JO J3||01U09) 8y} JO UOOUES 8Y) yiim depy) ABAINS 8ouBupIO By} UO paseq

PV ue|d Jajemalsepn

€1/80/91 :pejepdn ejeq

9'v8YEGL ‘8861 PG :eua) dey

€801:} ‘9|€2g

EL/0L/ET Bled G¥E6L0001 ABAINg aaurupIQ Z10Z SIUBH aseqeep pue wBuAdos umoid (2)

Page 125



Appendix E

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District
Council by way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential
contamination across all the primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites
that move forward to Planning Applications.

Page 126



Appendix F

Cost Build-up

Page 127



Site P2 2, 2-12 Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill 1G9 6JS
Indicative Estimate of Cost
for East Thames HA

28 November 2013

Gross Internal floor area m2 ft2
Affordable Flat Units 0 0
Allowance for communal space @ 20% 0 0
Affordable House Units 279 3,003
TOTAL GIA 279 3,003
Item Element Qty Unit Rate Total
Elunit £
1.0 Demolition
1.1 Demolition 223 m? 50 11,132
2.2 Site clearance 623 m? 10 6,227
1.2 Allowance for removal of asbestos 14 No 800 11,200
Sub-total say 30,000
2.0 Affordable Flat units (xx nr. units)
2.1 Flats Private areas 0 m? 1,350 0
2.2 Flats communal areas (20% allowed) 0 m? 900 0
Sub-total say 0
3.0 Affordable House units (03 nr. units)
3.1 House areas 279 m? 1,250 349,000
Sub-total say 350,000
4.0 Abnormals / E/lo and External Works
4.1 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 188 m? 40 8,000
4.2 Communal Gardens 281 m? 30 8,000
4.3 Access road, parking and turning 266 m? 65 17,000
4.4 Pedestrian paving 0 m? 50 Incl.
4.5 Cross over / highways adaptions 2 item 2,000 4,000
4.6 Allowance for contaminated ground 0 item Excl.
4.7 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 17 m 160 19,000
4.8 Allowance for achieving CfSh Level 3 3nr 4,500 14,000
Sub-total say 70,000
£/m2 £Ift2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 450,000
CONTINGENCY @ 5% 20,000
CONTRACTORS DESIGN FEES @ 8% 37,600
PRELIMS AND OVERHEADS AT 15% 67,500
TOTAL INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 2,061 575,100
—

Jlarifications and Assumptions
Estimate based on Pellings Feasibility drawings and standard ETG specifications
GIA is approximate due to early stage of design
Costs are based on a Q3 2014 start on site
Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route
Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period
All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 3
It is assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber floor structure, sloped tiled
roofs) will be used
Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Hazardous material removal

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by TFL or other statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, S108, 5278 Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Page 128



Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report
Site: 1-22 (Garages) Hornbeam House, Buckhurst Hill, 1IG9 6JT

Rev: A

Ref:  1JC/srs/612.023
Date: September 2014

Page 129



Pellings

Contents

1. Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
2. Existing Site and Surroundings

3. Proposals

4. Planning Issues and Risks

5.
6
7
8
9

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

. Site Access and Buildability Issues

. Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
. Proposed Procurement Route

. Impact on Parking

10.Legals
11.Costs
12.Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices

A: Development Proposals — Drawings 612.023/P2-3A
Site Photographs

Existing Site Plan 201206014-C

Statutory Services Information

Information on Possible Contamination

Cost Build-up

nmoow

Page 130



1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

3.0

3.1

3.2.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

612023

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District
Council for a six year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having
possible development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP have been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites and
which will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located on the eastern side of Buckhurst Hill in a residential area
comprising houses and flats approximately 700m south of Buckhurst Hill station.

The site consists of 22 garages and hardstanding and it is accessed by way of a
4.5m driveway between residential sites (No. 34 Hornbeam Road and Hornbeam
House). The site adjoins residential plots (No. 24 Hornbeam Road and the
neighbouring houses are two storey terraced and Hornbeam House is a four/five
storey block of flats with communal amenity space). To the east is open space.

There is some vehicular access to the rear of properties 26 — 34a Hornbeam
Road.

Proposals
Read in conjunction with drawings 612.023.P2-3A attached at Appendix A.
The proposals are :

2 x 3 bed house, 2 storey
Provision of 6 parking spaces and garden/landscaped areas

Planning Issues and Risks
Relevant Planning Policies/Considerations

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest District Council is the
Combined Local Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area it is not designated for any
particular purposes in the Epping Forest District Council Combined Local Plan
1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006. The site does not lie in Flood Zone on the
Environment Agency Flood Map.

There are no specific policies which prevent the loss of existing garages although
policy ST4 (Road Safety) states that planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion or harm
to the character or appearance of the area. Parking spaces to meet with the
Council’'s standards are proposed for the new dwellings.

Page 131

1-22 Hornbeam House Buckhurst Hill REV A 1



4.4,

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.3.

5.4.

5.5.

612023

It will be necessary to undertake a Parking Survey and to prepare a Transport
Statement to demonstrate that the loss of the garages and proposed development
would not cause any parking shortfalls or harm to highway conditions or the
amenities of the area.

The site is located in the settlement of Buckhurst Hill and the proposal would be
consistent with policy CP7 which encourages the efficient use of existing built-up
areas by the ‘recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-used land to
accommodate the development’ and the ‘re-use of urban sites, which are no
longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in the foreseeable future, for
alternative land uses'.

The proposal would comply with policy H4A which states the need for a range of
dwellings, including an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet
identified housing need on a site-by-site basis.

The development of small family homes with rear gardens and private and
communal parking would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the
area and may comply with Epping Forest’s design policies and guidance.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Southern Gas

Cable and Wireless

Virgin Media

Thames Water

BT

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy
Environment Agency

UK Power Networks

Responses received to date are from the Environment Agency, National Grid, UK
Power Networks, Virgin Media and Thames Water.

The Environment Agency do not note any significant constraints but recommend
measures to achieve water efficiency and the use of Sustainable Urban Drainage
systems.

National Grid: No apparatus appears to cross the site

UK Power Networks: There is a possible main crossing the site (as indicated on
the drawings) which requires further clarity prior to design proposals being
finalised.

Virgin Media: No apparatus appears to cross the site

Thames Water: No apparatus appears to cross the site.

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Page 132

1-22 Hornbeam House Buckhurst Hill REV A 2



6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

8.0

8.1.

8.2.

612023

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be
any particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic
associated with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area and, accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and
within normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues
have been highlighted with use of the domestic garages, and also a former
horticultural nursery. Possible contaminants in respect of the former use as a
nursery are summarised and indicated within the note produced by EFDC
Planning and Economic Development Directorate at Appendix E.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may
include asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and
the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal
with any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

The site is accessed by way of a narrow driveway and as at present, our
proposals do not include a turning head for refuse or emergency vehicles.
Accordingly, subject to detailed design, an independent refuse storage area may
be required along with sprinkler provision to the new houses for fire protection.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

It should be noted that proposals may remove the vehicular access afforded to
some properties to the rear of Hornbeam Road and the legal right of such access
should be checked.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P2-3A it is not considered that Party Wall
matters will be relevant.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East
Thames Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage D planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Page 133

1-22 Hornbeam House Buckhurst Hill REV A 3



8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

612023

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be
subsequently confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East
Thames Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement
documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual
contract packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory
services, highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure
size of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East
Thames Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide —
September 2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as
statutory planning guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest
whole number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards
for new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking
surveys, to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any
planning or highway problems.

Legals

We have been provided with a Summary Report of legal matters from EFDC
Solicitors. The report makes reference to the suggested appropriation of land for
planning purposes which would extinguish any prior rights of way.

The report makes reference to possible rights of light risk. A blanket policy
against such risk might be considered.

There are vehicular accesses to the rear particularly of Nos. 32 and 34 Hornbeam
Road. There is some contradiction within the Legals Report advising how these
should be dealt with. Item 5.6 appears to indicate that a Deed of Variation would

Page 134

1-22 Hornbeam House Buckhurst Hill REV A 4



11.0

11.1.

12.0

12.1.

612023

be required although earlier advice advises that the rights of way would be
extinguished on appropriation of the land. This therefore requires clarification.

Costs

It is considered that a budget of £427,500.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

Recommendations and Conclusions

Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for
taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Pellings LLP

Page 135

1-22 Hornbeam House Buckhurst Hill REV A 5



Appendix A

Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023.P2-3A

Page 136



9¢

ﬁ

o1 o7™d

[]

& o)
9¢
7ZLO8

A

NOTES

Report all discrepancies, errors and omissions
Do not scale from this drawing

Verify all dimensions on site before commencing any work or
preparing shop drawings

All materials, components and workmanship are to comply with
all the relevant British Standards, Cedes of Practice, and
appropriate manufacturers recommendations that from time to

fime shall apply
For all specialist work, see relevant drawings

This drawing and design are copyright of PELLINGS LLP

Highview
House

UK Power |

Hornbeam

House

HORNBEAM RoAp

N
(@)

(O] i

- ?

\

N 1
I il

o I
11

| |
No refuse or emergency 1 I i
vehicle tuming |k power | :‘ - | ’

o |
= - ‘ :‘ i
/ : L I
1 I
/ |

1
I to 19
Hornbeam
House
Cv
(0))
o O
O . .
& =/ Highview
- House
A A

PRELIMINARY | &

TOTALS

Site Area 0.070 Ha

2 x 3 Bed Houses @ 93 sqm
6 Parking Spaces

Architecture & Planning m Building Surveying m Project Management m

Cost Consultancy m Co-ordination

Rev  Date Description Name Pellings LLP
24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY
1020 8460 9114 0208313 0019 e bromley@pellings.co.uk
. I www.pellings.co.uk
CLIENT PROJECT T
n “" East Thames HA EFDC House Building Programme
TITLE L. DATE SCALE DRAWN CHK
Existing and Proposed Plans NOV 2013 1:500 @A3 NP
o 612/023/P2-3 A
R

mll




Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 138



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 142



¢ == Epping Forest
I District Council

I,

P Rise

Sl s 3
[T alo T

Contains Orgnance Survey & Royal Mail Data
© Crown Copyright & Database Right 2011
EFOC License No: 100018534 2011

=~ 120079

Directorate of Environment & Streel Scene Project Content Date
CivicOffices Potential Site for Council House | Hornbeam House 04/07112
High Street Building Program Buckhurst Hill Scale
Srping, Essex. 1:1250 @ A4
CM16 482 Drawing No. .
Tel 01992 564000 Drawn By

201206014 - C Robert trwin

Page 143



Appendix D

Statutory Services Information

Page 144



nationalgrid

Adam Greenhalgh
Pellings

24 Widmore Road
Bromley

Kent

BR1 1RY

Date: 24/10/2013
Our Ref: NL_TE_Z6_35SW_042170
Your Ref: HORNBEAM HOUSE

~RE: Proposed Works, 1G9 6JU

Thank you for your enquiry which was received on 17/10/2013.

Plant Protection

National Grid

Block 1; Floor 1

Brick Kiln Street

Hinckley

LE10 ONA

E-mail: plantprotection@nationalgrid.com
Telephone: +44 (0)800 688588

National Grid Electricity Emergency Number:
0800 40 40 90*

National Gas Emergency Number:
0800 111 999*

* Available 24 hours, 7 days/week.

Calls may be recorded and monitored.

www.nationalgrid.com

Please note this response and any attached map(s) are valid for 28 days.

An assessment has been carried out with respect to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc's and National
Grid Gas plc's apparatus. Please note it does not cover the items listed in the section "Your Responsibilities
and Obligations", including gas service pipes and related apparatus.

For details of National Grid's network areas please see the National Grid website
(http://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/) or the enclosed documentation.

As your works are at a "proposed" stage, any maps and guidance provided are for information
purposes only. This is not approval to commence work. You must submit a "Scheduled Works"
enquiry at the earliest opportunity and failure to do this may lead to disruption to your plans and
~~wvorks. National Grid will endeavour to provide an initial assessment within 14 days of receipt of a
3cheduled Works enquiry and dependent on the outcome of this, further consultation may be

required.

In any event, for safety and legal reasons, works must not be carried out until a Scheduled
Works enquiry has been completed and final response received.

National Grid is a trading name for:
National Grid Electricity Transmission plc

Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N 5EH
Registered in England and Wales, No 2366977

National Grid is a trading name for:

National Grid Gas plc

Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N 5EH
Registered in England and Wales, No 2006000

Page 145




Your Responsibilities and Obligations

The "Assessment" Section below outlines the detailed requirements that must be followed when planning or
undertaking your scheduled activities at this location.

It is your responsibility to ensure that the information you have submitted is accurate and that all relevant
documents including links are provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you near
National Grid's apparatus, e.g. as contained within the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations.

This assessment solely relates to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc (NGET) and National Grid Gas plc
(NGG) apparatus. This assessment does NOT include:

o National Grid's legal interest (easements or wayleaves) in the land which restricts activity in proximity
to National Grid's assets in private land. You must obtain details of any such restrictions from the
landowner in the first instance and if in doubt contact National Grid.

e Gas service pipes and related apparatus

Recently installed apparatus

e Apparatus owned by other organisations, e.g. other gas distribution operators, local electricity
companies, other utilities, etc.

Itis YOUR responsibility to take into account whether the items listed above may be present and if they could
be affected by your proposed activities. Further "Essential Guidance" in respect of these items can be found
on the National Grid Website (http:/www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-

DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf).

This communication does not constitute any formal agreement or consent for any proposed development work;
either generally or with regard to National Grid's easements or wayleaves nor any planning or building
regulations applications.

NGG and NGET or their agents, servants or contractors do not accept any liability for any losses arising under

or in connection with this information. This limit on liability applies to all and any claims in contract, tort (including
' negligence), misrepresentation (excluding fraudulent misrepresentation), breach of statutory duty or
otherwise. This limit on liability does not exclude or restrict liability where prohibited by the law nor does it
supersede the express terms of any related agreements.

If you require further assistance please contact the National Grid Plant Protection team via e-mail (click here) or
via the contact details at the top of this response.

Yours faithfully

National Grid Plant Protection Team

Page 2 of 6

Page 146




ASSESSMENT

Affected Apparatus
The National Grid apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity of your proposed works is:

e Low or Medium pressure (below 2 bar) gas pipes and associated equipment. (As a result it is highly
likely that there are gas services and associated apparatus in the vicinity)

Requirements
BEFORE carrying out any work you must:

e Carefully read these requirements including the attached guidance documents and maps showing the
location of National Grid apparatus.

e Contact the landowner and ensure any proposed works in private land do not infringe National Grid's
legal rights (i.e. easements or wayleaves). If the works are in the road or footpath the relevant local
authority should be contacted.

e Ensure that all persons, including direct labour and contractors, working for you on or near National
Grid's apparatus follow the requirements of the HSE Guidance Notes HSG47 - 'Avoiding Danger from
Underground Services' and GS6 — 'Avoidance of danger from overhead electric power lines'. This
guidance can be downloaded free of charge at http://www.hse.gov.uk

e Inline with the above guidance, verify and establish the actual position of mains, pipes, cables,
services and other apparatus on site before any activities are undertaken.

Page 3 of 6

Page 147



GUIDANCE

Excavating Safely - Avoiding injury when working near gas pipes:
http://www.nationalarid.com/NR/rdonlyres/2D2EEA97-B213-459C-9A26-
18361C6E0BOD/25249/Digsafe leaflet3e2finalamends061207.pdf

Standard Guidance

Essential Guidance document:
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6 D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-

DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf

General Guidance document:
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/55C13C4D-A1AA-4B13-BFDA-
1CF59F88B326/51318/GeneralGuidance.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of gas pipes guidance (Credit card):
http.//www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/A3D37677-6641-476C-9DDA-

E89949052829/44257/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCard.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of electricity cables guidance (Credit card):
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/35DDEC6D-D754-4BA5-AF3C-

D607D05A25C2/44858/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCardelectricitycables.pdf

Copies of all the Guidance Documents can also be downloaded from the National Grid Website:
http://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/downloads/

Page 4 of 6

Page 148



ENQUIRY SUMMARY

Received Date
17/10/2013

Your Reference
HORNBEAM HOUSE

Location
Centre Point: 541997, 193306

X Extent: 22

Y Extent: 34

Postcode: IG9 6JU

Location Description: 1G9 6JU

-~ Map Options
Paper Size: A4

Orientation: LANDSCAPE

Requested Scale: 500

Actual Scale: 1:1250 (GAS)

Real World Extents: 361m x 186m (GAS)

Recipients
pprsteam @uk.ngrid.com

Enquirer Details
Organisation Name: Pellings

Contact Name: Adam Greenhalgh

Email Address: bromley @pellings.co.uk

Telephone: 0208 460 9114

Address: 24 Widmore Road, Bromley, Kent, BR1 1RY

Description of Works
~ MAP FOR INFORMATION PURPQSES

Enquiry Type
Proposed Works

Activity Type

General Excavation

Work Types
Work Type: Plans Only

Page 6 of 6

Page 149



Adam Greenhalgh

SPHatfield <SPHatfield@environment-agency.gov.uk>

From:

Sent: 23 October 2013 17:49

To: Adam Greenhalgh

Subject: RE: Epping Forest DC - potential development sites
Dear Adam,

Further to your letters dated 16 October (your ref: AG/dh/612.023/05), we have the following comments to
make on the specific sites listed below (please note that comments on three sites — Rear of shops,
Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill; Pentlow Way, Buckhurst Hill and Site B, Marlescroft Way, Loughton — will
follow on or before 7 November due to additional site constraints).

Sites: Burton Road, Debden

White Hills, Loughton

Thatchers Close, Loughton

Site A, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles’) Lane, Loughton
Site B, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles’) Lane, Loughton
Site A, Chequers Road, Loughton

Site B, Chequers Road, Loughton

Site A, Langley Meadow, Loughton

Site B, Langley Meadow, Loughton

Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill

Hornbeam House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Bourne House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Bushfields, Loughton

Etheridge Road, Loughton

Lower Alderton Hall Lane, Loughton

Ladyfields, Loughton

Kirby Close, Loughton

Chester Road, Loughton

Hillyfields, Loughton

Comments

As we are in an area of serious water stress, we endorse the efficient use of water resources. Residential
(#~evelopments such as your proposal should take advantage of water efficient technologies. This is in line
with Epping Forest's local policy CP5 which states that the efficient use of water is encouraged through

water efficient appliances and rainwater harvesting for example.

1
Page 150



cvery opportunity should be taken to maximise Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) such as green
roofs, ponds, swales and permeable pavements, to alleviate surface water runoff. | have attached a copy of
our SuDS guidance, which contains the SuDS hierarchy, to help you with your designs. The methods at the
top of the hierarchy are preferred because they are beneficial in terms of sustainability and biodiversity.
The hierarchy should be used in descending order. Tanks should only be used as a last resort. Epping
Forest’s local policy U3B on sustainable drainage systems advocates this approach.

As the sites are all under a hectare in Flood Zone 1, they fall within cell F5 of our Flood Risk Standing
Advice consultation matrix. Epping Forest Local Planning Authority will therefore be responsible for
assessing flood risk at these sites.

Kind regards,

Clark Gordon

Sustainable Places Planning Advisor
Environment Agency

North East Thames Area - Hatfield Team
01707 632308

The climate is changing. Are vou?

Y auDRG sory

CLIMATE READY

&4 please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?

Information in this message may be confidential and may be legally privileged. If you
have received this messages by mistake, please notify the sender immediately, delete it
and do not copy it to anyone else.

We have checked this email and its attachments for viruses. But you should still check
any attachment before opening

We may have to make this message and
Freedom of Information Act, Data P
attachments sent to or from any Enviro
someone other than the sender or re

i)

to it public if asked to under the

>t or for litigation. Email messages and
gency address may also be accessed by
business purposes.

Page 151




U
Q
«Q
@
= .
0] 2
N
ID: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_042170}View extent: 361m, 196m [Map not to be used for construction |Map 1 0of 1 (GAS)
" s LP MAINS This plan shows those pipes owned by National Grid Gas plc in its role as a Licensed Gas Transporter (GT). IMAPS Plot Server Version 1.7.6
USER: roy.xjones = Gas pipes owned by other GTs, or otherwise privately owned, may be present in this area. Information A ks
MP MAINS
DATE: 24/10/2013 IP MAINS e S A . [with regard to such pipes should be obtained from the relevant owners. The information shown on this plan is " s
3 given without warranty, the accuracy thereof cannot be guaranteed. Service pipes, valves, syphons, stub connections,
DATA DATE: 15/10/2013 | LHP MAINS etc., are not shown but their presence should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by n a I O n a r I
REF: HORNBEAM HOUSE NHP MAINS e National Grid Gas plc or their agents, servants or contractors for any error or omission. Safe digging
om' - 1 o5 practices, in accordance with HS(G)47, must be used to verify and establish the actual position of mains, )
MAP REF: TQ4193 :’ il acib A m pipes, services and other apparatus on site before any mechanical plant is used. It is your responsibility to ensure Requested by: Pellings
CENTRE: 541997, 193306 oiDA A Colot Landeca o that this information is provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you on or near gas This plan is reproduced from or based on the
lapparatus. The information included on this plan should not be referred to beyond a period of 28 days from the date OS map by National Grid Gas plc, with the sanction
of issue. of the controller of HM Stationery Office.
_— N Depth of \/ —_— O Diameter $ Material Crown Copyright Reserved. Ordnance Survey
Cover Change Change Licence number 100024886




DIpaw

AOERLCO0 | RAAI Y Uaar)  As0ng e nomnan) e g P ] weer WA L4 pereped i e wig)
vy g e v KT ) b g g et
et Lo )

0 n - o
radapn e bt pepe w4 rvnmde
“arpamyy

v ——

isauieun

_ 1ouaen

yn-o2'sBuyed @ybjeyusaibe _

Bu.-!lulfsl-l-lt.!.Ii‘:iilitﬁnsh‘ifs!‘ljg,;

3 wwalophim oy ‘wreyy Bls 1
wrase
o ral g it e o0 Lana Ay e

usuest ‘19ng

£801L:L 0jpog EHOLYE :2eq

- e by pmgrms 0 s
i.}.:iglslu:z.uiis.-rssnﬂg

PR W g eretrincn o L onge * o] reiaea

FROmgY, 3 Crw ey 7 o) 8w i § DTS 1w L2 2 e ) BOw [eoey] Uee e s jeac
i s S L 89 L 8l TN e AN LB P AORD B e LT g B
B L T T e T e e
P e - L IO

60ZB10001 AvAing wurupQ | 10g siybn esvqmep pue Wiiddon usoin ()

PV UR|d SWoaam )

£L/00/SZ :pmepdn B1BQ  £'BGEEGL'TOLELYS DU dopy

[T | b
LIt _ 1
= —
| al, |1
—= o F
5
focc _
—
=)
f—
2 =l
f

LTI

i
[
f—
—
f—
]
i |
| ST
—

114

N

| =
g5
e
]
=
dd |
4 [ &
=

T i e
eG4 "1‘:(_|le

Page 153




y
= KiRIse ] = 7
: 4 SR i
L .! ~ : 3 /¥
|- = -
e
l L&
| | |
L i1 |
1 it
|-
e -
m | I
= Tm.\:
| |}
! P
P
pall b=
\ )
L Lt L L
L] = |
I T & ——
P
— I
- | = o
] ——— =]
=

{¢) Crown Capynight and databasae rights 2012 Ordnanca Survay 100010345

Date: 23/1013

Scale: 1:1083

Map Centre: 541970.2,193359.7  Data updated: 16/08/13

Clean Water Plan A4

Based on the Ordnance Survey Map with the sanction of the Controller of
H.M. Stalionary Olfice License Number:- 100019345.This map is 1o be
used for the purposes of viewing the location of Thames Waler plant only,
Any other uses of the map data orf urther copies are not permilted. The
position of the apparatus shown on this plan is given withoul obligalion
and warranly, and the accuracy cannot be guaranteed. This inlormation is
valid lor the date printed. Service pipes are not shown but their presence
should be anticipated. No habildy of any kind whatsoover 15 accepled by
Thamues Water for any oiror of omission. The actual position ol mans and
services must be veriliod on sile belore any wotks are undoertaken,

Water Main
Private Water
Froposed Water

Abandoned Assel

ceammsnmmannEn

Meter
Valve
Hydrant

Lnd Item

e
_—
@
®

—man:zm_us@ua_zzom.B.cx

Thames
Water

Page 154



GGT obed

(¢) Crown Copyrkht and a tights 2012 Q cu Survay 100019346 Dale: 23/10/13

0 9408
| ; —
l i 17‘![ l A L I" Fi Sun Sta | )
T ‘_j‘t‘
LI L
| — (Ti
- A
R T ‘}’ _h_‘:,
f_ﬁ s’ —
= I ‘ T
) £ P
I N ] i=
0
;"_'_‘_-' g 4 5

i
'
= |
—
——

orq >

225mm

= %
g 0 |
@ *S1E
o .
(3]
|
9203 [
8 | | I,““;
5 | oL

Scale: 1:1083

Map Centre: 541970.2,193359.7 Dala updated: 16/08/13

wed

Waslewalter Plan A4

Based on the Ordnance Survey Map with the sanction of the Controlier of H.M. Stationary
Office License Number:- 100019345, This map is to be used lor the purposes of viewing the
location of Thames Water plant only. Any other uses of the map dala orf urther copios are not
permitted. The paosition of the apparatus shown on this plan is given without obligation and
warranty, and the accuracy cannot be guaranteed. This informalion is valid for the date
printed. Service pipes are not shown bul their presence should be anticipated. No liability of
any kind whatsoever is accopled by Thames Waler for any eror or omission, The actual
position of mains and services must be verfied on site belore any works are undertaken.

Foul Sawer

Stoca Seavent
Cormtmma Sewa
Aotk onus] S

Prssuie Man S —————— S S

Friate Assat ————— —— —
chinm darenan vBoart iype,
Prgs e Ayt sEsmEmnssEaBREEAA

e UL T

Fond Manhicla
Skace Mahtiol
Crandariesd Mandwke
Adsarchoned Manioss
Gttt Klanhion
(ST

S Boasekiry

o® W9O0O%

Iagreanhalgh@pellings.co.uk

Thames

Water
N e

i




Page 156



1
il
!

i
i

/ST abed

NV e
W\ gl e ——.
RN\ s M S ——
\\\ "/ T — B S S !. 2
— """'“‘"“"""'"’:::‘T::-'-';:‘---L \ \ ToT—S -
4T LR Y ;" H ‘o —
WA i .
/" ‘ \_. :‘i .
/';/ \ \‘ ‘l° ‘\
f \\ ' £ \
i ‘.
e\ : \
- - AW\ 5 IR S
N \} L} \
| \\ \\ A \
f i' ) |\ \\\ £ \
j ! \ i 1
- Wi b |
: H % ii‘ ; ]
' ! il \ . H y
. VL A y
f ! ‘\\ \'\ 1 H
. P 1A £
: P b g
D A B
B m-.m_,_ g [ ',\",\ X i e
! ; ! . ‘] :»-'
o N i S
- [ L L
o, &0m 7 2%m l-'
.. PRIMARY CABLES

. . o —

UK Power Networks
Plon Provision

fore Hamiel
IPSVACH

Suffolk

P3 8AA

Tel 0800 0565 866
Fax 08701 963782

om ) om tm
e L T e R Ty

Plotted 0 : 22/10/2013
Plotled By : Kov Singh
Piot Description : Contents of plol menu fine title_line. !

Contents of plot menu line tille_tine_2

Map Centre : TQ4203SW

Ak

EXTRA HIGH VOLTAGE CABLES (EFV) 22.000 TO 132,000 Volls

I. .
Depth normally 750mm cover in cajriageway & 600mm cover in footway.

within one metre of lhese cable routes

Before diggi |
Telephone %330 036 5866 in orderithal the Company's apparatus may be focoled

any necessary proteclion works agregd.

N.B. THRUST BORERS OR MOLES MUST NOT BE USED WATHIN THE VICINITY OF ANY Ch
BELONGING T0 UK POWER NETWORKS WITHOUT FIRST CONTACTING THIS COMPANY.

1. The;position of the opparatus shalin on this drowing is believed to be correct but
landmorks may have been altered sidce the apporotus wos installed. .
2. The exact posilion of lhe apparatgs should be verified — use approved cable ovai
prior to excovalion using suiteble hafid tools. .

J. It is essential thot trial holes are Larefully made avoiding the use of mechanical
picks uniil the exact location of all oables hove been determined. .

4, k must be ossumed thot there is o, service cable into each properly, lamp colum

}

sign, etc, . .
5. All cables must be treated os beigg live unless proved olherwise by UK Power Ne
6. The ‘information provided ‘must bejgiven to all people working near UK Power Nel:

equipment. Do not use plans mare thdn 3 months after the issue date for gxcovolit
7. Please be oware thal electric cab¥s/lines belonging to olher owners of licensed

distribution systems may be presentjond it is your responsibilily lo identify Lheir loc

oo o
-

0 ;



Appendix E

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District
Council by way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential
contamination across all the primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites
that move forward to Planning Applications.

Page 158



Appendix F

Cost Build-up

Page 159



Indicative Estimate of Cost
for East Thames HA

28 November 2013

Gross Internal floor area m2 ft2
Affordable Flat Units 0 0
Allowance for communal space @ 20% 0 0
Affordable House Units 186 2,002
TOTAL GIA 186 2,002
Item  Element Qty Unit Rate Total
£lunit £
1.0 Demolition
1.1 Demolition 336 m? 50 16,802
2.2 Site clearance 363 m? 10 3,627
1.2 Allowance for removal of asbestos 22 No 800 17,600
Sub-total say 40,000
2.0 Affordable Flat units (xx nr. units)
2.1 Flats Private areas 0 m? 1,350 0
2.2 Flats communal areas (20% allowed) 0 m? 900 0
Sub-total say 0
3.0 Affordable House units (02 nr. units)
. 3.1 House areas 186 m? 1,250 233,000
Sub-total say 230,000
4.0 Abnormals / E/o and External Works
4.1 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 161 m? 40 6,000
4.2 Communal Gardens 216 m? 30 6,000
4.3 Access road, parking and turning 206 m? 65 13,000
4.4 Pedestrian paving 0 m? 50 Incl.
4.5 Cross over / highways adaptions 2 item 2,000 4,000
4.6 Allowance for contaminated ground 0 item Excl.
4.7 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 115 m 160 18,000
4.8 Allowance for achieving CfSh Level 3 2nr 4,500 9,000
Sub-total say 60,000
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 330,000
CONTINGENCY @ 5% 20,000
CONTRACTORS DESIGN FEES @ 8% 28,000
PRELIMS AND OVERHEADS AT 15% 49,500
TOTAL INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 2,298 427,500

—

slarifications and Assumptions

Estimate based on Pellings Feasibility drawings and standard ETG specifications

GIA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on a Q3 2014 start on site

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme’ contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 3

Itis assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber floor structure, sloped tiled
roofs) will be used

Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Hazardous material removal

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by TFL or other statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, S108, $278 Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Page 160




Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report
Site: 12-36 Bourne House (Garages), Buckhurst Hill, IG9 6JY

Rev: A

Ref:  1JC/srs/612.023
Date: September 2014

Page 161



Pellings

Contents

1. Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
2. Existing Site and Surroundings

3. Proposals

4. Planning Issues and Risks

5.
6
7
8
9

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

. Site Access and Buildability Issues

. Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
. Proposed Procurement Route

. Impact on Parking

10.Legals
11.Costs
12.Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices

A: Development Proposals — Drawings 612.023/P2-4A
Site Photographs

Existing Site Plan 201206014-AA

Statutory Services Information

Information on Possible Contamination

Cost Build-up

nmoow

Page 162



1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

3.0

3.1

3.2.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

612023

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District
Council for a six year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having
possible development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP have been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites and
which will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located on the eastern side of Buckhurst Hill in a residential area
comprising houses and flats approximately half a mile south of Buckhurst Hill
station.

The site consists of 25 garages and hardstanding and it is accessed by way of a
3.5m driveway between properties on Hornbeam Road. The site is situated at the
rear of nos. 54-60 Hornbeam Road which are within a two storey building with a
rear garden. The adjoining sites are also residential, including Bourne House,
which is a four storey block of flats. The site adjoins a sports ground to the rear
(i.e. east).

There are a number of mature trees either on or close to the site.
Proposals

Read in conjunction with drawings 612.023.P2-4A attached at Appendix A.
The proposals are :

2 x 3 bed houses, 2 storey
Provision of 7 parking spaces and garden/landscaped areas

Planning Issues and Risks
Relevant Planning Policies/Considerations

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest District Council is the
Combined Local Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area it is not designated for any
particular purposes in the Epping Forest District Council Combined Local Plan
1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006. The site does not lie in Flood Zone on the
Environment Agency Flood Map.

There are no specific policies which prevent the loss of existing garages although
policy ST4 (Road Safety) states that planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion or harm
to the character or appearance of the area. Parking spaces to meet with the
Council’'s standards are proposed for the new dwellings.

Page 163

12-36 Bourne House (Garages) Rev A 1



4.4,

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.3.

5.4.

5.5.

6.0

6.1.

612023

It will be necessary to undertake a Parking Survey and to prepare a Transport
Statement to demonstrate that the loss of the garages and proposed development
would not cause any parking shortfalls or harm to highway conditions or the
amenities of the area.

The site is located in the settlement of Buckhurst Hill and the proposal would be
consistent with policy CP7 which encourages the efficient use of existing built-up
areas by the ‘recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-used land to
accommodate the development’ and the ‘re-use of urban sites, which are no
longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in the foreseeable future, for
alternative land uses'.

The proposal would comply with policy H4A which states the need for a range of
dwellings, including an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet
identified housing need on a site-by-site basis.

The development of small family homes with rear gardens and private and
communal parking would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the
area and may comply with Epping Forest's design policies and guidance.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Southern Gas

Cable and Wireless

Virgin Media

Thames Water

BT

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy
Environment Agency

UK Power Networks

Responses received to date are from the Environment Agency, National Grid, UK
Power Networks, Virgin Media and Thames Water.

The Environment Agency do not note any significant constraints but recommend
measures to achieve water efficiency and the use of Sustainable Urban Drainage
systems.

National Grid: No apparatus appears to cross the site

UK Power Networks: No apparatus appears to cross the site

Virgin Media: No apparatus appears to cross the site

Thames Water: No apparatus appears to cross the site

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be
any particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic

associated with a developmlgrg af ethljs_ 8zt_ure.

12-36 Bourne House (Garages) Rev A 2



6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

8.0

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

612023

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area and, accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and
within normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues
have been highlighted with use of the domestic garages, and also a former
horticultural nursery. Possible contaminants in respect of the former use as a
nursery are summarised and indicated within the note produced by EFDC
Planning and Economic Development Directorate at Appendix E.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may
include asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and
the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal
with any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

The site is accessed by way of a narrow driveway and as at present, our
proposals do not include a turning head for refuse or emergency vehicles.
Accordingly, subject to detailed design, an independent refuse storage area may
be required along with sprinkler provision to the new houses for fire protection.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P2-4A, it is not considered that Party Wall
matters will be relevant.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East
Thames Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage D planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be
subsequently confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East
Thames Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement
documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual
contract packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory
services, highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

Page 165

12-36 Bourne House (Garages) Rev A 3



8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

11.0

11.1.

612023

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure
size of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East
Thames Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’'s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide -
September 2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as
statutory planning guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

¢ 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest
whole number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards
for new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking
surveys, to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any
planning or highway problems.

Legals

We have been provided with a Summary Report of legal matters from EFDC
Solicitors. The report makes reference to the suggested appropriation of land for
planning purposes which would extinguish any prior rights of way.

The report makes reference to possible rights of light risk. A blanket policy
against such risk might be considered.

There is a possible right of way for Estuary Housing Association over the corner of
the site (access from Newton Court). This would appear to be unaffected by
proposals however.

Costs
It is considered that a budget of £427,500.00 should be allowed for this scheme,

inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

Page 166

12-36 Bourne House (Garages) Rev A 4



12.0

12.1.

612023

Recommendations and Conclusions

Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for
taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Pellings/XLP

Page 167

12-36 Boumne House (Garages) Rev A



Appendix A

Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023.P2-4A

Page 168



Playc

Playg

Bourne
Bourne

House

TOTALS

Site Area 0.064 Ha
2 x 3 Bed Houses @ 93 sqm
7 Parking Spaces

FPavilion Pavilion

N
NOTES c
P R E L I M I N RY Rev Date Descrlptlon Name Pellings LLP Architecture & Planning m Building Surveying m Project Management m
A 24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY Cost Consultancy m CDM Co-ordination
Report all discrepancies, errors and omissions el £020 8460 9114 020 8313 0019 e bromley@pellings.co.uk
Do not scale from this drawing

www.pellings.co.uk

Verify all dimensions on site before commencing any work or

preparing shop drawings CLIENT PROJECT .

All materials, components and workmanship are to comply with East Thames HA EFDC House BU|Idmg Preramme

all the relevant British Standards, Cedes of Practice, and TITLE L. DATE SCALE ] DRAWN CHK
appropriate manufacturers recommendations that from time to Existing and Proposed Plans NOV 2013 1:500 @A3 NP

fime shall apply Bourne House DRAWING No

For all specialist work, see relevant drawings 6 1 2 ‘ 023 ‘ P2 4 ‘ A
|

This drawing and design are co ht of PELLINGS LLP
is drawing sign ar pyrig




Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 170



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 174



Date

04/07/12

Scale

1:1250 @ A4

Urawn By
Robert Irwin

Content
B

House

Hombeam Road

Buckhurst Hill

? e
05
o O
w O
20
om"
o2
wo
L\

Project

Potential Site for Council House ourne
Building Program

Drawing No.

201206014 - A

Directorate of Envirgnment & Street Scene

Civic Offices

Page 175



Appendix D

Statutory Services Information

Page 176



Plant Protection
1 ¢ National Grid

natlonalgrld Block 1; Floor 1
Brick Kiln Street
Hinckley
LE10 ONA
E-mail: plantprotection@nationalgrid.com
Telephone: +44 (0)800 688588

Adam Greenhalgh

Pellings National Grid Electricity Emergency Number:
24 Widmore Road 0800 40 40 90"
Bromley

National Gas Emergency Number:
Kent 0800 111 999*

* Available 24 hours, 7 days/week.
BR1 1RY Calls may be recorded and monitored.

www.nationalgrid.com

Date: 23/10/2013
Our Ref: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_041948
Your Ref: Bourne House. 1a079

RE: Proposed Works, 1G9 6JY, Bourne house, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Thank you for your enquiry which was received on 17/10/2013.
Please note this response and any attached map(s) are valid for 28 days.

An assessment has been carried out with respect to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc's and National
Grid Gas plc's apparatus. Please note it does not cover the items listed in the section "Your Responsibilities
and Obligations”, including gas service pipes and related apparatus.

For details of National Grid's network areas please see the National Grid website
(http://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/) or the enclosed documentation.

As your works are at a "proposed" stage, any maps and guidance provided are for information
purposes only. This is not approval to commence work. You must submit a "Scheduled Works"
enquiry at the earliest opportunity and failure to do this may lead to disruption to your plans and
works. National Grid will endeavour to provide an initial assessment within 14 days of receipt of a
Scheduled Works enquiry and dependent on the outcome of this, further consultation may be
required.

In any event, for safety and legal reasons, works must not be carried out until a Scheduled
Works enquiry has been completed and final response received.

Mational Grid is a trading name for: National Grid is a trading name for:

Mational Grid Electricity Transmission plc Mational Grid Gas plc

Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N 5EH Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N SEH

Registered in England and Wales, No 2366977 P Rc—gistereiin7En land and Wales, No 2006000
age 177



Your Responsibilities and Obligations

The "Assessment" Section below outlines the detailed requirements that must be followed when planning or
undertaking your scheduled activities at this location.

It is your responsibility to ensure that the information you have submitted is accurate and that all relevant
documents including links are provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you near
National Grid's apparatus, e.g. as contained within the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations.

This assessment solely relates to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc (NGET) and National Grid Gas plc
(NGG) apparatus. This assessment does NOT include:

e National Grid's legal interest (easements or wayleaves) in the land which restricts activity in proximity
to National Grid's assets in private land. You must obtain details of any such restrictions from the
landowner in the first instance and if in doubt contact National Grid.

e Gas service pipes and related apparatus

Recently installed apparatus

e Apparatus owned by other organisations, e.g. other gas distribution operators, local electricity
companies, other utilities, etc.

It is YOUR responsibility to take into account whether the items listed above may be present and if they could
be affected by your proposed activities. Further "Essential Guidance" in respect of these items can be found
on the National Grid Website (http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf).

This communication does not constitute any formal agreement or consent for any proposed development work;
either generally or with regard to National Grid's easements or wayleaves nor any planning or building
regulations applications.

NGG and NGET or their agents, servants or contractors do not accept any liability for any losses arising under
or in connection with this information. This limit on liability applies to all and any claims in contract, tort (including
negligence), misrepresentation (excluding fraudulent misrepresentation), breach of statutory duty or
otherwise. This limit on liability does not exclude or restrict liability where prohibited by the law nor does it
supersede the express terms of any related agreements.

If you require further assistance please contact the National Grid Plant Protection team via e-mail (click here) or
via the contact details at the top of this response.

Yours faithfully

National Grid Plant Protection Team

Page 178 Page 2 of 6



ASSESSMENT

Affected Apparatus
The National Grid apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity of your proposed works is:

e Low or Medium pressure (below 2 bar) gas pipes and associated equipment. (As a result it is highly
likely that there are gas services and associated apparatus in the vicinity)

Requirements
BEFORE carrying out any work you must:

e Carefully read these requirements including the attached guidance documents and maps showing the
location of National Grid apparatus.

e Contact the landowner and ensure any proposed works in private land do not infringe National Grid's
legal rights (i.e. easements or wayleaves). If the works are in the road or footpath the relevant local
authority should be contacted.

o Ensure that all persons, including direct labour and contractors, working for you on or near National
Grid's apparatus follow the requirements of the HSE Guidance Notes HSG47 - ‘Avoiding Danger from
Underground Services' and GS6 — 'Avoidance of danger from overhead electric power lines'. This
guidance can be downloaded free of charge at http://www.hse.qov.uk

e Inline with the above guidance, verify and establish the actual position of mains, pipes, cables,
services and other apparatus on site before any activities are undertaken.

Page 179 Page 3 of 6



GUIDANCE

Excavating Safely - Avoiding injury when working near gas pipes:
h_ttp:s’;’www.nationaIqrid.comfNFlfrdonlvresf2D2EEA97-B21 3-459C-9A26-
18361C6EOBOD/25249/Digsafe _leaflet3e2finalamends061 207 .pdf

Standard Guidance

Essential Guidance document:
httn:ffwww.nationalqrid.com;’NHfrdonlvresfﬁD6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/5131 9/EssentialGuidance.pdf

General Guidance document:
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/55C13C4D-A 1 AA-4B13-BFDA-
1CF59F88B326/51318/GeneralGuidance.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of gas pipes guidance (Credit card):
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/A3D37677-6641-476C-9DDA-
E89949052829/44257/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCard.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of electricity cables guidance (Credit card):
httn:ffwww.nationalqrid.com!NF{frdonivresfaSDDECGD-D?54-4BA5-AF30-
DSO?D05A2502f44858!ExcavatinaSafevareditCardelectricitvcab]es.ndf

Copies of all the Guidance Documents can also be downloaded from the National Grid Website:
http://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/downloads/

Page 180 Page 4 of 6



988¥Z000L Jequinu eauealy

Aeaing eaueUpIQ ‘pantasay JyBukdon umoin
"9210 Aiouonmys WH Jo sejjonuod ayj jo

uofaues ey} yum *oid se puo [euonen Aq dew o
o) uo paseq Jo woy paanpoidas sj ueid sy |

sBujjied :Aq pajsenbay

pLiIBjeuoieu

9L’} uoisiap t1anag joid wn‘(_zﬁ

‘onss| jof

abueys
[eusjeN

abueyn 13400
% Jajpweq O uoudis > o yidag Z BNEA

o1ep oy) woyy shep gz jo pouad e puokeq o} podsejol oq jou pinoys ueid siy} uo pepnjoul uogeuloju) oy | ‘smesedde
seb Jeau Jo uo noA ioj Bupjiom (s10}aE1U03 JO Inoqe| 19041p Joyye) suosied lie 0} pepiacid si uoReWLIOJUI SIY) JBY)
ainsua o} Ajijiqisuodsal 1noA st ) *pasn sj jueld |estueyoew Aue aiojeq oys uo smyetedde layio pue saaines 'sedid
‘sulew jo uopised [enjoe sy} ysiqelso pue Ajaa o] pasn eq 1snw ‘s p(9)SH Upm eaueplodae uj ‘saanoeld

BuiBBip ejes ‘uoiss|wo Jo Joue Aue Joj SI0}ENUDI JO SJUBAIES ‘sjusBe 118y 1o 9|d seS) puo |euogen

£q pejdeooe si teasosieym pury Aue jo funqey) on "pejediogue aq pinoys eaussaid 1oy Ing UMOYS JoU Bl 9|

‘suoaaUU0o qnys ‘suoydAs ‘seajea 'sodid oainleg “pasjuesenB oq jouues joalay Aoeinooe oy ‘Ajueiem Jnoypm uoalb

St ueld SIL} UO UMOYS UORELLIOJU| BY | "SIOUMO JUBAB|S) B} woy peulejqo eq pinoys sedid yans o} preBos yum
uopelojuj "eale sty ul Juaseid oq Aew ‘paumo Ajsjeaud esimIaylo 1o 's] 5 Jayjo Aq paumo sadid seg
"(19) Jopodsurl) ses pasusar e se ojol sy uj ojd sED pUY |euoneN Aq peumo sed)d esoy smoys ueid siy )

adeaspue Inojod by uo
0GZ L1 ajeos ajewnosddy

Wez |

jwo

PSLEBL 'BE6LPS :IYLINID
EBLYOL 434 dVIW

——r— | — SN AHN

6/08] "9sNoH auwinog 43y

SNIVIN dHT

€102/01/S1 ‘31va viva

o — SNIYI dI
— SMIVIN dW

€102/01/e2 :31vQA

SNIYIN 41

usjoyuajje’elne| :y3snN

(SV9) 1 jo | dep|

uonaNJISU09 10j Pasn aq o} jou dey

WOGL 'WLYE JuslXe MaIA|

8¥6LF0” MSE 9Z 3LIN QI

Page 181




ENQUIRY SUMMARY

Received Date
17/10/2013

Your Reference
Boume House. 1a079

Location

Centre Point: 541938, 193154
X Extent: 49

Y Extent: 52

Postcode: 1G9 6JY

Location Description: 1G9 6JY, Bourne house, Hombeam Road, Buckhurst Hill

Map Options
Paper Size: A4

Orientation: LANDSCAPE

Requested Scale: 500

Actual Scale: 1:1250 (GAS)

Real World Extents: 361m x 196m (GAS)

Recipients
pprsteam @ uk.ngrid.com

Enquirer Details

Organisation Name: Pellings

Contact Name: Adam Greenhalgh

Email Address: bromley @pellings.co.uk

Telephone: 0208 460 9114

Address: 24 Widmore Road, Bromiey, Kent, BR1 1RY

Description of Works

Plans request for potential development site.

Enquiry Type
Proposed Works

Activity Type

Development Project

Work Types
Work Type: Plans Only

Page 182

Page 6 of 6



-

Adam Greenhalgh

O R —
From: SPHatfield <SPHatfield@environment-agency.gov.uk>
Sent: 23 October 2013 17:49
To: Adam Greenhalgh
Subject: RE: Epping Forest DC - potential development sites
Dear Adam,

Further to your letters dated 16 October (your ref: AG/dh/612.023/05), we have the following comments to
make on the specific sites listed below (please note that comments on three sites — Rear of shops,
Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill; Pentlow Way, Buckhurst Hill and Site B, Marlescroft Way, Loughton — will
follow on or before 7 November due to additional site constraints).

Sites: Burton Road, Debden

White Hills, Loughton

Thatchers Close, Loughton

Site A, Pyries (note: should be 'Pyries’) Lane, Loughton
Vo Site B, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles’) Lane, Loughton
s - Site A, Chequers Road, Loughton

Site B, Chequers Road, Loughton

Site A, Langley Meadow, Loughton

Site B, Langley Meadow, Loughton

Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill

Hornbeam House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill

Bourne House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hil

Bushfields, Loughton

Etheridge Road, Loughton

Lower Alderton Hall Lane, Loughton

Ladyfields, Loughton

Kirby Close, Loughton

Chester Road, Loughton

Hillyfields, Loughton

Comments
#As we are in an area of serious water stress, we endorse the efficient use of water resources. Residential
~developments such as your proposal should take advantage of water efficient technologies. This is in line
with Epping Forest's local policy CP5 which states that the efficient use of water is encouraged through
water efficient appliances and rainwater harvesting for example.

Page 183



-

We suggest you use water efficiency measures and aim to achieve 105 litres/person/day. This is equivalent
to level 3/4 for water within the Code for Sustainable Homes. Achieving this standard within new homes

can be accomplished at very littie additional cost, and is significantly cheaper than retrofitting such
measures later.

Page 1384



-

Every opportunity should be taken to maximise Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) such as green
roofs, ponds, swales and permeable pavements, to alleviate surface water runoff. | have attached a copy of
our SuDS guidance, which contains the SuDS hierarchy, to help you with your designs. The methods at the
top of the hierarchy are preferred because they are beneficial in terms of sustainability and biodiversity.
The hierarchy should be used in descending order. Tanks should only be used as a last resort. Epping
Forest's local policy U3B on sustainable drainage systems advocates this approach.

As the sites are all under a hectare in Flood Zone 1, they fall within cell F5 of our Flood Risk Standing
Advice consultation matrix. Epping Forest Local Planning Authority will therefore be responsible for
assessing flood risk at these sites.

Kind regards,

Clark Gordon

Sustainable Places Planning Advisor
Environment Agency

North East Thames Area - Hatfield Team
01707 632308

IHETN
IMATE READY

The climate is changing. Are you?

&5 please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?

nf al y privileged. If you
>, e nediately, delete i
We have checked this email and izs attachments for viruses. But vou should still che

nt before opening it.

to under the
Email messages and
€ accessed by

2]

o

e
T

Ot

G
achments sent to or fro
3 r oo

ymeone

tn b m =

0O

o)
ot
o gl )}
[
t
o
o
it
m

)

Page 185



oaQT ABp 1

“EiSub Sta

St Elisabeth's
Church

7 3

/

(€) Crown Copyright and datab rights 2011 Ord

Survey 100016200

Date: 24/10/13

Scale: 1:1083

Map Centre: 541907.8,193144.8 Data updated: 25/08/13

Telecoms Plan A4

Importand Information - pleass mad

Postondes pof, which can be dosniosded from

mmdhm-nmm Spparstia. Wa have trind I maks £ sa sccursis ss possbile but wa cannat
‘wartant ks scouracy, In addiion, wi caution thal within Virgn Media spparaius thers may be inetances whers msina vofage
mmmmmmymmmmm Furfhar details can b found using the "Aflscisd

Therstare, RMMWNH;MM”!M“WW mwmmmm b o vcsiay o Vi Macle

mpparst.s.

agents, Virgn Medis
mmumﬂ-ﬂwmmm thag plan.
This pisn i produced bry Virgin Maedia Limvisd from Ordrance Survey © Crown Capyright 100010200

mwh-h-wwwp-:hwﬁ Wm:umnhmavmmnmu
limbiity for mny I tha plan o for sy loss of demsge caussd o

Duct, Trench

Chamber

+

Cabinet

N

@reenhalgh@paliings.co.uk |

media




P s
A
J91eM
ssweyl

®
| T

yn oo-sbu)jed@ybeyusaibe _

way| puz
JueipAH
IAlRA

121910

1988y pauopueqy

EEENA R s R RS S e

131ep pascdold

191eM0 21BALd

ulep Ja1epn

‘UBYEUOPUN BJB SYI0M AUE BJ0JBq B)IS UD POIUDA BY |SNLU SBIIAIOS

puE SuleL jo uolsod [EMoe ayy) ‘uoISSILO JO Joue AU J0j JOJEAN SBLUELY )
Aq pejdeooe s1 ioAposIEYM pUy AU JO ANjIqel ON "paledidnue Bq pinoys
oouasald Jtay) Jng umoys jou ase sadid eainag pejuud 8jep ay) Joj pijea
SI uoljewuojur siy | ‘pasjuesent aq jouues Aseindae ay) pue ‘Ajuelem pue
uonebyqo inoyym uaalb s1 ued siy) uo umoys snjesedde ayy jo uonisod
ay] ‘papiuuad jou aie saidoo Jayun po ejep dew ay) jo sasn JaYjo Auy
"Aluo yueyd sajep sawey ] jo uoneso] ayy Buimern jo sesodind ay) 10} pasn
8q 01 st dew S1Y1'SpEELO00L -1aquiny asusal] 8alyo Aeuoners "W'H

10 J8jj011U09) BY) Jo uonaues ay) ypm depy AeAng sauBUpIQ) 8Y) UD paseg

PV ue|d 18]EAN UBS|D

£1/80/9) :pajepdn eleq  L'€9LE6L 'S EZ6LYS :enuag dey

E£801:1 ‘8|BIg

EL/OL/ET ‘B)eq

S¥E610004 Avaing eousupio Z40Z s1UBU esuqeep pur JyBuidon umai) (o)

&
N

yaunyy ﬁ U
suyeqes|3is  /

~, / ~

N h
./_ H
D
£ D
\_n /rn( a
\..\r;//‘m. |
,_?fw\
,__\//__\.
___.__.__. 4
&
A/
/ ruu..
4/
L /
/ \/%
/ o J\
/




e [ T ]
APpuncg ¢ wWesssEsswsmewEEw 1issy pasocly
; [wdiy wngs semuep Mmoo

L] L R e p— Jssy MEAlg ‘uayepapun aJe syiom AUe 810Jaq 8)IS U0 PaIJLBA Bq 1SN SOoIAI8S PUE SUIBLW Jo uonisod

.-mu.ﬂg ® BOYUTIN B0 Lty amnssany Lmaom ayy ._._o_mam_Eo 10 10118 Aue 1o} ."o_mw; sawey) Aq pajdacoe si hﬂ__.woﬂmca puy _.Em

- : i jo Ajjqer oN “pejedioue aq pinoys asuasald Jay) Ing umoys jou ale sadid aciues pajul

Soul N_.—.—. BT PAOPUTY ANGS PGOPUTTY 8)ep oL} 10} pijea s1 uolewIol) SIY| ‘pasjuesend aq jouues Aseinooe ay) pue ‘Alueuem

— _ L TR YD IAMAS PaUIGIDY pue uonebigo inoyym ueniB s) uejd siy) uo umoys snesedde ay) jo uopisod sy} “panuued

o) SHoyUBI 03uNg S S jou aue saidoo Jayun po ejep dew auy) jo sasn Jayjo Auy "Ajuo juejd Jajepy SOLEY ] JO UonED|

) b ay) Buimaia jo sasodind ay) so) pasn aq o) s dew SIy1'SHEELO00L -Jaquny asusar 8ollo

_ v_:.cu.mmc_:an_@cm_mncoﬂmm— » 1OUUEIA N4 1omas P04 Aieuonels ‘W'H Jo Ja|[o)uog ey jo uonoues ay} ypm deyy ABAINSG 8OUBUPIO B} UO paseg

bV ue|d Jajemeisep £1/80/91 :pejepdn eleq  L'€91E61'8'CEZ6LYS @Nua) depy €801:} :9|B2g EL/0L/EZ ‘8jeq S¥E610004 Aoning BOUBUPIQ Z10Z SIbP eseqmep pue yBpAden umai) (3)

yanyg

" sieqes3 is / %/« f
7o / O/w
S Vi / ;
sfieuosied

Page 188




1. UK Power Networks does not warrant that the information provided o you is e . .
i ris ADVICE TO CONTRACTORS ON AVOIDING DANGER FROM
correct, You rely upon it ot your own nsk. i BURIED, ELECTRICINY CABLES.

2. UK Power Networks does not exclude or limil its liability if it couses the death
nt anv nercan ar ranses nerennnl ininey to 0 nerson where such death or oersonal 1Y N hove cahle drowinne with uni an site and rheck them before vou ot the

Page 189



Appendix E

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District
Council by way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential
contamination across all the primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites
that move forward to Planning Applications.

Page 190



Appendix F

Cost Build-up

Page 191



Site P2 4, Bourne House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill IG9 6J
Indicative Estimate of Cost
for East Thames HA

28 November 2013

Gross Internal floor area m2 fi2
Affordable Flat Units 0 0
Allowance for communal space @ 20% 0 0
Affordable House Units 186 2,002
TOTAL GIA 186 2,002
ltem  Element Qty Unit Rate Total
£lunit £
1.0 Demolition
1.1 Demolition 299 m? 50 14,972
2.2 Site clearance 345 m? 10 3,451
1.2 Allowance for removal of asbestos 25 No 800 20,000
Sub-total say 40,000
2.0 Affordable Flat units (xx nr. units)
2.1 Flats Private areas 0 m? 1,350 0
2.2 Flats communal areas (20% allowed) 0m? 900 0
Sub-total say 0
3.0 Affordable House units (02 nr. units)
p_— 3.1 House areas 186 m? 1,250 233,000
Sub-total say 230,000
4.0 Abnormals / E/o and External Works
4.1 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 254 m? 40 10,000
4.2 Communal Gardens 83 m? 30 2,000
4.3 Access road, parking and turning 200 m? 65 13,000
4.4 Pedestrian paving 0 m? 50 Incl.
4.5 Cross over / highways adaptions 4 item 2,000 8,000
4.6 Allowance for contaminated ground 0 item Excl.
4.7 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 107 m 160 17,000
4.8 Allowance for achieving CfSh Level 3 2nr 4,500 9,000
Sub-total say 60,000
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 330,000
CONTINGENCY @ 5% 20,000
CONTRACTORS DESIGN FEES @ 8% 28,000
PRELIMS AND OVERHEADS AT 15% 49,500
TOTAL INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 2,298 427,500

pe__%

<larifications and Assumptions

Estimate based on Pellings Feasibility drawings and standard ETG specifications

GIA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on a Q3 2014 start on site

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 3

Itis assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber floor structure, sloped tiled
roofs) will be used

Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Hazardous material removal

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by TFL or other statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, S108, S278 Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Page 192




Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report
Site: Garages 1-19 Pentlow Way, Buckhurst Hill IG9 6BZ

Rev: A

Ref:  1JC/srs/612.023
Date: September 2014

Page 193



Pellings

Contents

1. Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
2. Existing Site and Surroundings

3. Proposals

4. Planning Issues and Risks

5.
6
7
8
9

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

. Site Access and Buildability Issues

. Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
. Proposed Procurement Route

. Impact on Parking

10.Legals
11.Costs
12.Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices

A: Development Proposals — Drawings 612.023.P2-5A
Site Photographs

Existing Site Plan 201206014-D

Statutory Services Information

Information on Possible Contamination

Cost Build-up

nmoow

Page 194



1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

3.0

3.1

3.2.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

612023

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District
Council for a six year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having
possible development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP have been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites and
which will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located on the eastern side of Buckhurst Hill in a residential area
comprising houses and flats approximately 500m north of Buckhurst Hill station.

The site consists of 10 garages and hardstanding and it is accessed by way of a
4m wide vehicular access on Pentlow Way. The site adjoins residential plots on
two sides (a semi-detached house with garden and three storey flats with
communal parking) and there is a green walk to the rear. The area in general is
residential with two storey houses and three storey flats of various styles. There
is a small shopping parade 30m to the west.

There are a number of services difficulties on the site as outlined in Section 5.0
below.

Proposals

Read in conjunction with drawings 612.023.P2-5A attached at Appendix A.

The proposals are :

Erection of a two storey building comprising 4 x 1 bed flats

Provision of 16 parking spaces and communal amenity area. Please note that
proposed parking makes use of some of the grass verge area in front of the
existing accommodation.

Planning Issues and Risks

Relevant Planning Policies/Considerations

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest District Council is the
Combined Local Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area and it is not designated for any
particular purposes in the Epping Forest District Council Combined Local Plan
1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006. The site does not lie in a Flood Zone on
the Environment Agency Flood Map.

Page 195

Garages 1-19 Pentlow Way REV A 1



4.3.

4.4.

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.3.

5.4.

612023

There are no specific policies which prevent the loss of existing garages although
policy ST4 (Road Safety) states that planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion or harm
to the character or appearance of the area. Parking spaces to meet with the
Council’'s standards are proposed for the new dwellings.

It will be necessary to undertake a Parking Survey and to prepare a Transport
Statement to demonstrate that the loss of the garages and proposed development
would not cause any parking shortfalls or harm to highway conditions or the
amenities of the area.

The site is located in the settlement of Buckhurst Hill and the proposal would be
consistent with policy CP7 which encourages the efficient use of existing built-up
areas by the ‘recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-used land to
accommodate the development’ and the ‘re-use of urban sites, which are no
longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in the foreseeable future, for
alternative land uses'.

The proposal would comply with policy H4A which states the need for a range of
dwellings, including an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet
identified housing need on a site-by-site basis.

The development of small family homes with rear gardens and private and
communal parking would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the
area and may comply with Epping Forest's design policies and guidance.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Southern Gas

Cable and Wireless

Virgin Media

Thames Water

BT

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy
Environment Agency

UK Power Networks

Responses received to date are from the Environment Agency, National Grid, UK
Power Networks, Virgin Media and Thames Water.

The Environment Agency have pointed out the existence of an underground
culvert which crosses the site (see Thames Water response below).

National Grid: There are cables which cross under the site, serving the electricity
sub-station on the site, this is located on drawing 612.023/P2-5A

UK Power Networks: There are cables which cross under the site, serving the
electricity sub-station on the site.

Virgin Media: No apparatus appears to cross the site

Thames Water: Plans indicate that a substantial foul sewer crosses the site ,
close to its entrance

Page 196

Garages 1-19 Pentlow Way REV A 2



5.5.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

8.0

8.1.

8.2.

612023

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be
any particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic
associated with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area, with also some retail elements
nearby and, accordingly, any appointed contractor should use all best endeavours
to act in a considerate manner and within normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues
have been highlighted with use of the domestic garages, and also a former
horticultural nursery. Possible contaminants in respect of the former use as a
nursery are summarised and indicated within the note produced by EFDC
Planning and Economic Development Directorate at Appendix E.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may
include asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and
the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal
with any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P2-5A, Party Wall matters will be relevant to
development, particularly adjacent to 25/29 Pentlow Way.

Confirmation of ownership will be required in due course.

Such Party Wall matters may be undertaken ahead of the build contract by direct
appointment by EFDC, or included as a requirement for the contractor to deal with
within the build contract. This later approach, however, would carry increased risk
to programme and cost.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East
Thames Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage D planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Page 197

Garages 1-19 Pentlow Way REV A 3



8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

10.0

10.1.

612023

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be
subsequently confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East
Thames Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement
documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual
contract packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory
services, highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure
size of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East
Thames Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide —
September 2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as
statutory planning guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest
whole number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards
for new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking
surveys, to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any
planning or highway problems.

As highlighted above, the proposals add parking on areas of existing grassed
verge. We have taken the opportunity of adding parking provision over the level
of parking needed to meet Planning standards, and to improve the parking
provision in the area as a whole.

Legals
We have been provided with a Summary Report of legal matters from EFDC

Solicitors. The report makes reference to the suggested appropriation of land for
planning purposes which would extinguish any prior rights of way.

Page 198

Garages 1-19 Pentlow Way REV A 4



10.2. The report makes reference to possible rights of light risk. A blanket policy
against such risk might be considered.

10.3. Proposals include development of an area that is currently given over to drying/bin
storage and these would need to be relocated. There is reference that the leases
give access to leaseholders to this area but we assume that these can be
adjusted to facilitate access to any revised drying/bin compound area.

10.4. The existing substation is unaffected by proposals although an alteration maybe
required to UKPN access easement.

11.0 Costs

11.1. It is considered that a budget of £525,900.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

12.0 Recommendations and Conclusions

12.1. Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for

taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Pellings LLP

Page 199

612023 Garages 1-19 Pentlow Way REV A 5



Appendix A

Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023.P2-5A

Page 200



North

TOTALS

Site Area 0.053 Ha
4 x 1 Bed Flats @ 50 sqm
16 Parking Spaces

675 FOUL ;

10 Garages + Parking

No refuse or emergency
vehicle turning

Maldon

House
1 to ©

\ N

NOTES

Maldon

House
1T to ©

N/

Rev  Date Description Name

Pellings LLP

24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY

1020 8460 9114 0208313 0019 e bromley@pellings.co.uk
www.pellings.co.uk

Report all discrepancies, errors and omissions P RE LI M I NARY
Do not scale from this drawing - el .
Verify all dimensions on site before commencing any work or

preparing shop drawings CLIENT

All materials, components and workmanship are to comply with

East Thames HA

Architecture & Planning m Building Surveying m Project Management m
Cost Consultancy s CDM Co-ordination

PROJECT

EFDC House Building Programme

all the relevant British Standards, Cedes of Practice, and
appropriate manufacturers recommendations that from time to
fime shall apply

For all specialist work, see relevant drawings

|
Pellings
Existing and Proposed Plans

Pentlow Way

‘ DRAWN CHK

DATE SCALE
NOV 2013 1:500 @A3 NP

DRAWING No

612 023 P2-5 A

This drawing and design are copyright of PELLINGS LLP |

mll



Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 202



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 206



¢ &= Epping Forest
%Z _ District Council

FT
Wf.
wm
2
DE
%
Q3
[+ 1 s1]
E
gl v
Slg I
a | Q
99%
€lg &
2|8 S
w%Z

te of Environment 8 Street Scene

Directoral
Civic Offices

Emo Essex,

Tel. 01992 564000

Page 207




Appendix D

Statutory Services Information

Page 208



Plant Protection
' ¢ National Grid

nationalgrid LA
Brick Kiln Street
Hinckley
LE10 ONA
E-mail: plantprotection@nationalgrid.com
Telephone: +44 (0)800 688588

Adam Greenhalgh

Pellings National Grid Electricity Emergency Number:
24 Widmore Road 0800 40 40 80°

Bromley National Gas Emergency Number:

Kent 0800 111 999*

RY * Available 24 hours, 7 days/week.
BR11 Calls may be recorded and monitored.

www.nationalgrid.com

Date: 24/10/2013
Our Ref: NL_TE_Z6_3SW 042144
Your Ref: PENTLOW WAY

RE: Proposed Works, 1G9 6BZ,pentlow way,buckhurst hill,essex
Thank you for your enquiry which was received on 17/10/2013.
Please note this response and any attached map(s) are valid for 28 days.

An assessment has been carried out with respect to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc's and National
Grid Gas plc's apparatus. Please note it does not cover the items listed in the section "Your Responsibilities
and Obligations", including gas service pipes and related apparatus.

For details of National Grid's network areas please see the National Grid website
(http://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/) or the enclosed documentation.

As your works are at a "proposed" stage, any maps and guidance provided are for information
purposes only. This is not approval to commence work. You must submit a "Scheduled Works"
enquiry at the earliest opportunity and failure to do this may lead to disruption to your plans and
works. National Grid will endeavour to provide an initial assessment within 14 days of receipt of a
Scheduled Works enquiry and dependent on the outcome of this, further consultation may be
required.

In any event, for safety and legal reasons, works must not be carried out until a Scheduled
Works enquiry has been completed and final response received.

National Grid is a trading name for: National Grid is a trading name for:

National Grid Electricity Transmission pic National Grid Gas plc

Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N 5EH Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N 5EH
Registered in England and Wales, No 2366977 Registered in England and Wales, No 2006000

Page 209



Your Responsibilities and Obligations

The "Assessment" Section below outlines the detailed requirements that must be followed when planning or
undertaking your scheduled activities at this location.

Itis your responsibility to ensure that the information you have submitted is accurate and that all relevant
documents including links are provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you near
National Grid's apparatus, e.g. as contained within the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations.

This assessment solely relates to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc (NGET) and National Grid Gas plc
(NGG) apparatus. This assessment does NOT include:

¢ National Grid's legal inter est (easements or wayleaves) in the land which restricts activity in proximity
to National Grid's assets in private land. You must obtain details of any such restrictions from the
landowner in the first instance and if in doubt contact National Grid.

e Gas service pipes and related apparatus

Recently installed apparatus

e Apparatus owned by other organisations, e.g. other gas distribution operators, local electricity
companies, other utilities, etc.

It is YOUR responsibility to take into account whether the items listed above may be present and if they could
be affected by your proposed activities. Further "Essential Guidance" in respect of these items can be found

on the National Grid Website (http://www.nationalgrid com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F 9-59EB-4825-BA89-

DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf).

This communication does not constitute any formal agreement or consent for any proposed development work;
either generally or with regard to National Grid's easements or wayleaves nor any planning or building
regulations applications.

NGG and NGET or their agents, servants or contractors do not accept any liability for any losses arising under
or in connection with this information. This limit on liability applies to all and any claims in contract, tort (including
negligence), misrepresentation (excluding fraudulent misrepresentation), breach of statutory duty or
otherwise. This limit on liability does not exclude or restrict liability where prohibited by the law nor does it
supersede the expres s terms of any related agreements.

If you require further assistance please contact the National Grid Plant Protection team via e-mail (click here) or
via the contact details at the top of this response.

Yours faithfully

National Grid Plant Protection Team

Page 210 Page 2 of 6




ASSESSMENT

Affected Apparatus
The National Grid apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity of your proposed works is:

e High or Intermediate pressure (above 2 bar) Gas Pipelines and assaciated equipment
e Low or Medium pressure (below 2 bar) gas pipes and associated equipment. (As a result it is highly
likely that there are gas services and associated apparatus in the vicinity)

Requirements

BEFORE carrying out any work you must:

e Carefully read these requirements including the attached guidance documents and maps showing the
location of National Grid apparatus.

e Contact the landowner and ensure any proposed works in private land do not infringe National Grid's
legal rights (i.e. easements or wayleaves). If the works are in the road or footpath the relevant local
authority should be contacted.

e Ensure that all persons, including direct labour and contractors, working for you on or near National
Grid's apparatus follow the requirements of the HSE Guidance Notes HSG47 - ‘Avoiding Danger from
Underground Services' and GS6 — ‘Avoidance of danger from overhead electric power lines'. This
guidance can be downloaded free of charge at http://www.hse.gov.uk

¢ Inline with the above guidance, verify and establish the actual position of mains, pipes, cables,
services and other apparatus on site before any activities are undertaken.

Page 211 Page 3 of 6




GUIDANCE

High Pressure Gas Pipelines Guidance:

If working in the vicinity of a high pressure gas pipeline the following document must be followed:
‘Specification for Safe Working in the Vicinity of National Grid High Pressure Gas Pipelines and Associated
Installations - Requirements for Third Parties’ (SSW22). This can be obtained from:

http://www.nationalgrid. com/NR/rdonlyres/SO0ACACOA-ED26-41A7-91FA-
83163A98270F/23790/TSPSSW22 J537_ Rev0807.pdf

Excavating Safely - Avoiding injury when working near gas pipes:

httg://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/2DZEEA97-821 3-459C-9A26-
18361C6E0BOD/25249/Digsafe leaflet3e2finalamends061 207 pdf

Standard Guidance

Essential Guidance document:

httg://www.nationalgrid.comlNR/rdonlyres/BD6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89—

DBD7E68882C7/5131 9/EssentialGuidance,pdf

General Guidance document:

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/55C13C4D-A1AA-4B13-BF DA-

1CF59F88B326/51318/GeneralGuidance. pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of gas pipes guidance (Credit card):

httg://www.nationaIgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/A3037677-6641 -476C-9DDA-
E89949052829/44257/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCard.gdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of electricity cables guidance (Credit card):

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/35DDEC6D-D754-4BA5-AF3C-
D607D05A2502/44858/ExcavatingSafeIyCreditCardeIectricigcables.gdf

Copies of all the Guidance Documents can also be downloaded from the National Grid Website:

httg://www.nationalgrid.com/uleas/Safety/work/downloads/

Page 212 Page 4 of 6




LY
Q
«Q

@

N

=

w

s -~
ID: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_042144View exient: 1445m, 785m [Map not to be used for construction [Map 1 of 1 (GAS)
USER: roy.x.iones LP MAINS This plan shows those pipes owned by National Grid Gas plc in its role as a Licensed Gas Transporter (GT). i
: MP MAINS — Gas pipes owned by other GTs, or otherwise privately owned, may be present in this area. Information MAPS Plot Server Version 1.7.6
DATE: 24/10/2013 IP MAINS o with regard to such pipes should be obtained from the relevant owners. The information shown on this plan is = s
= LHP MAINS given without warranty, the accuracy thereof cannot be guaranteed. Service pipes, valves, syphons, stub connections,
DATA DATE: 15/10/2013 NHP MAINS === etc._. are noIt shown but their presence should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by n a I O n a r I
REF: PENTLOW WAY Nallo‘nal Grid Gas plc or their agents, servants or contractors for any error or omission. Safe digging
MAP REF-TQ4294 ST p_ractlces‘ in accordance with HS(G)47, must be used to verify and establish the actual position of mains,
e - Mook sl Boto pipes, services and other apparatus on site before any mechanical plant is used. It is your responsibility to ensure Requested by: Pellings
(e RE: 542265, 194655 on A4 Colout Landacape that this |nforma_tmn is proviqed to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you on or near gas This plan is reproduced from or based on the
g::gasr:;us. The information included on this plan should not be referred to beyond a period of 28 days from the date OS map by National Grid Gas plc, with the sanction
, . of the controller of HM Stationery Office.
e M Depth of \/ Siskion O Diameter $ Material ’ ) Crown Copyright Reserved, Ordnance Survey
Cover Change Change Licence number 100024886




Adam Greenhalgh

From: Trevor Baker <tjbaker@eppingforestdc.gov.uk>

Sent: 08 November 2013 14:15

To: Adam Greenhalgh

Cc: Lee Savill; John Hayes; Matt Little

Subject: FW: OS Extracts - Pentlow Way/Loughton Way, Loughton

Attachments: 119023 (2).pdf; CANONBO8A3B_LDAPMAIL_11062013-144839.pdf; Public Sewer
extracts.pdf

Dear Mr Greenhalgh

Thank you for your email of yesterday concerning the potential development of the above sites.

The EA are partially correct in their statement, and | enclose for your perusal extracts from Thames Waters Public
Sewer Records.

@J’ he 750/825mm diameter “drains” running west to east on the northern edges of both sites, are on the face of it
culverted watercourses and given that on the whole they run under Epping Forest District Council land they would
be the responsibility of this organisation. However, if there were circumstances that dictated a more in-depth
analysis of their status, as the drains effectively operate as public surface water sewers taking all manner of surface
and highway water run off, this team on behalf of EFDC would potentially challenge Thames’ designation that they
are “private” assets. However, in the short term and for your purposes they would be designated as assets under
the control of this team on behalf of EFDC’s Housing directorate.

Notwithstanding the above, for the Loughton Way site the drain is at the northern edge of the site and within the
“green corridor” that | doubt would be subject to above ground development anyway.

For Pentlow Way, the drain is well away from the sites northern boundary and would not be directly affected. What
is of mare importance for this location is the indicated presence of a 675mm diameter public foul water sewer
running diagonally across the site at a depth of approx 2.3m to invert. Should any development be proposed over
the line of the sewer then Thames Water must be consulted and advice sought.

I trust the above is self-explanatory, but should you require any further assistance, please feel free to contact this
@team again -

Kind regards

Trevor Baker
Land Drainage Engineer

Epping Forest District Council
Civic Offices

High Street

Epping

Essex

CM16 482

P: 01992 564048 (DD)
P: 01992 564608 (Customer Services)

E: tibaker@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page:214




Environment
Agency

creating a better place

Adam Greenhalgh Our refs: NE/2013/118023/01-L01
Pellings LLP NE/2013/119024/01-L01
24 Widmore Road

Bromley Yourref: AG/dh/612.023/05

Kent

BR1 1RY Date: 5 November 2013

Dear Adam,

Enquiry for proposed redevelopment of two sites: Rear of Shops, Loughton
Way, Buckhurst Hill and Pentlow Way, Buckhurst Hill

Thank you for consulting us with details of the above sites. In addition to our
comments that we have already provided to you for the majority of the sites you
consulted us with, these sites also appear to have a culverted watercourse
running through them. These features will require additional investigations prior to
any redevelopment.

As discussed above, our maps indicate that there is a culverted ordinary
watercourse that runs through both of these sites. We would expect the applicant
to open up any culverts running through the site where feasible, naturalise the
watercourse and provide a sufficient development-free buffer zone adjacent to the
newly restored watercourse. If the applicant is unable to open up the culvert, full
justification should be provided and alternative mitigation or compensation should
be provided. Responsibility for ordinary watercourses has now been passed to
the Lead Local Flood Authority (Essex County Council in this case), who would
need to agree to any proposals outlined for the watercourse.

The culverted watercourse, which runs north-west to south-east through the site,
feeds directly into the River Roding. Under the Water Framework Directive, the
River Roding is currently at ‘poor ecological status, with a target of achieving
‘good’ ecological status (gaining two descriptive classes) by a 2027 deadline.
Given this, we strongly support any projects that positively enhance the River
Roding or the watercourses in the Roding catchment.

As we are in an area of serious water stress, we endorse the efficient use of
water resources. Residential developments such as your proposal should take
advantage of water efficient technologies. This is in line with Epping Forest's local
policy CP5 which states that the efficient use of water is encouraged through
water efficient appliances and rainwater harvesting for example.

We suggest you use water efficiency measures and aim to achieve 105
litres/person/day. This is equivalent to level 3/4 for water within the Code for
Sustainable Homes. Achieving this standard within new homes can be
accomplished at very little additional cost, and is significantly cheaper than
retrofitting such measures later.

Environment Agency
Apollo Court, 2 Bishops Sq Business park, Hatfield, Hert 0 9EX.
lityage 15



.

Every opportunity should be taken to maximise Sustainable Drainage Systems
(SuDS) such as green roofs, ponds, swales and permeable pavements, to
alleviate surface water runoff. | have previously provided you with a copy of our
SuDS guidance, which contains the SuDS hierarchy, to help you with your
designs. The methods at the top of the hierarchy are preferred because they are
beneficial in terms of sustainability and biodiversity. The hierarchy should be used
in descending order. Tanks should only be used as a last resort. Epping Forest's
local policy U3B on sustainable drainage systems advocates this approach.

As both of the sites are under a hectare in Flood Zone 1, they fall within cell F5 of
our Flood Risk Standing Advice consultation matrix. Epping Forest Local Planning
Authority will therefore be responsible for assessing flood risk at these sites.

Yours sincerely,

Clark Gordon
Sustainable Places Planning Advisor

Direct dial 01707 632308
E-mail SPHatfield@environment-agency.gov.uk

Page 216



o — ﬂRV\

106

{c) Crown Copyright and databasa rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 100019208 Date: 24/10/13 Scale: 1:1083

Map Centre: 542273.3,194641.7 Data updated: 25/08/13

Telecoms Plan A4

Important information - plests read

The purposa of this plhan s &9 iderify Virgin Macs spperstis. We have ried 1 maks £ sa sooursts aa posalbs but we cannat
warTand ky pocurscy. In addiion, we caution thal wiin Virgn Madia spparstus Pere may be nstances when msing volags
[pownr Catiaa have been placed inside green, radher than black ductng. Further detalls can ba found using the ‘Aftecisd
Postcodsa pef, which can ba downloaded Fom this wabaits.

Tharslors, Frust ot rely solely o this pien I you are carying out sry sxcaveton of gfher worka in e vicinty of Vigin Madia
w.mm-lm.. ¥ o vics be o o s, stz and stisbished
o #fa bafore any mechanical pland ls Lasd. Accordingly, unisss & s due In tha negiganca of Virgin Madia, s smployses o

#gania, Vigin Media will not have sy labiity for sy omissions of inaccurscles in tha pian of for sy koss of demege Caused or
g from the uss of andior sy relisnce on s pian.

This plan i produced by Vingin Mada Limitsd from Ordnance Survey © Grown Copyright 100015208

Duct, Trench

e —

Chamber

+

Cabinet

A

| agreenhalgh@pellings.co.uk

l

media




e

“UBYEPOPUN BJE $}10M AUE 8J0J8q 8JIS U0 PaljlIaA 8q I1SNW Sa0IAJBS
pue sulew jo uonisod [BNJO 8U 1 "UOISSIUD JO JoLB AUE JOJ JBTEAN SOWEY ]

g L4 waj| pu3 1988y pauopueqy
Aq paydeooe si Jaasosieym puny Aue jo Auiqer o “pajedisnue aq pinoys
h@ﬁﬂg . JUBIPAH swsssssnssunss 191eA pesodold aouasasd Jiey) Sn.:_sgw_o:mﬁm sadid mw_aow “pajuud Em.ﬂms 10 plEA
sauwi N—.— .—- s1 uonewloju| siy) "pasjuesent aq jouues Aoeinooe ay) pue ‘flueiem pue
= uonebigo nounm uaaiB si ued iy vo umoys smesedde ay) jo uonsod
_ TN " - Jajepn D1eAld oy "peniuwad jou ale saidod Jeyun po eep dew ay) jo Sasn Jaylo Auy
“Aluo ued Jejepn seweyy Jo uonedo) ey) Buimer jo sesodind ayj Joj pasn
= 19N UBIAl JOIBAN aq 0} s dew sIU'GPEGLO00L ~4OqUINN B5U8dIT 81O AleuoneiS "WH
x:.S.wmcz_oa@cmmmc:owhmm_ 10 10)j01UOD) BY) O UOHOUES BY) YIM depy Aeaing 8oURUPIO BY) Uo paseq
PV UB|d J9IEM UBS|ID £1/80/9} :pejepdn eleq  2'LH9Y6L'E'ELZZYS :enuaD dep £80L1} ‘BIEIS E€L0L/EZ Bk §$£610001 APing sousupiD Z10Z SUBU eseqelep pue 1yBukdon umaid (3)

Page 218




. (g ergd $4I0uRD Jnops)

ANPUNCHEIIS SEeEESEREEREESSESS WSSy pasodald
; [wdhy parge segousp nop))
° WD —————— - 155y djeAUd ‘uayBLEpPUN BB SYIOM AUE 810j0q B1IS UO PNUDA BQ JSNLW SBIIAIS PUE SUIBW Jo uolsod
el Y ) eloyuTIY 800 vy ainssay [EMOE B "UOISSILO 10 J0118 AUE IO} J81BAL SBWeY | Aq paidadae s| Joasosieym puny Aue
) jo Kinqen on ‘pajedianue aq pjnoys asuasald Jiey) Ing umoys jou ale sadid aaimes pajuud
MWEN_.—._. DO PAUDPRIDTY e el 8jep 8} JO) PIjEA SI UOHEWIOJU) S| 'pasjuelent aq jouues ADeinoae ay) pue ‘AlueLem
_ _ @ SHOLUETY PoLGLITT JoMmes peLUIay pue uonebiqo Jnoypm uaalb s) ueid siyy uo umoys snjesedde auy jo uonisod ey papiuad
o S A NS jou aie seidoo Jayun po ejep dew ey jo sesn Jayio Auy “Auo Jue|d Jajep SBWEY ] JO UonEDO)|
E z ay) Buimeia jo sasodind ay) Joj pasn aq o} s1 dew SIyL'GYERLO00L - JoqunN 8suadl] adiyo
_ v_:._ua.wn..._.___u_mn_@:m_m—.:._m.mzmﬁ_ & epoyueii Inad 1m0 Inog AJRUONEIS "W'H JO JBjjosu0D 8y jo uochoues ay) yim depy Aeang esuBupIQ 8y o peseq
bV Ue|d JajeMa)SEM £1/80/9} :pajepdn eleq  /'LYIY6L'E'€LEEHS (@aual depw £801:1 ‘9|B2S EL/0L/ET 8leQ SYEBL000L ABAING BOURUPID Z10Z SO esuqmep pua JBuAdoD umaid (2)

a0t
8sNOH

\/Su_nz

Page 219




Voo

U R O F QU - RN - e e e e e et e

,h_.y;ﬁ::oo._ 0} Apmgisuodsas 1ok m_..%_ c:c,c&aa ‘2 Aow swa)sds uonnqisip

01} JO SI0UMO 1ayjo 0} buibuoipq saun/Suigoo 9112910 10y} 210MD 3G ASDBIY / R Rt B

X3 JOj 310p ANSS) By} JBYD SYjuow ¢ uoy) aJow suoid asn jou og juswdinbs o Tomrmemmmmm

MO Nt 03U Bunyom 31doad 1o 0y uanibiag 1snw papioud uonowsour ay| °g & . ,

10 N AQ asimiayio pasoid ssajun aal Bpiog so pajossy aq ysnw saIgod |y G (RIT96 10/80 x04 W

. oy ubis| 998 4950 0080 19}

dwny ALE00SE YOOT Ojut DIGDD BOAIDS L. S1 0JBLY JO4) POWNSSD 5q 1SNW ) Ty a B, Wg ¢dl
'PALIULIBIAP UG BADY SAIGND [0 O UOIDIO| JI0XD Ay} [jun Syad , 7 AOHTS

LOBLL 4O 38N By} DUIPIOAD BPOL! KIn;ai0n 2I0 $3J0Y (0L} DY) [01UBSSH SI )| ¢ . HOMS !

BIWOH 904
UOISIACIH UDd
SHJOMIAN M0 WP ,

, '$100) plioy 2jqoyns buisn uoNOABIXY 0} Jond

100 paaoiddo asn - panuaa ag pinoys shounddo ay) jo uossed 1o0xa ay) ‘7
‘PIYIOISUE SDA SMDIDGE0 DY) DS PAIBYD UIIQ SADY ADLW SHIDUIPUD

300 2q 01 paAdaq st bumosp sy uo udoys sniosoddo By o uonIsod By

v

MNYBZYOL © anuas dop

VOO SIHL ONILOVINGD 1Sdld INOHLIM, SHHYOMLIN ¥3MOd %N OL ONIONCTJH

40 ALINIDIA 3HL NIHLIA QIS0 38 L1ON (SN STTOW 80 SYINOE ISNUHL 8N ¢ dulany dul nuaw jod Jo sjudjueg
.cm,?@c SJOM 101)29)0.d K10SS000U AuD L7auN™aNn Bull nusW o|d jo SJUBIOY & UONALIISA() 10l
54 Ao snjounddo s Auddwioy) oy} tDuLIERI0 L1 §ags 960 008 suoydagay
$3}104 3/GED 3SAY} 4O 8J)aW 2UO Ly bubbip 51050 ubLiS A0y 1 Ag PaYIOIy

Aomi00; L ADY WY X Aomabr

O GUSTZS L DL 00UCE {AN3) STIEYS JOVII0A HOIH VHIX]
SIENVD AUYRING

BACT WGy Anpuou idag

C10¢/01/2¢ 1 uQ M0l ”

B -

wos

Page 220



Appendix E

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District
Council by way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential
contamination across all the primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

There is further possible contamination from the existing substation on the site.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites
that move forward to Planning Applications.

Page 221



Appendix F

Cost Build-up

Page 222



Site P2 5, 23 and 25 Pentlow Way, Buckhurst Hill IG9 6BZ
Indicative Estimate of Cost
for East Thames HA

Pellings

28 November 2013
Gross Internal floor area m2 fi2
Affordable Flat Units 200 2,153
Allowance for communal space @ 20% 40 431
Affordable House Units 0 0
TOTAL GIA 240 2,583
Item  Element Qty Unit Rate Total
flunit £
1.0 Demolition
1.1 Demolition 145 m? 50 7,272
2.2 Site clearance 397 m? 10 3,971
1.2 Allowance for removal of asbestos 10 No 800 8,000
Sub-total say 20,000
2.0 Affordable Flat units (04 nr. units)
2.1 Flats Private areas 200 m? 1,350 270,000
2.2 Flats communal areas (20% allowed) 40 m? 900 36,000
Sub-total say 310,000
3.0 Affordable House units (xx nr. units)
- 3.1 House areas 0 m? 1,250 0
Sub-total say 0
4.0 Abnormals / E/lo and External Works
4.1 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 0 m? 40 0
4.2 Communal Gardens 187 m? 30 6,000
4.3 Access road, parking and turning 332 m? 65 22,000
4.4 Pedestrian paving 0m? 50 Incl.
4.5 Cross over / highways adaptions 1 item 2,000 2,000
4.6 Allowance for contaminated ground 0 item Excl.
4.7 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 200 m 160 32,000
4.8 Allowance for achieving CfSh Level 3 4 nr 4,500 18,000
Sub-total say 80,000
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 410,000
CONTINGENCY @ 5% 20,000
CONTRACTORS DESIGN FEES @ 8% 34,400
PRELIMS AND OVERHEADS AT 15% 61,500
TOTAL INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 2,191 525,900

e

Llarifications and Assumptions

Estimate based on Pellings Feasibility drawings and standard ETG specifications

GIA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on a Q3 2014 start on site

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 3

It is assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber floor structure, sloped tiled
roofs) will be used

Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Hazardous material removal

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by TFL or other statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, S108, S278 Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Page 223




This page is intentionally left blank



Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report
Site: 1-24 (Garages) Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill IG9 6AA

Rev: A

Ref:  1JC/srs/612.023
Date: September 2014

Page 225



Pellings

Contents

1. Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
2. Existing Site and Surroundings

3. Proposals

4. Planning Issues and Risks

5.
6
7
8
9

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

. Site Access and Buildability Issues

. Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
. Proposed Procurement Route

. Impact on Parking

10.Legals
11.Costs
12.Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices

A: Development Proposals — Drawings 612.023/P2-6A
Site Photographs

Existing Site Plan 201206014-F

Statutory Services Information

Information on Possible Contamination

Cost Build-up

nmoow

Page 226



1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

3.0

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

4.0

4.1.

612023

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District
Council for a six year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having
possible development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP have been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites and
which will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located on the eastern side of Buckhurst Hill in a residential area
comprising houses and flats approximately 400m north of Buckhurst Hill station.

The site consists of 24 garages and hardstanding and it is accessed by way of
two 4m wide vehicular accesses at both ends of the site, off Loughton Way. The
site adjoins residential plots and a green walk. To the west and south are two
storey semi-detached and terraced houses. To the north there is the 20m wide
green walk and beyond that a three story block of flats. Immediately to the east is
a three storey parade with various extensions and outbuildings and further to the
east, on the other side of Loughton Way, are further three storey blocks of flats
and two storey houses with gardens. There is a parade of shops within the
adjoining three storey terrace 142 — 196 Loughton Way to which there are a
number of points of access to the rear.

There are two sewers crossing the site at the North entrance.

There are some mature trees adjacent to the West boundary.

Proposals

Read in conjunction with drawings 612.023.P2-6A attached at Appendix A.
The proposals are :

Erection of 4No., 2 storey, 3 bedroom houses with individual gardens, soft
landscaping and 11 car parking spaces.

Proposals maintain access to the rear of 142-196 Loughton Way and subject to
agreement with the Highways Authority, a ‘1 way’ road system could be adopted
to maximise the developable area of the site.

Planning Issues and Risks

Relevant Planning Policies/Considerations

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest District Council is the
Combined Local Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

Page 227

1-24 (Garages) Loughton Way REV A 1



4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

612023

The site is not located in a Conservation Area and it is not designated for any
particular purposes in the Epping Forest District Council Combined Local Plan
1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006. The site does not lie in a Flood Zone on
the Environment Agency Flood Map.

There are no specific policies which prevent the loss of existing garages although
policy ST4 (Road Safety) states that planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion or harm
to the character or appearance of the area. Parking spaces to meet with the
Council’'s standards are proposed for the new dwellings.

It will be necessary to undertake a Parking Survey and to prepare a Transport
Statement to demonstrate that the loss of the garages and proposed development
would not cause any parking shortfalls or harm to highway conditions or the
amenities of the area.

The site is located in the settlement of Buckhurst Hill and the proposal would be
consistent with policy CP7 which encourages the efficient use of existing built-up
areas by the ‘recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-used land to
accommodate the development’ and the ‘re-use of urban sites, which are no
longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in the foreseeable future, for
alternative land uses'.

The proposal would comply with policy H4A which states the need for a range of
dwellings, including an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet
identified housing need on a site-by-site basis.

The development of four small units of affordable housing with rear gardens and
private and 11 parking spaces (for communal parking) would be in keeping with
the character and appearance of the area and may comply with Epping Forest’s
design policies and guidance.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Southern Gas

Cable and Wireless

Virgin Media

Thames Water

BT

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy
Environment Agency

UK Power Networks

Responses received to date are from the Environment Agency, National Grid, UK
Power Networks, Virgin Media and Thames Water.

The Environment Agency have pointed out the existence of an underground
culvert which crosses the site (see Thames Water response below).

National Grid: No apparatus appears to cross the site.
UK Power Networks: No apparatus appears to cross the site.

Page 228

1-24 (Garages) Loughton Way REV A 2



5.3.3.

5.4.

5.5.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

8.0

8.1.

612023

Virgin Media: No apparatus appears to cross the site

Thames Water: Foul and surface water sewers are indicated at the northern
entrance of the site. These would not appear to conflict with the proposed built
development but consultation with Thames Water will be necessary.

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be
any particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic
associated with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area, with also some retail elements
nearby and, accordingly, any appointed contractor should use all best endeavours
to act in a considerate manner and within normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues
have been highlighted with use of the domestic garages, and also a former
horticultural nursery. Possible contaminants in respect of the former use as a
nursery are summarised and indicated within the note produced by EFDC
Planning and Economic Development Directorate at Appendix E.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may
include asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and
the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal
with any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P2-6A, Party Wall matters may be relevant
to development, particularly adjacent to No. 45 Blackmore Road.

Confirmation of ownership will be required in due course.

Such Party Wall matters may be undertaken ahead of the build contract by direct
appointment by EFDC, or included as a requirement for the contractor to deal with
within the build contract. This later approach, however, would carry increased risk
to programme and cost.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East
Thames Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

Page 229

1-24 (Garages) Loughton Way REV A 3



8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

612023

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage D planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be
subsequently confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East
Thames Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement
documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual
contract packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory
services, highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure
size of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East
Thames Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide -
September 2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as
statutory planning guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

o 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling
Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest
whole number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards
for new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking
surveys, to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any
planning or highway problems.

Legals
We have been provided with a Summary Report of legal matters from EFDC
Solicitors. The report makes reference to the suggested appropriation of land for

planning purposes which would extinguish any prior rights of way.

The report makes reference to possible rights of light risk. A blanket policy
against such risk might be considered.

Page 230

1-24 (Garages) Loughton Way REV A 4



10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

11.0

11.1.

12.0

12.1.

612023

The Housing Management Report comments on a land locked passage serving
Blackmore Road. However this appears to be outside of the subject site.

Adjustments to leases may be required for other users of the access road, but
would not impinge on development.

There is an existing access from 39 Blackmore Road into the proposed private
garden area. We assume that appropriation of land would extinguish any rights in
this respect.

Costs

It is considered that a budget of £831,900.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

Recommendations and Conclusions

Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for
taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Pellifgs LLP

Page 231

1-24 (Garages) Loughton Way REV A



Appendix A

Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023.P2-6A

Page 232



NOTES

Report all discrepancies, errors and omissions

Do not scale from this drawing

Verify all dimensions on site before commencing any work or
preparing shop drawings

All materials, components and workmanship are to comply with
all the relevant British Standards, Cedes of Practice, and
appropriate manufacturers recommendations that from time to
fime shall apply

For all specialist work, see relevant drawings

This drawing and design are copyright of PELLINGS LLP

Green Walk

N.
\.
W .\ 750 SURFACE
.\
a

\ -
P
\

g

225

g

FOUL

PRELIMINARY

Rev

Date

feef

Description

Name

Pellings

Green Walk

Pellings LLP

24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY
1020 8460 9114 0208313 0019 e bromley@pellings.co.uk
www.pellings.co.uk

CLIENT

East Thames HA

—
.\.\
4
\.

225 FOUL

750 SURFACE

\.\

~

Architecture & Planning m Building Surveying m Project Management m

Cost Consultancy s CDM Co-ordination

PROJECT

EFDC House Building Programme

TITLE

Existing and Proposed Plans
Loughton Way

DATE SCALE
NOV 2013 1:500 @A3

‘ DRAWN

NP

CHK

DRAWING No

612/023 P2-6

A

mll



Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 234



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 238



#r=a Epping Forest

_ District Council

\/ KIRBY CL Q w
3
7 . E 238m
a R
B . 3
g% F% - °~
8 é
. \ . A
3/ [244m 238m \ ot 2
p‘”‘ Co 3’5\
N
3 &
o Tre
o Count
Groen viain K
L
2
€4
: $
EX27677

o 0 Contains Ordnance Survey & Royal Mail Data
© © Crown Copynght & Database Right 2011
EFDC License No' 100018534 2011
Drectorate of Enviranment & Street Scene Project Content Dale
Civic Offices Potential Site for Council House | Rear Of Shops 04/07/12
i S"‘ée‘ Building Program Loughton Way Scaie
PR . Buckhurst Hill 1:1250 @ A4
CM16 482 Drawing No.
Tel 01992 564000 Drawn By
201206014 - F Robert Irwin

Page 239



Appendix D

Statutory Services Information

Page 240



Plant Protection
i larid Block 1 Foor 1
ﬂaTIOﬂa g? Brick Kiln Street
Hinckley
LE10 ONA

E-mail: plantprotection@nationalgrid.com
Telephone: +44 (0)800 688588

Adam Greenhalgh

Pellings National Grid Electricity Emergency Number:
24 Widmore Road 0800 40 40 s0*

Bromley National Gas Emergency Number:

Kent 0800 111 999*

BR1 1RY * Available 24 hours, 7 days/week.

Calls may be recorded and monitored.

www.nationalgrid.com

Date: 23/10/2013
Our Ref: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_042044
Your Ref: ag/dh/612/023/02 - wr022

@RE: Proposed Works, IG9 6AH LOUGHTON WAY, CITY OF LONDON
Thank you for your enquiry which was received on 17/10/2013.
Please note this response and any attached map(s) are valid for 28 days.

An assessment has been carried out with respect to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc's and National
Grid Gas plc's apparatus. Please note it does not cover the items listed in the section "Your Responsibilities
and Obligations”, including gas service pipes and related apparatus.

For details of National Grid's network areas please see the National Grid website
(http://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/) or the enclosed documentation.

As your works are at a "proposed"” stage, any maps and guidance provided are for information
purposes only. This is not approval to commence work. You must submit a "Scheduled Works"
. 1quiry at the earliest opportunity and failure to do this may lead to disruption to your plans and
works. National Grid will endeavour to provide an initial assessment within 14 days of receipt of a
Scheduled Works enquiry and dependent on the outcome of this, further consultation may be
required.

In any event, for safety and legal reasons, works must not be carried out until a Scheduled
Works enquiry has been completed and final response received.

National Grid is a trading name for: National Grid is a trading name for:
National Grid Electricity Transmission pic P agg@lazs%fas plc
Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, Londan WC2N SEH istered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N SEH

Registered in England and Wales, No 2366977 Registered in England and Wales, No 2006000



Your Responsibilities and Obligations

The "Assessment” Section below outlines the detailed requirements that must be followed when planning or
undertaking your scheduled activities at this location.

It is your responsibility to ensure that the information you have submitted is accurate and that all relevant
documents including links are provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you near
National Grid's apparatus, e.g. as contained within the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations.

This assessment solely relates to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc (NGET) and National Grid Gas plc
(NGG) apparatus. This assessment does NOT include:

e National Grid's legal interest (easements or wayleaves) in the land which restricts activity in proximity
to National Grid's assets in private land. You must obtain details of any such restrictions from the
G landowner in the first instance and if in doubt contact National Grid.
e Gas service pipes and related apparatus
Recently installed apparatus
e Apparatus owned by other organisations, e.g. other gas distribution operators, local electricity
companies, other utilities, etc.

Itis YOUR responsibility to take into account whether the items listed above may be present and if they could
be affected by your proposed activities. Further "Essential Guidance" in respect of these items can be found

on the National Grid Website (http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf).

This communication does not constitute any formal agreement or consent for any proposed development work;
either generally or with regard to National Grid's easements or wayleaves nor any planning or building
regulations applications.

¢NGG and NGET or their agents, servants or contractors do not accept any liability for any losses arising under

~orin connection with this information. This limit on liability applies to all and any claims in contract, tort (including
negligence), misrepresentation (excluding fraudulent misrepresentation), breach of statutory duty or
otherwise. This limit on liability does not exclude or restrict liability where prohibited by the law nor does it
supersede the express terms of any related agreements.

If you require further assistance please contact the National Grid Plant Protection team via e-mail (click here) or
via the contact details at the top of this response.

Yours faithfully

National Grid Plant Protection Team

Page 242

Page 2 0of 6




ASSESSMENT

Affected Apparatus
The National Grid apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity of your proposed works is:

e High or Intermediate pressure (above 2 bar) Gas Pipelines and associated equipment
e Low or Medium pressure (below 2 bar) gas pipes and associated equipment. (As a result it is highly
likely that there are gas services and associated apparatus in the vicinity)

Requirements
BEFORE carrying out any work you must:

e Carefully read these requirements including the attached guidance documents and maps showing the
location of National Grid apparatus.

o Contact the landowner and ensure any proposed works in private land do not infringe National Grid's
legal rights (i.e. easements or wayleaves). If the works are in the road or footpath the relevant local
authority should be contacted.

e Ensure that all persons, including direct labour and contractors, working for you on or near National
Grid's apparatus follow the requirements of the HSE Guidance Notes HSG47 - 'Avoiding Danger from
Underground Services' and GS6 - 'Avoidance of danger from overhead electric power lines'. This
guidance can be downloaded free of charge at http://www.hse.qov.uk

e Inline with the above guidance, verify and establish the actual position of mains, pipes, cables,
services and other apparatus on site before any activities are undertaken.

Page 243

Page 3 of 6



GUIDANCE

High Pressure Gas Pipelines Guidance:

If working in the vicinity of a high pressure gas pipeline the following document must be followed:
‘Specification for Safe Working in the Vicinity of National Grid High Pressure Gas Pipelines and Associated
Installations - Requirements for Third Parties' (SSW22). This can be obtained from:

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/SO0ACACOA-ED26-41A7-91FA-
83163A98270F/23790/TSPSSW22 J537 Rev0807.pdf

Excavating Safely - Avoiding injury when working near gas pipes:

http.//iwww.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/2D2EEA97-B213-459C-9A26-
18361C6E0BOD/25249/Digsafe leaflet3e2finalamends061 207.pdf

Standard Guidance

Essential Guidance document:

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf

General Guidance document:

hitp://www.nationalarid.com/NR/rdonlyres/556C13C4D-A1AA-4B13-BFDA-
1CF59F88B326/51318/GeneralGuidance.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of gas pipes guidance (Credit card):

http:/iww.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/A3D37677-6641-476C-9DDA-
E89949052829/44257/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCard.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of electricity cables guidance (Credit card):

hitp://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/35DDEC6D-D754-4BA5-AF3C-
g«\ D607D05A25C2/44858/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCardelectricitycables.pdf

Copies of all the Guidance Documents can also be downloaded from the National Grid Website:

http://www. nationalgrid. com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/downloads/

Page 244

Page 4 of 6



ENQUIRY SUMMARY

Received Date
17/10/2013

Your Reference
ag/dh/612/023/02 - wr022

Location

Centre Point: 542184, 194703

X Extent: 79

Y Extent: 104

Postcode: IGS 6AH

Location Description: 1G9 6AH LOUGHTON WAY, CITY OF LONDON

Map Options
f‘ﬁm Paper Size: A4
Orientation: LANDSCAPE
Requested Scale: 1250
Actual Scale: 1:5000 (GAS)
Real World Extents: 1445m x 785m (GAS)

Recipients
pprsteam@uk.ngrid.com

Enquirer Details
Organisation Name: Pellings

Contact Name: Adam Greenhalgh

Email Address: bromley@pellings.co.uk

Telephone: 0208 460 9114

Address: 24 Widmore Road, Bromley, Kent, BR1 1RY

(’W\ Description of Works
plans required

Enguiry Type
Proposed Works

Activity Type
Development Project

Work Types
Work Type: Plans Only

Page 245

Page 6 of 6



9t¢ abed

A
\ -
1 it ryi

ID: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_042044

[View extent: 1445m, 785m

Map not to be used for construction

[Map 1 of 1 (GAS)

USER: wayne.ridgeway

LP MAINS

DATE: 23/10/2013

MP MAINS
IP MAINS

DATA DATE: 15/10/2013

REF: ag/dh/612/023/02 - wr022

MAP REF: TQ4294
CENTRE: 542184, 194703

LHP MAINS
NHP MAINS

Om 1 100m
Approximate scale 1:5000

on A4 Colour Landscape

VMM

g:f,f,"”\/ syphon () D ”"“”EE

Material

Change Change

This plan shows those pipes owned by National Grid Gas plc in its role as a Licensed Gas Transporter (GT).

Gas pipes owned by other GTs, or otherwise privately owned, may be present in this area. Information

with regard to such pipes should be obtained from the relevant owners. The information shown on this plan is

given without warranty, the accuracy thereof cannot be guaranteed. Service pipes, valves, syphons, stub connections,
etc., are not shown but their presence should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by
National Grid Gas plc or their agents, servants or contractors for any error or omission, Safe digging

practices, in accordance with HS(G)47, must be used to verify and establish the actual position of mains,

pipes, services and other apparatus on site before any mechanical plant is used. It is your responsibility to ensure

that this information is provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you on or near gas

lapparatus. The information included on this plan should not be referred to beyond a period of 28 days from the date

of issue.

[MAPS Plot Server Version 1.7.6

nationalgrid

Requested by: Pellings

This plan is reproduced from or based on the

OS map by National Grid Gas plc, with the sanction
of the controller of HM Stationery Office.

Crown Copyright Reserved. Ordnance Survey

Licence number 100024886




\ Environment
Agency

creating a better place

}'

Adam Greenhalgh Our refs: NE/2013/119023/01-L01
Pellings LLP NE/2013/119024/01-L01
24 Widmore Road

Bromley Yourref: AG/dh/612.023/05

Kent

BR1 1RY Date: 5 November 2013

Dear Adam,

Enquiry for proposed redevelopment of two sites: Rear of Shops, Loughton
Way, Buckhurst Hill and Pentlow Way, Buckhurst Hill

Thank you for consulting us with details of the above sites. In addition to our
comments that we have already provided to you for the majority of the sites you
consulted us with, these sites also appear to have a culverted watercourse
running through them. These features will require additional investigations prior to
any redevelopment.

As discussed above, our maps indicate that there is a culverted ordinary
watercourse that runs through both of these sites. We would expect the applicant
to open up any culverts running through the site where feasible, naturalise the
watercourse and provide a sufficient development-free buffer zone adjacent to the
newly restored watercourse. If the applicant is unable to open up the culvert, full
justification should be provided and alternative mitigation or compensation should
be provided. Responsibility for ordinary watercourses has now been passed to
the Lead Local Flood Authority (Essex County Council in this case), who would
need to agree to any proposals outlined for the watercourse.

The culverted watercourse, which runs north-west to south-east through the site,
feeds directly into the River Roding. Under the Water Framework Directive, the
River Roding is currently at ‘poor’ ecological status, with a target of achieving
‘good’ ecological status (gaining two descriptive classes) by a 2027 deadline.
Given this, we strongly support any projects that positively enhance the River
Roding or the watercourses in the Roding catchment.

As we are in an area of serious water stress, we endorse the efficient use of
water resources. Residential developments such as your proposal should take
advantage of water efficient technologies. This is in line with Epping Forest's local
policy CP5 which states that the efficient use of water is encouraged through
water efficient appliances and rainwater harvesting for example.

We suggest you use water efficiency measures and aim to achieve 105
litres/person/day. This is equivalent to level 3/4 for water within the Code for
Sustainable Homes. Achieving this standard within new homes can be
accomplished at very little additional cost, and is significantly cheaper than
retrofitting such measures Iater.

Environment Agency ,
Apollo Court, 2 Bishops Sq Business park, Hatfll_%ld. Herts %_170 9EX.
age 2



Every opportunity should be taken to maximise Sustainable Drainage Systems
(SuDS) such as green roofs, ponds, swales and permeable pavements, to
alleviate surface water runoff. | have previously provided you with a copy of our
SuDS guidance, which contains the SuDS hierarchy, to help you with your
designs. The methods at the top of the hierarchy are preferred because they are
beneficial in terms of sustainability and biodiversity. The hierarchy should be used
in descending order. Tanks should only be used as a last resort. Epping Forest's
local policy U3B on sustainable drainage systems advocates this approach.

As both of the sites are under a hectar% in Flood Zone 1, they fall within cell F5 of

our Flood Risk Standing Advice consultation matrix. Epping Forest Local Planning
Authority will therefore be responsible for assessing flood risk at these sites.

Yours sincerely,
Clark Gordon
Sustainable Places Planning Advisor

Direct dial 01707 632308
E-mail SPHatfield@environment-agency.gov.uk

Page 248



Adam Greenhalgh

From; Trevor Baker <tjbaker@eppingforestdc.gov.uk>

Sent: 08 November 2013 14:15

To: Adam Greenhalgh

Cc: Lee Savill; John Hayes; Matt Little

Subject: FW: OS Extracts - Pentlow Way/Loughton Way, Loughton

Attachments: 119023 (2).pdf; CANON808A3B_LDAPMAIL_l1062013-144839.pdf; Public Sewer
extracts.pdf

Dear Mr Greenhalgh

Thank you for your email of yesterday concerning the potential development of the above sites.

The EA are partially correct in their statement, and | enclose for your perusal extracts from Thames Waters Public
Sewer Records.

e@'[he 750/825mm diameter “drains” running west to east on the northern edges of both sites, are on the face of it

* «ulverted watercourses and given that on the whole they run under Epping Forest District Council land they would
be the responsibility of this organisation. However, if there were circumstances that dictated a more in-depth
analysis of their status, as the drains effectively operate as public surface water sewers taking all manner of surface
and highway water run off, this team on behalf of EFDC would potentially challenge Thames’ designation that they
are “private” assets. However, in the short term and for your purposes they would be designated as assets under
the control of this team on behalf of EFDC’s Housing directorate.

Notwithstanding the above, for the Loughton Way site the drain is at the northern edge of the site and within the
“green corridor” that | doubt would be subject to above ground development anyway.

For Pentlow Way, the drain is well away from the sites northern boundary and would not be directly affected. What
is of more importance for this location is the indicated presence of a 675mm diameter public foul water sewer
running diagonally across the site at a depth of approx 2.3m to invert. Should any development be proposed over
the line of the sewer then Thames Water must be consulted and advice sought.

I trust the above is self-explanatory, but should you require any further assistance, please feel free to contact this
@weam again

Kind regards

Trevor Baker
Land Drainage Engineer

Epping Forest District Council
Civic Offices

High Street

Epping

Essex

CM16 4BZ

P: 01992 564048 (DD)
P: 01992 564608 (Customer Services)

E: tibaker@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 249



e (8381 g BioveD im0
APPUNCH )| eSeesEsEssssssssssw Ot
; - Ledhy parge swuep nopg)
L] TS ———— — — - - 1SSy BInAl ‘uayepapun aJe Sy10M AUR B10J8q B)IS U0 payUaA 8q SN SB3IAI8S PUB SUIBW Jo uonisod
.-Uﬂmg D AOUUTIY I iy BInssasd [BNjoB 8Y] "uOISSIWO Jo JouB AUB Joj Jajep sawey] Aq pajdadsae S| JaAsosiEyM pury Aue
) jo Aynqen op "pajedionue aq pinoys souasald 8y} Jng umoys jou ale sadid aa1nag *pajuud
sauie _._.—. PSP pelicpueay e i ajep o} 40} PIiEA S| UONBULIOJUI SIY| "paojuRIEnS 8q JOUUED ADBINDOE 8L} PUB 'AuBLem
_ -] BIOYURRY POLIUIOT) MGG PAIGUIOD pue uonebiqo inoyim uaalb s1 ued siy) uo umoys smesedde ay) jo uomsod 8y “papiulad
0o e, S 10u ale sa1dod Jayun po ejep dew ay jo sasn Jayio Auy “f|uo jued Jayep SBWEY] JO UONEDO]
’ ay) Buimaia jo sesodind ay) Joj pasn aq o} st dew sIYL'SHESLO00 L -IaGUIN asuaar] 8210
x_._‘oo.mmc:_ma@na_m::memm_ ® SOLUBIY 04 1BMBS |10 Aleuonels ‘W'H Jo J8jjonuod ay) Jo uoiuEs ay) ypm dejy ABAINg 9oUBUPIQ Ay} uo paseq
PV ue|d Jajemalsepn €1/80/91 :pejepdneleq  9L/p6L'L69LZYS :anua) dey £80}:} 91€0S EL/0L/ET 'Beq S¥EEL000L ABAING @auBUPIQ Z10Z SWB RseqEep pus jyBpkdoD umai) (2)

/ lu.rlilrr.!nlf.f.. Wipg, —

—— 2y .|.||.. - — __.‘.U ok
€0.0

.




Green Walk

{e) Crown Copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100018345 Date: 23/10/13

Scale: 1:1083

Map Centre: 542169.7,194716

Data updated: 16/08/13

Clean Water Plan A4

Based on the Ordnance Survey Map with the sanction of the Controller of
H.M. Stationary Office License Number:- 100019345.This map is to be
used for the purposes of viewing the location of Thames Water plant only.
Any other uses of the map data orf urther copies are not permitted. The
position of the apparatus shown on this plan is given without obligation
and warranty, and the accuracy cannot be guaranteed. This information is
valid for the date printed. Service pipes are not shown but their presence
should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by
Thames Water for any error or omission. The actual position of mains and
services must be verified on site before any works are undertaken,

Water Main
Private Water
Proposed Water

Abandoned Asset

SEsEEsEsEsEmRsEEEE

Meter wal
Valve o,
Hydrant &
End Item ®

_ agreenhalgh@pellings.co.uk

Thames

Water
e

~tlli—




BOZBLOO0L 1WHAG0D) umag @ Aaang eoumupig) ey pesar] spepy Ui Ag peanpasd o ued ey

bipatl v — — T p— T ey oy i i

0 veadophiun wy “wpey uillaa Jo souslyBeu g o eng M § TeeL ooy ‘pesn w jued [ e AU Bo;eg a0

e Aq prpsma wg e A jo wompwod o ]

mpery Ll j0 Aaupna g Ly e snsT 50 UeEaRTs Aue 100 Buplue e nad g usd B U0 Ao A (10U Jn nad “esesey |

. — 1— e s HatelLriong UG, B 04 PRECILMOD 84 LD (R '] BRpOTE ROy
PEDSLY, P13 BB PUNG) 89 LT MANAD 1L DURONG MG Ly s ‘e l] ETIY PasE] e B PO awar]

SOYOA BLUEL GIGUM BITUTLILY 6 AU 0 SR N BIDeTY LATLALA, LI 19 UOREE S0 “LOBIDPE L AJErmoe Ky e

—— BOUAIND G ] SYEEROK B GG W Sl 6 Png e B wroeseide wpeyy uiBas Asuen o w uesd wg o esodind sy

_ x:.oo.wmc___an.._@nm_mzcme_mmg el T e p—

bV ue|d swooaja] €1/80/5Z ‘palepdn e1e@  ¥'0LLY6L'E 1BLZHG (anuaD depy £80L:L :9|BOS €L0L/YE eleq 602610001 A9AINS GouwUPIQ |1 0Z S4B oseqejep pu JyBukdon umaid (2)




Page 253



Appendix E

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District
Council by way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential
contamination across all the primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites
that move forward to Planning Applications.

Page 254



Appendix F

Cost Build-up

Page 255



Site P2 6, 142-164 Loughton Way, Pentlow Way, Buckhurst Hill IG9
Indicative Estimate of Cost
for East Thames HA

28 November 2013
Gross Internal floor area m2 ft2
Affordable Flat Units 0 0
Allowance for communal space @ 20% 0 0
Affordable House Units 372 4,004
TOTAL GIA 372 4,004
Item  Element Qty Unit Rate Total
Elunit £
1.0 Demolition
1.1 Demolition 329 m? 50 16,449
2.2 Site clearance 1,656 m? 10 16,556
1.2 Allowance for removal of asbestos 24 No 800 19,200
Sub-total say 50,000
2.0 Affordable Flat units (xx nr. units)
2.1 Flats Private areas 0 m? 1,350 0
2.2 Flats communal areas (20% allowed) 0m? 900 0
Sub-total say 0
3.0 Affordable House units (04 nr. units)
~=. 3.1 House areas 372 m? 1,250 465,000
Sub-total say 470,000
4.0 Abnormals / E/o and External Works
4.1 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 381 m? 40 15,000
4.2 Communal Gardens 310 m? 30 9,000
4.3 Access road, parking and turning 728 m? 65 47,000
4.4 Pedestrian paving 0 m? 50 Incl.
4.5 Cross over / highways adaptions 2 item 2,000 4,000
4.6 Allowance for contaminated ground 0 item Excl.
4.7 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 227 m 160 36,000
4.8 Allowance for achieving CfSh Level 3 4nr 4,500 18,000
Sub-total say 130,000
£/m2 £/it2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 650,000
CONTINGENCY @ 5% 30,000
CONTRACTORS DESIGN FEES @ 8% 54,400
PRELIMS AND OVERHEADS AT 15% 97,500
TOTAL INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 2,236 831,900

—
arifications and Assumptions

Estimate based on Pellings Feasibility drawings and standard ETG specifications

GIA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on a Q3 2014 start on site

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 3

Itis assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber floor structure, sloped tiled

roofs) will be used

Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract

Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Hazardous material removal

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by TFL or other statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, $108, S278 Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Page 256




Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report
Site: 440-445 Lower Alderton Hall (Garages) Loughton 1G10 3HA

Rev: A

Ref:  1JC/srs/612.023
Date: September 2014

Page 257



Pellings

Contents

1. Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
2. Existing Site and Surroundings

3. Proposals

4. Planning Issues and Risks

5.
6
7
8
9

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

. Site Access and Buildability Issues

. Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
. Proposed Procurement Route

. Impact on Parking

10.Legals
11.Costs
12.Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices

A: Development Proposals — Drawings 612.023.P2-8A
Site Photographs

Existing Site Plan 201206014-A0

Statutory Services Information

Information on Possible Contamination

Cost Build-up

nmoow

Page 258



1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

3.0

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

612023

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District
Council for a six year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having
possible development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP have been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites and
which will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located in a residential area midway between Loughton and Debden
stations.

The site consists of 6 single garages, hard surfaced parking area and grassed
verges. It is situated on one side of a close of 11 two bedroom terraced houses,
none of which appear to have any parking spaces immediately associated with
them. The surrounding area is residential but it consists of a range of
architectural styles. There are two, three and four storey houses and flats, some
brick built and some concrete panelled, with both flat and pitched roofs.

The site backs on to the railway line.

The site is served by electricity cables which appear to run to the perimeter.

A number of mature trees are on or adjacent to the site.

Proposals

Read in conjunction with drawings 612.023.P2-8A attached at Appendix A.

The proposals are :

Erection of a 2 x two storey 2 bedroom houses each with gardens
Provision of 20 parking spaces and access/landscaping

Proposals when reaching detailed design stage, will need to take account of
foundation solutions and protection measures to take account of tree influence.

Planning Issues and Risks
Relevant Planning Policies/Considerations

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest District Council is the
Combined Local Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area and it is not designated for any
particular purposes in the Epping Forest District Council Combined Local Plan
1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006. The site does not lie in a Flood Zone on
the Environment Agency Flood Map.

Page 259

440-445 Lower Alderton Hall (Garages) REV A 1



4.3.

4.4.

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.8.

5.4.

612023

There are no specific policies which prevent the loss of existing garages although
policy ST4 (Road Safety) states that planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion or harm
to the character or appearance of the area. Parking spaces to meet with the
Council’'s standards are proposed for the new dwellings.

It will be necessary to undertake a Parking Survey and to prepare a Transport
Statement to demonstrate that the loss of the garages and proposed development
would not cause any parking shortfalls or harm to highway conditions or the
amenities of the area.

The site is located in the settlement of Loughton and the proposal would be
consistent with policy CP7 which encourages the efficient use of existing built-up
areas by the ‘recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-used land to
accommodate the development’ and the ‘re-use of urban sites, which are no
longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in the foreseeable future, for
alternative land uses'.

The proposal would comply with policy H4A which states the need for a range of
dwellings, including an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet
identified housing need on a site-by-site basis.

The development of small family homes with rear gardens and private and
communal parking would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the
area and may comply with Epping Forest’s design policies and guidance.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Southern Gas

Cable and Wireless

Virgin Media

Thames Water

BT

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy
Environment Agency

UK Power Networks

Responses received to date are from the Environment Agency, National Grid, UK
Power Networks, Virgin Media and Thames Water.

The Environment Agency has not pointed out any watercourses which cross the
site.

National Grid: No apparatus appears to be located on the site that affects our
proposals.

UK Power Networks: There are cables appearing to run around the perimeter of
the site, exact size and location to be confirmed.

Virgin Media: There is a cable along the southern part of the site.

Thames Water: A water main and surface sewer run along the southern boundary
of the site.

Page 260

440-445 Lower Alderton Hall (Garages) REV A 2



5.5.

5.6.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

8.0

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

612023

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Proposals and siting of buildings have taken account of the services identified to
date.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be
any particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic
associated with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area and, accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and
within normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues
have been highlighted with use of the domestic garages, and also a former
horticultural nursery. Possible contaminants in respect of the former use as a
nursery are summarised and indicated within the note produced by EFDC
Planning and Economic Development Directorate at Appendix E.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may
include asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and
the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal
with any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P2-8A, it is not considered that Party Wall
matters will be relevant.

We would recommend approach to Network rail to identify any particular
requirements that might affect proposals.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East
Thames Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage D planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be
subsequently confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East
Thames Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement

documentation.
Page 261
440-445 Lower Alderton Hall (Garages) REV A 3



8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

612023

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual
contract packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory
services, highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure
size of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East
Thames Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide -
September 2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as
statutory planning guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling
2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest
whole number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards
for new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking
surveys, to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any
planning or highway problems.

Proposals for parking substantially exceed the current requirements to meet
Planning standards. We have taken the opportunity to formalise parking on the
site which is heavily parked at present and on an ad-hoc basis.

Legals
We have been provided with a Summary Report of legal matters from EFDC
Solicitors. The report makes reference to the suggested appropriation of land for

planning purposes which would extinguish any prior rights of way.

The report makes reference to possible rights of light risk. A blanket policy
against such risk might be considered.

As included within Pellings LLP Feasibility Report, the Legals Checklist
recommends approach to Network Rail to establish any particular considerations.

Page 262

440-445 Lower Alderton Hall (Garages) REV A 4



10.4. There is an existing Network Rail access highlighted within the Housing
Management Report which would need a small revision to the private garden of
Plot 1 on Pellings proposals.

10.5. The site is in use for existing parking provision for Nos. 1 — 11 Lower Alderton Hall
Lane and any rights of access therefore should be particularly established for this
site.

1.0 Costs

11.1. It is considered that a budget of £367,500.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

12.0 Recommendations and Conclusions
121. Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for

taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Z2ots

Pellings LLP

Page 263

612023 440-445 Lower Alderton Hall (Garages) REV A 5



Appendix A

Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023.P2-8A

Page 264



| e
W

- TOTALS
| Site Area 0.091 Ha

- 2 x 2 Bed Houses @ 77 sqm

20 Parking Spaces

.-
5
N
o)
o1

NOTES

Rev Date Description Name Pellings LLP Architecture & Planning m Building Surveying m Project Management m
Report all discrepancies, errors and omissions PRELI M I NARY 24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY Cost Consultancy = CDM Co-ordination

Do not scale from this drawing - o] §30700) 8460 9114 £020 8313 0019 e bromley@pellings.co.uk

Verify all dimensions on site before commencing any work or www.pelings.co.uk

preparing sop dravings u “*" East Thames HA =" EFDC House Building Programme

All materials, components and workmanship are to comply with

all the relevant British Standards, Cedes of Practice, and Pel I I n s TITLE e DATE SCALE DRAWN CHK

appropriate manufacturers recommendations that from time to Existing and Proposed Plans NOV 2013 1:500 @A3 NP

fime shall apply Lower Alderton Hall Lane DRAWING No

Far all specialist work, see relevant drawings 6 1 2 ‘ 023 ‘ P2 8 ‘A
D\s drawing and design are copyright of PELLINGS LLP | J



Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 266



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 270



# = Epping Forest
&1, District Council

Und
—_—
“ Oakfiekds -
Woodlands  \° %ﬁ\
Court sa T
% LY
6‘,\5
» q&-
%
o « i‘“ A \M
s « wo L]
ﬁ y
©p
% X\ Crossways -
ot w
%
3 we o -
e
s 2] - *»
-
I3
A . -
\ "
g% o 18
o
\l°‘°
13",
: Contains Ordnance Survey & Royal Mail Data
2 © Crown Copyright & Database Right 2011
EFDC License No: 100018534 2011
Directorate of Environment & Street Scene ﬁ’rojed Content Date
Civic Offices Potential Site for Council House | Lower Alderton Hall Lane 04/07/12
High Street Building Program Loughton Scale
ch |169¢iBZ - 1:1250 @ A4
Drawing No.
Tel. 01892 564000 [Drawn By |

Page 271




Appendix D

Statutory Services Information

Page 272



Plant Protection
. . Naticnal Grid
nationalgrid
¢ Brick Kiln Street
Hinckle
LE100
E-mail: plantprotection@nationalgrid.com
Telephone: +44 (0)800 688588
Adam Greenhalgh

Pellings National Grid Electricity Emergency Number:
24 Widmore Road 0800 40 40 90°

Bromiey National Gas Emergency Number:

Kent 0800 111 999°

BR1 1RY * Available 24 hours, 7 daysiweek.

Calls may be recorded and monitored.

www.nationalgrid.com

Date: 24/10/2013
Our Ref: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_042149
Your Ref: LOWER ALDERTON HALL LANE

RE: Proposed Works, IG10 3HA,lower alderton hall lane,loughton,essex
Thank you for your enquiry which was received on 17/10/2013.
Please note this response and any attached map(s) are valid for 28 days.

An assessment has been carried out with respect to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc's and National
Grid Gas plc's apparatus. Please note it does not cover the items listed in the section "Your Responsibilities
and Obligations”, including gas service pipes and related apparatus.

For details of National Grid's network areas please see the National Grid website
(hitp://www.nationalgrid. com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/) or the enclosed documentation.

As your works are at a "proposed" stage, any maps and guidance provided are for information
purposes only. This is not approval to commence work. You must submit a "Scheduled Works"
enquiry at the earliest opportunity and failure to do this may lead to disruption to your plans and
works. National Grid will endeavour to provide an initial assessment within 14 days of receipt of a
Scheduled Works enquiry and dependent on the outcome of this, further consultation may be
required.

In any event, for safety and legal reasons, works must not be carried out until a Scheduled
Works enquiry has been completed and final response received.

Naticnal Grid is a trading name for: National Grid is a trading name for:
Naticnal Grid Electricity Transmission plc Naticnal Grid Gas pic
Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N SEH Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, Lenden WC2N 5€H

Registered in England and Wales, No 2366977 P Regis ipEngland and Wales, No 2006000
age 273



Your Responsibilities and Obligations

The "Assessment" Section below outlines the detailed requirements that must be followed when planning or
undertaking your scheduled activities at this location.

It is your responsibility to ensure that the information you have submitted is accurate and that all relevant
documents including links are provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you near
National Grid's apparatus, e.g. as contained within the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations.

This assessment solely relates to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc (NGET) and National Grid Gas plc
(NGG) apparatus. This assessment does NOT include:

¢ National Grid's legal inter est (easements or wayleaves) in the land which restricts activity in proximity
to National Grid's assets in private land. You must obtain details of any such restrictions from the
landowner in the first instance and if in doubt contact National Grid.

e Gas service pipes and related apparatus

Recently installed apparatus

e Apparatus owned by other organisations, e.g. other gas distribution operators, local electricity
companies, other utilities, etc.

It is YOUR responsibility to take into account whether the items listed above may be present and if they could
be affected by your proposed activities. Further "Essential Guidance” in respect of these items can be found
on the National Grid Website (http://www.nationalgrid. com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf).

This communication does not constitute any formal agreement or consent for any proposed development work;
either generally or with regard to National Grid's easements or wayleaves nor any planning or building
regulations applications.

NGG and NGET or their agents, servants or contractors do not accept any liability for any losses arising under
or in connection with this information. This limit on liability applies to all and any claims in contract, tort (including
negligence), misrepresentation (excluding fraudulent misrepresentation), breach of statutory duty or
otherwise. This limit on liability does not exclude or restrict liability where prohibited by the law nor does it
supersede the expres s terms of any related agreements.

If you require further assistance please contact the National Grid Plant Protection team via e-mail (click here) or
via the contact details at the top of this response.

Yours faithfully

National Grid Plant Protection Team

Page 274 Page 2 of 6



ASSESSMENT

Affected Apparatus
The National Grid apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity of your proposed works is:

e Low or Medium pressure (below 2 bar) gas pipes and associated equipm ent. (As a result it is highly
likely that there are gas services and associated apparatus in the vicinity)

Requirements
BEFORE carrying out any work you must:

e Carefully read these requirements including the attached guidance documents and maps showing the
location of National Grid apparatus.

e Contact the landowner and ensure any proposed works in private land do not infringe National Grid's
legal rights (i.e. easements or wayleaves). If the works are in the road or footpath the relevant local
authority should be contacted.

e Ensure that all persons, including direct labour and contractors, working for you on or near National
Grid's apparatus follow the requirements of the HSE Guidance Notes HSG47 - 'Avoiding Danger from
Underground Services' and GS6 ~ 'Avoidance of danger from overhead electric power lines'. This
guidance can be downloaded free of charge at http://www.hse.gov.uk

o In line with the above guidance, verify and establish the actual position of mains, pipes, cables,
services and other apparatus on site before any activities are undertaken.

Page 275 Page 3 of 6




GUIDANCE

Excavating Safely - Avoiding injury when working near gas pipes:

bttp://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/2D2EEA97-B213-459C-9A26-
18361C6E0BOD/25249/Digsafe leaflet3e2finalamends061207.pdf

Standard Guidance

Essential Guidance document:

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F 9-59EB-4825-BA8S-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf

General Guidance document:

- http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/55C13C4D-A1AA-4B13-BFDA-
e 1CF59F88B326/51318/GeneralGuidance.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of gas pipes guidance (Credit card):

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/A3D37677-6641-476C-9DDA-
E89949052829/44257/E xcavatingSafelyCreditCard. pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of electricity cables guidance (Credit card):

http://iwww.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/35DDEC6D-D754-4BA5-AF3C-
D607D05A25C2/44858/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCardelectricitycables.pdf

Copies of all the Guidance Documents can also be downloaded from the National Grid Website:

http://www.nationalgrid. com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/downloads/

Page 276 Page 4 of 6



L1¢ abed

Y g -.‘.

o\

ID: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_042149

\View extent: 361m, 196m

Map not to be used for construction

[Map 1 of 1 (GAS)

USER: roy.x.jones
DATE: 24/10/2013

DATA DATE: 15/10/2013
REF: LOWER ALDERTON HALL LAN{

MAP REF: TQ4395
CENTRE: 543325, 195708

LP MAINS

MP MAINS =
IP MAINS —
LHP MAINS
NHP MAINS

Om'! 25m

Approximale scale 1:1250
on Ad Colour Landscape

This plan shows those pipes owned by National Grid Gas plc in its role as a Licensed Gas Transporter (GT).

Gas pipes owned by other GTs, or otherwise privately owned, may be present in this area. Information

fwith regard to such pipes should be obtained from the relevant owners. The information shown on this plan is

given without warranty, the accuracy thereof cannot be guaranteed. Service pipes, valves, syphons, stub connections,

etc., are not shown but their presence should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by

National Grid Gas plc or their agents, servants or contractors for any error or omission. Safe digging

practices, in accordance with HS(G)47, must be used to verify and establish the actual position of mains,

pipes, services and other apparatus on site before any mechanical plant is used. It is your responsibility to ensure

[i;hat this information is provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you on or near gas
pparatus. The information included on this plan should not be referred to beyond a period of 28 days from the date

IMAPS Plot Server Version 1.7.6

nationalgrid

Requested by: Pellings

This plan is reproduced from or based on the
0S map by National Grid Gas plc, with the sanction

jof issue. of the controller of HM Stationery Office.
D(] Depth of Diameter Matenial ) Crown Copyright Reserved. Ordnance Survey
Valve Syphon i
Cover Change Change |Licence number 100024886




Adam Greenhalgh

»

From: SPHatfield <SPHatfield@environment-agency.gov.uk>
Sent: 23 October 2013 17:49

To: Adam Greenhalgh

Subject: RE: Epping Forest DC - potential development sites
Dear Adam,

Further to your letters dated 16 October (your ref: AG/dh/612.023/05), we have the following comments to
make on the specific sites listed below (please note that comments on three sites — Rear of shops,
Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill; Pentlow Way, Buckhurst Hill and Site B, Marlescroft Way, Loughton — will
follow on or before 7 November due to additional site constraints).

Sites: Burton Road, Debden
White Hills, Loughton
Thatchers Close, Loughton
Site A, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles’) Lane, Loughton
Site B, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyries’) Lane, Loughton
o Site A, Chequers Road, Loughton
Site B, Chequers Road, Loughton
Site A, Langley Meadow, Loughton
Site B, Langley Meadow, Loughton
Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill
Hornbeam House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Bourne House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Bushfields, Loughton
Etheridge Road, Loughton
Lower Alderton Hall Lane, Loughton
Ladyfields, Loughton
Kirby Close, Loughton
Chester Road, Loughton
Hillyfields, Loughton

Comments

As we are in an area of serious water stress, we endorse the efficient use of water resources. Residential
fw Jevelopments such as your proposal should take advantage of water efficient technologies. This is in line

with Epping Forest's local policy CP5 which states that the efficient use of water is encouraged through

water efficient appliances and rainwater harvesting for example.

Page 278



We suggest you use water efficiency measures and aim to achieve 105 litres/person/day. This is equiyalent
to level 3/4 for water within the Code for Sustainable Homes. Achieving this standard within new homes-__

can be accomplished at very little additional cost, and is significantly cheaper than retrofitting such -
measures later.

Page 279



Every opportunity should be taken to maximise Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) such as green
roofs, ponds, swales and permeable pavements, to alleviate surface water runoff. | have attached a copy of
our SuDS guidance, which contains the SuDS hierarchy, to help you with your designs. The methods at the
top of the hierarchy are preferred because they are beneficial in terms of sustainability and biodiversity.
The hierarchy should be used in descending order. Tanks should only be used as a last resort. Epping
Forest's local policy U3B on sustainable drainage systems advocates this approach.

As the sites are all under a hectare in Flood Zone 1, they fall within cell F5 of our Flood Risk Standing
Advice consultation matrix. Epping Forest Local Planning Authority will therefore be responsible for
assessing flood risk at these sites.

Kind regards,

Clark Gordon

Sustainable Places Planning Advisor
Environment Agency

North East Thames Area - Hatfield Team
01707 632308

‘“m The climate is changing. Are you?

THE=N Y support SeRic - - e
CLIMATE READY AR R ot :
5 please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?
Information ir

have received this

and do not

ial and may be legally privileged. If you

lease notify the sender immediately, delete it

iy

tacnments for viruses. But you should still check

asked to under the
Email messages and
be accessed by

eedom of Inf:
tachments sent tc

)

Page 280



E—guggﬂgésgigt‘eﬁlng"h

DIpaW \ 4 —— i e i R B S o i e s

b 2 veakondim 0y " A j2 wouslyfeu wg oy org woun P W A wicyeq it U0
gi'iii’i%k%!?%}!ftigyi

Ty A 0 AU g 1 o 1 10 uopeaETos Aue 100 Buslion) e nad g Lepd s 00 Aeow A 1o e LT

. _ ﬁ Joulgen Jsqueyn youesL 19ng R T T pa——
PRayY, Syl Duren punag eq ue BEeen e Suiong e U e ueesl TR PR LSeq BARy SO samod.

B0 UL B UL B AU B STsed e WDy LB Leim g LoD B ‘LOIDPS Ly erene 1y Ui,

- VORI B 5] BT W SOALNOOW W ) S ) P ARy B wsesedde mipeyy il Gnuep oL m ued w0 ssodind sy

_ x:.ou.mm_.____mn©:m_mccc2mm_ [T ————

bV ue|d swodaja] €1/80/SZ :pajepdn B1eQ  €'LBISEL'Y'SEEEYS :aua) depy £801:} 9|B2S EL/0L/PE ‘@eQ 60261000} AVAING BOURUPIQ |40 S1BY osuquEp pue JuBukdog umaid (o)

Ay

A
j m»m;mmo%

\ m.avh //f O \ . = :

| ¥y SN m
e ! \
()

Q

o™

o

'
ragc Z01




191eM
sawiey |

=

x:.S.wmc___ma@_._mhm_.__._wmhmm_

1955y pauopurqy

° way pus
. JUBIPAH sssssssssssnan
e ST mnmama

JOJO)]|  ——

Jajepn pasodold

191eAA 218ALd

UIEA] JBIBAA

“UBNELBPUN B8 SYIOM AUB 910J8q 8IS UO PaIUDBA B |SNLU S82IAIDS

puE SUlBW Jo uolisod |enjoe 8y "UOISSILIO JO JoLB AUE JOj J8jBAp SOLUBY |
Aq pejdanae s1iaasosieym puy Aue jo Ayiqer oN ‘peredionue aq pinoys
souasasd Jay) 1ng umoys Jou ale sadid pajnues ‘pejuld Bjep ay) Joj pijea
S1 uonewlojul sy “pasjuesent aq jouued AoBINoOR 8y} PUB ‘AJUBLIEM pUB
uonefiqo noyum uamb s1 ueid siyy uo umoys snjesedde ayj jo uonisod

ay] papwad jou aue saidod sayun po ejep dew ay) Jo sasn Jaylo Auy
“Aluo jue|d Jejep, sawey) jo uoleao) ay) Buimala jo sasodind ay) Joj pasn
aq 0} st dew siy1°SyEGLO00L ~:Jequinp esuaor] 81O Aeuoneis "W'H

JO Jaj|oAuoY BY) Jo uonIUES Byl UM dep AeAIng 8aUBUPIQ) BUY) UD paseg

¥V UB|d 18)EAN UEBB|D

£1/80/9 :pejepdn ejeq £'€94561'BOEEYS :8uaD depy

£801:1 9|BOg

E€H0L/ET ‘Bieq

SPEGL000L Aeaing eousupIQ 2402 sBy eseqeep pue ybuidon umoid (o)

L W T =

_ : Shad @_ﬁ

Damnas 209

raytc 204z




191eM
sawey]

L Joll N R

BOUUREY S0

(waly penge shouep mepnl

APpUnogp(ls eEeesssssssssssew
oAy puengs pemep mom))

AT o — - — - — -

R PEUOPURY

1Sy pasoaing
1955y apnALg
LIy BINSSalg

FANGS PEUOPUIITY

‘uByEUBpUN BJE SYJoM KUE 8J0Jaq BJIS UO PaljUBA 8q ISNLL SadlAlas PUB SUIBW Jo uonisod
|EMOE 8y "UOISSIWO Jo Joua Aue Joj Jalep sawey] Aq paydasoe si JaAsosiEyMm puiy Aue

10 Anigen on “pajedionue aq pinoys aouasasd J18y) INg umoys jou ale sadid aamiag "pajund
ajep ay} Joj pljeA SI UCHEWLOJUI S| padjuelienb aq jouueo £oeIN23E ay) pue ‘Ajueuem

1_ BOYUTYY POUIGLIGT) RS DAY pue uonebiiqo noypm uanb si ueld siyy uo umoys snjesedde ay) jo vonisod ay) “payiwused

P —— T kg jou aue saidod Jayun po ejep dew ay) jo sasn Jayjo Auy “Aluo juejd J8jep) SeWey] JO uoledo|

ayj Buimala Jo sesodind ay) Joj pasn aq o) st dew SIY]'SPEGLO0DL - 8qUINN 8suadl] a0

v_:.S.mmc___mn@_._m_mz:mmhmm_ BOYUBI N0 1M jno4 feuonEls "W'H Jo Jojjo5uog ay) jo uoroues syl yim depy Aeaing esueupiQ 84} uo peseq

bV ue|d Jejemalsep £L/80/91 ‘pelepdn Bleg  £'€9/561'B0EEYS :@aua) depy £801:1 ‘9|eag £1/0L/EZ @leq SHEBL000) AeAIng eourupIQ Z10Z by eseqmep pua yBukdog umai) (2)

- ﬂ

splelpe0

e

Page 283

=




‘olpof o

37

Page 284



Appendix E

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District
Council by way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential
contamination across all the primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites
that move forward to Planning Applications.

Page 285



Appendix F

Cost Build-up

Page 286



Site P2 8, Lower Alderton Hall Lane, Loughton IG10 3LQ
Indicative Estimate of Cost
for East Thames HA

28 November 2013

Gross Internal floor area m2 fi2
Affordable Flat Units 0 0
Allowance for communal space @ 20% 0 0
Affordable House Units 154 1,658
TOTAL GIA 154 1,658
Item Element Qty Unit Rate Total
£lunit £
1.0 Demolition
1.1 Demolition 78 m? 50 3,922
2.2 Site clearance 830 m? 10 8,299
1.2 Allowance for removal of asbestos 6 No 800 4,800
Sub-total say 20,000
2.0 Affordable Flat units (xx nr. units)
2.1 Flats Private areas 0m? 1,350 0
2.2 Flats communal areas (20% allowed) 0m? 900 0
Sub-total say 0
3.0 Affordable House units (02 nr. units)
“%. 3.1 House areas 154 m? 1,250 193,000
Sub-total say 190,000
4.0 Abnormals / E/o and External Works
4.1 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 171 m? 40 7,000
4.2 Communal Gardens 172 m? 30 5,000
4.3 Access road, parking and turning 475 m? 65 31,000
4.4 Pedestrian paving 0 m? 50 Incl.
4.5 Cross over / highways adaptions 2 item 2,000 4,000
4.6 Allowance for contaminated ground 0 item Excl.
4.7 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 126 m 160 20,000
4.8 Allowance for achieving CfSh Level 3 2nr 4,500 9,000
Sub-total say 80,000
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 290,000
CONTINGENCY @ 5% 10,000
CONTRACTORS DESIGN FEES @ 8% 24,000
PRELIMS AND OVERHEADS AT 15% 43,500
. TOTAL INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 2,386 367,500

Clarifications and Assumptions

Estimate based on Pellings Feasibility drawings and standard ETG specifications

GIA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on a Q3 2014 start on site

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 3

Itis assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber floor structure, sloped tiled
roofs) will be used

Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Hazardous material removal

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by TFL or other statutory bodies

| Costs of Section 106, $108, S278 Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Page 287




This page is intentionally left blank



Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report
Site: 51-70 (Garages) Bushfields, Loughton IG10 3JR

Rev: A

Ref: 1JC/srs/612.023
Date: September 2014

Page 289



Pellings

Contents

1. Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
2. Existing Site and Surroundings

3. Proposals

4. Planning Issues and Risks

5.
6
7
8
9

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

. Site Access and Buildability Issues

. Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
. Proposed Procurement Route

. Impact on Parking

10.Legals
11.Costs
12.Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices

A: Development Proposals — Drawings 612.023/P2-9A
Site Photographs

Existing Site Plan 201206014-AW

Statutory Services Information

Information on Possible Contamination

Cost Build-up

nmoow

Page 290



1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

3.0

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

4.0

4.1.

612023

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District
Council for a six year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having
possible development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP have been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites and
which will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located in a residential area half a mile to the west of Debden station.
The site consists of 21 single garages and hardstanding with narrow access.
There are a small number of trees on or overhanging the boundaries. It is situated
on one side of a close of 11 two bedroom terraced houses, none of which appear
to have any parking spaces immediately associated with them. The surrounding
area is residential but it consists of a range of architectural styles. There are two,
three and four storey houses and flats, some brick built and some concrete
panelled, with both flat and pitched roofs.

As indicated below, there is a foul sewer crossing the Southern part of the site.
The site backs on to the railway line.

There is the possibility of a private garage (different style to the remainder) built
on the North West corner of the site.

The site is accessed from the rear of a number of the existing house, and the
legal position of such access should be checked.

Proposals
Read in conjunction with drawings 612.023.P2-9A attached at Appendix A.
The proposals are :

Erection of a 2 x two storey 2 bedroom detached houses each with gardens
Provision of 6 parking spaces and access/landscaping

The proposals endeavour to take account of the issues highlighted above,
although vehicular access from the rear of No. 125 has been lost.

Planning Issues and Risks
Relevant Planning Policies/Considerations

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest District Council is the
Combined Local Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

Page 291

51-70 (Garages) Bushfields REV A 1



4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.8.

612023

The site is not located in a Conservation Area and it is not designated for any
particular purposes in the Epping Forest District Council Combined Local Plan
1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006. The site does not lie in a Flood Zone on
the Environment Agency Flood Map.

There are no specific policies which prevent the loss of existing garages although
policy ST4 (Road Safety) states that planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion or harm
to the character or appearance of the area. Parking spaces to meet with the
Council’'s standards are proposed for the new dwellings.

It will be necessary to undertake a Parking Survey and to prepare a Transport
Statement to demonstrate that the loss of the garages and proposed development
would not cause any parking shortfalls or harm to highway conditions or the
amenities of the area.

The site is located in the settlement of Loughton and the proposal would be
consistent with policy CP7 which encourages the efficient use of existing built-up
areas by the ‘recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-used land to
accommodate the development’ and the ‘re-use of urban sites, which are no
longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in the foreseeable future, for
alternative land uses’.

The proposal would comply with policy H4A which states the need for a range of
dwellings, including an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet
identified housing need on a site-by-site basis.

The development of small family homes with rear gardens and private and
communal parking would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the
area and may comply with Epping Forest’s design policies and guidance.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Southern Gas

Cable and Wireless

Virgin Media

Thames Water

BT

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy
Environment Agency

UK Power Networks

Responses received to date are from the Environment Agency, National Grid, UK
Power Networks, Virgin Media and Thames Water.

The Environment Agency has not pointed out any watercourses which cross the
site.

National Grid: No apparatus appears to be located on the site.
UK Power Networks: There do not appear to be any installations on the site.
Virgin Media: No apparatus appears to be located on the site.

Page 292

51-70 (Garages) Bushfields REV A 2



5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

8.0

8.1.

612023

Thames Water: A foul sewer transverses the southern side of the site, and it is
possible that Thames Water may require a 6m easement zone for maintenance
access.

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

As indicated above, proposals endeavour to take account of existing services
running across the site.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be
any particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic
associated with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area, with also some retail elements
nearby and, accordingly, any appointed contractor should use all best endeavours
to act in a considerate manner and within normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues
have been highlighted with use of the domestic garages, and also a former
horticultural nursery. Possible contaminants in respect of the former use as a
nursery are summarised and indicated within the note produced by EFDC
Planning and Economic Development Directorate at Appendix E.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may
include asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and
the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal
with any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

The site is accessed by way of a narrow driveway and as at present, our
proposals do not include a turning head for refuse or emergency vehicles.
Accordingly, subject to detailed design, an independent refuse storage area may
be required along with sprinkler provision to the new houses for fire protection.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P2-9 it is not considered that Party Wall
matters will be relevant.

We would recommend approach to Network rail to identify any particular
requirements that might affect proposals.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East
Thames Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

Page 293

51-70 (Garages) Bushfields REV A 3



8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

612023

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage D planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be
subsequently confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East
Thames Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement
documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual
contract packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory
services, highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure
size of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East
Thames Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide —
September 2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as
statutory planning guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling
2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest
whole number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards
for new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking
surveys, to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any
planning or highway problems.

Legals
We have been provided with a Summary Report of legal matters from EFDC
Solicitors. The report makes reference to the suggested appropriation of land for

planning purposes which would extinguish any prior rights of way.

The report makes reference to possible rights of light risk. A blanket policy
against such risk might be considered.

Page 294

51-70 (Garages) Bushfields REV A 4



10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

10.6.

11.0

11.1.

12.0

12.1.

612023

There is vehicular access into the site from the rear of 127/131 Chequers Road
and the Housing Management Report advises that there are licences in place for
this access.

The Legals Report advises that one of these licences has lapsed and the other an
be terminated with one months’ notice.

One of the garages appears to be in use by the owners of 88 Alderton Hall Lane.
This is indicated as a private garage on the Housing Management Report,
however this is not highlighted to be outside of the scope of the title of the site as
indicated within the Legals Report and requires clarification. This garage and
access to it is maintained, in any event, within Pellings proposals.

It is further noted that the small ‘lay by’ in front of No. 137 Bushfields is in fact
within the ownership of 137 and not within EFDC title. We would not consider that
this would have any effect on the development options for the site.

Costs

It is considered that a budget of £402,900.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

Recommendations and Conclusions
Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for

taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Pellings LLP

Page 295

51-70 (Garages) Bushfields REV A 5

Zotee



Appendix A

Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023.P2-8A

Page 296



No refuse or emergency
vehicle turning

TOTALS
Site Area 0.078

225 FOUL

225 FOUL

TOTAI K

NOTES

Rev  Date Description Name Pellings LLP Architecture & Planning m Building Surveying m Project Management m
Report all discrepancies, errors and omissions PRELI M I NARY 24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY Cost Consultancy m CDM Co-ordination

Do not scale from this drawing - o] 10700) 8460 9114 £ 020 8313 0019 e bromley@pellings.co.uk

Verify all dimensions on site before coammencing any work or www.pelings.co.uk

preparing shop drawings ] CuENT East Thames HA FRoET EFDC House Building Programme

All materials, components and workmanship are to comply with

all the relevant British Standards, Cedes of Practice, and Pel I I n S TITLE e DATE SCALE DRAWN CHK
appropriate manufacturers recommendations that from time to Existing and Proposed Plans NOV 2013 1:500 @A3 NP

fime shall apply Bushfields DRAWING No

For all specialist work, see relevant drawings 6 1 2 ‘ 023 ‘ P2 9 ‘ A
|

This drawing and design are co ht of PELLINGS LLP
Is drawing sign ar pyrig




Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 298



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 299



Page 300



_;,;llll I .I ml | __ \

Page 301



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 302



#z= Epping Forest
xJ_, District Council

il

N e N

NP 16.
N 253m
=1
iad
Oakfields . 3
Woodlands o )
Court %
%
3 %‘“
irectorate of Environment & Street Scene Project Content Date
Civic Offices Potential Site for Council House | Bushfields 04/07/12
High S"E";sex Building Program Loughton Scale
ol Y —o 1:1250 @ A4
Tel. 01952 564000 ng No. Drawn By —
201206014 - AW Robert Irwin

Page 30




Appendix D

Statutory Services Information

Page 304



Plant Protection
‘ © Naticnal Grid
nationalgrid
Brick Kiln Street
Hinckle
LE10 ONA .
E-mail: plantprotection@nationalgrid.com
Telephone: +44 (0)800 688588

Adam Greenhalgh

Pellings National Grid Electricity Emergency Number:
24 Widmore Road 0800 40 40 90°

Bromley National Gas Emergency Number:

Kent 0800 111 999°

BR1 1RY * Available 24 hours, 7 daysiweek.

Calls may be recorded and monitored.

www.nationalgrid.com

Date: 23/10/2013
Our Ref: NL_TE_Z6_35SW_041954
Your Ref: Bushfields. 1a079

RE: Proposed Works, 1G10 3HD, Bushfields, Loughton
Thank you for your enquiry which was received on 17/10/2013.
Please note this response and any attached map(s) are valid for 28 days.

An assessment has been carried out with respect to National Grid Electricity Transmission pic's and National
Grid Gas plc's apparatus. Please note it does not cover the items listed in the section "Your Responsibilities
and Obligations", including gas service pipes and related apparatus.

For details of National Grid's network areas please see the National Grid website
(http://www nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/) or the enclosed documentation.

As your works are at a "proposed” stage, any maps and guidance provided are for information
purposes only. This is not approval to commence work. You must submit a "Scheduled Works"
enquiry at the earliest opportunity and failure to do this may lead to disruption to your plans and
works. National Grid will endeavour to provide an initial assessment within 14 days of receipt of a
Scheduled Works enquiry and dependent on the outcome of this, further consultation may be
required.

In any event, for safety and legal reasons, works must not be carried out until a Scheduled
Works enquiry has been completed and final response received.

National Grid is a trading name for: National Grid is a trading name for:
National Grid Electricity Transmission plc Natienal Grid Gas plc
Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N SEH Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, Londen WC2N SEH

Registered in England and Wales, No 2366977 i grEngland and Wales, No 2006000
Pad¥& 305



Your Responsibilities and Obligations

The "Assessment” Section below outlines the detailed requirements that must be followed when planning or
undertaking your scheduled activities at this location.

It is your responsibility to ensure that the information you have submitted is accurate and that all relevant
documents including links are provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you near
National Grid's apparatus, e.g. as contained within the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations.

This assessment solely relates to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc (NGET) and National Grid Gas plc
(NGG) apparatus. This assessment does NOT include:

o National Grid's legal inter est (easements or wayleaves) in the land which restricts activity in proximity
to National Grid's assets in private land. You must obtain details of any such restrictions from the
landowner in the first instance and if in doubt contact National Grid.

e Gas service pipes and related apparatus

Recently installed apparatus

e Apparatus owned by other organisations, e.g. other gas distri bution operators , local electricity
companies, other utilities, etc.

It is YOUR responsibility to take into account whether the items listed above may be present and if they could
be affected by your proposed activities. Further "Essential Guidance" in respect of these items can be found

on the National Grid Website (http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf).

This communication does not constitute any formal agreement or consent for any proposed development work;
either generally or with regard to National Grid's easements or wayleaves nor any planning or building
regulations applications.

NGG and NGET or their agents, servants or contractors do not accept any liability for any losses arising under
or in connection with this information. This limit on liability applies to all and any claims in contract, tort (including
negligence), misrepresentation (excluding fraudulent misrepresentation), breach of statutory duty or
otherwise. This limit on liability does not exclude or restrict liability where prohibited by the law nor does it
supersede the express terms of any related agreements.

If you require further assistance please contact the National Grid Plant Protection team via e-mail (click here) or
via the contact details at the top of this response.

Yours faithfully

National Grid Plant Protection Team

Page 306 Page20f 6



ASSESSMENT

Affected Apparatus
The National Grid apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity of your proposed works is:

e Low or Medium pressure (below 2 bar) gas pipes and associated equipm ent. (As a result it is highly
" likely that there are gas services and associated apparatus in the vicinity)

Requirements
BEFORE carrying out any work you must:

o~ e Carefully read these requirements including the attached guidance documents and maps showing the
location of National Grid apparatus.

e Contact the landowner and ensure any proposed works in private land do not infringe National Grid's
legal rights (i.e. easements or wayleaves). If the works are in the road or footpath the relevant local
authority should be contacted.

e Ensure that all persons, including direct labour and contractors, working for you on or near National
Grid's apparatus follow the requirements of the HSE Guidance Notes HSG47 - ‘Avoiding Danger from
Underground Services' and GS6 — 'Avoidance of danger from overhead electric power lines'. This
guidance can be downloaded free of charge at hitp://www.hse.gov.uk

o In line with the above guidance, verify and establish the actual position of mains, pipes, cables,
services and other apparatus on site before any activities are undertaken.

Page 307 Page 3 of 6



GUIDANCE

Excavating Safely - Avoiding injury when working near gas pipes:

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/2D2EEAQ97-B213-459C-9A26-
18361C6E0B0OD/25249/Digsafe leaflet3e2finalamends061207.pdf

Standard Guidance

Essential Guidance document:

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F 9-59EB-4825-BAR9-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf

General Guidance document:

i hitp://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/55C13C4D-A1AA-4B13-BFDA-
fm 1CF59F88B326/51318/GeneralGuidance.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of gas pipes guidance (Credit card):

bttp://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/A3D37677-6641-476 C-9DDA-
E89949052829/44257/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCard.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of electricity cables guidance (Credit card):

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/35DDEC6D-D754-4BAS-AF3C-
D607D05A25C2/44858/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCardelectricitycables.pdf

Copies of all the Guidance Documents can also be downloaded from the National Grid Website:

hitp://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/downloads/

Page 308 Page 4 of 6




60¢ abed

e ! \ \ \
= \ \ \ LLFd 4 et \ y -

ID: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_041954|View extent: 361m, 196m Map not to be used for construction IMap 1 of 1 (GAS)

» LP MAINS This plan shows those pipes owned by National Grid Gas plc in its role as a Licensed Gas Transporter (GT). IMAPS Plot Server Version 1.7.6
USER: laura.altenhofen MP MAINS = Gas pipes owned by other GTs, or otherwise privately owned, may be present in this area. Information is i
DATE: 23/10/2013 IP MAINS I with regard to such pipes should be obtained from the relevant owners. The information shown on this plan is " 'y

= given without warranty, the accuracy thereof cannot be guaranteed. Service pipes, valves, syphons, stub connections,
DATA DATE: 15/10/2013 [ LHP MAINS etc., are not shown but their presence should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by n a I O n a g r l
REF: Bushfields. 1a079 NHP MAINS ~ 7 7 7 |National Grid Gas plc or their agents, servants or contractors for any error or omission. Safe digging

practices, in accordance with HS(G)47, must be used to verify and establish the actual position of mains,

» + i
MAP REF: TQ4395 om 25m pipes, services and other apparatus on site before any mechanical plant is used. It is your responsibility to ensure Requested by: Pellings

Approximate scale 1:1250

on Ad Colour Landscape |mal this information is provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you on or near gas

CENTRE: 543329, 195784
apparatus. The information included on this plan should not be referred to beyond a period of 28 days from the date

This plan is reproduced from or based on the
0S map by National Grid Gas plc, with the sanction

of issue. of the controller of HM Stationery Office.
| )4 I Depth of Diameter Material Crown Copyright Reserved, Ordnance Survey
Vahs Cover N/ syven O Change 3& Change Liconce number 100024886




-
-

Adam Greenhalgh

A e e
From: SPHatfield <SPHatfield@environment-agency.gov.uk>
Sent: 23 October 2013 17:49
To: Adam Greenhalgh
Subject: RE: Epping Forest DC - potential development sites

Dear Adam,

Further to your letters dated 16 October (your ref: AG/dh/612.023/05), we have the following comments to
make on the specific sites listed below (please note that comments on three sites — Rear of shops,
Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill; Pentlow Way, Buckhurst Hill and Site B, Marlescroft Way, Loughton — wili
follow on or before 7 November due to additional site constraints).

Sites: Burton Road, Debden
White Hills, Loughton
Thatchers Close, Loughton
Site A, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles’) Lane, Loughton
a Site B, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles’) Lane, Loughton
Site A, Chequers Road, Loughton
Site B, Chequers Road, Loughton
Site A, Langley Meadow, Loughton
Site B, Langley Meadow, Loughton
Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill
Hornbeam House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Bourne House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Bushfields, Loughton
Etheridge Road, Loughton
Lower Alderton Hall Lane, Loughton
Ladyfields, Loughton
Kirby Close, Loughton
Chester Road, Loughton
Hillyfields, Loughton

Comments
»AS we are in an area of serious water stress, we endorse the efficient use of water resources. Residential
" Jevelopments such as your proposal should take advantage of water efficient technologies. This is in line
with Epping Forest's local policy CP5 which states that the efficient use of water is encouraged through
water efficient appliances and rainwater harvesting for example.

Page 310



We suggest you use water efficiency measures and aim to achieve 105 litres/person/day. This is eql.;ivélent‘
to level 3/4 for water within the Code for Sustainable Homes. Achieving this standard within new homes

can be accomplished at very little additional cost, and is significantly cheaper than retrofitting such
measures later.

Page 311



Every opportunity should be taken to maximise Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) such as green
roofs, ponds, swales and permeable pavements, to alleviate surface water runoff. | have attached a copy of
our SuDS guidance, which contains the SuDS hierarchy, to help you with your designs. The methods at the
top of the hierarchy are preferred because they are beneficial in terms of sustainability and biodiversity.
The hierarchy should be used in descending order. Tanks should only be used as a last resort. Epping
Forest's local policy U3B on sustainable drainage systems advocates this approach.

As the sites are all under a hectare in Flood Zone 1, they fall within cell F5 of our Flood Risk Standing
Advice consultation matrix. Epping Forest Local Planning Authority will therefore be responsible for
assessing flood risk at these sites.

Kind regards,

Clark Gordon

Sustainable Places Planning Advisor
Environment Agency

North East Thames Area - Hatfield Team
01707 632308

- 5 . &
m The climate is changing. Are you?
CLINMATE READY WY EImnmenl GREnoy. R 1 ¥
&5 please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?
Information in this m

have received this m

and do not copy it to

legally privileged. If you
wder immediately, delete it

We have checkad this attachmants for viruses. But you should still check

any attachment before

We may have to make t asked to under the
Freedom of Informat ion. Email messages and
ttachments sent to also be accessed by

someone other than t

e

Page 312



cTe AfAn
C LG YPTQ

mnrngs \

Children's Cantre

(c) Crown Copyright and database rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 100019209 Date: 24/10/13 Scale: 1:1083

Map Centre: 543348.1,195791.8

Data updated: 25/08/13

Telecoms Plan A4

Imnportant Informason - pleass mad

The purposs of this pien i W0 idenitfy Virgin Madie spperstus, mmmnm-l-m-nwmnm
warrsnt ks scourscy. In sddiion, we caution that within Vingin Madia sppasstus there miry ba instances wherns msin vofiags
mmmmmmw raher than black ducting. Further detals can be lourd Lsing tha ‘Afectsd
Postoodss (o, which cen ba downiosded fom this wabats,

Thersiore, mM rww-nw o Chin plen If you sre Carmying oul ey excevetion of ot works in T vicinky of Virgin Mads

iy undergroand Baevics must be vecfiad by cabls datection squipment, #ic, end setsbished
mnm I Lad. A , unises I s dus 1o the of Virgin Madia, s employses o
aganis, mnmmwmwumnmhnmuhmmumumu
ining from the uss of Bndor sy relance on this plan.

Thia plan i produced by Virgin Medin Limvtsd from Drdnance Sunvey © Crown Copyright 100018200

Duct, Trench

Chamber

+

Cabinet

&

lagreenhalgh@pelllngs.co.uk

l

media




T
f ° way| puj 19SSy pauopueqy
.-wu.m; . JURIPAH ssssssssscsmune J13)epn pasodold
souwe
uL _ 4 . | T L e p—— 191 D1BALY
) JEIEI Ule 121E,
_ v__._.S.mm_.____un@_._m_mscmﬁmm_ ) i

‘UBNEUOPUN DIB SHIOM AUB DIOJOG O]IS UD POIJIIOA B( 1SN SAIAIDS

PUE SUIEL JO uoIsOod |2MOE BL | "UDISSIIO JO Joue AUR 10} JBIEAA SBWIEY L
Aq paydesoe s1sansosieym pury Aue jo Aipigey o ‘paledionue eq pinoys
aouasasd J1ay) 1nq umoys jou ase sadid aoasg ‘pajuud ajep ay) Joj pijeA
s uoneuLojul sy | “pasjuesent aq jouues Aeinooe au) pue ‘Ajueuem pue
uonebiqo noypm uanb st ued siy) uo umoys sniesedde ay) Jo uoiisod
ay] "papiuuad jou ale seidod Jayun po ejep dew ay) jo sasn Jayjo Auy
“fuo ueld 1ejep sewey ] jo uoneso| ay) Buimeis jo sesodind ay) Joj pasn
aq o} s| dew siy]'GpEEL000L -aquNN asuadl] aalo AeuonElS "WH

0 Jajjonuog ay) jo uonoues ay) yim deyy Aeang asueupiQ ay) uo paseg

PV ue|d JaJEA UBSID £1/80/91 :pejepdn Bjeq £'€92561'BOEEYS ‘0nua) depy £801:1 18[BOS EL/0L/ET ‘B1eq SHE6L0001 ABAINS BOUBUPIO 2102 SIYBU esuqeyep pue JyBuAdog umos (o)




i

[wddy pwnge womouen mop)

‘uayelapun ale syJom AUE B10Jaq 8IS UO PaIUBA 8q ISNW SBOIAISS PUE SUIBW Jo uoljisod
[ENJOE BY] ‘uoISSIWO Jo Joua AUe Joj Jajep sewey) Aq pajdecoe S1 JaABOSIBYM puly Aue

jo Auiqey o *patedionue aq pinoys sauasasd Jiay) ING UMOYS Jou ase sadid 8oneg ‘pajuud
B1EP BU} JOj pIEA SI uDNEWIOUI SIY )| “pesjueienb aq jouues Aoeinaoe ay) pue 'fueuem

pue uonebigo noyym uaalb st ueyd siyy uo umoys smesedde ay) Jo uoiisod ay) -payiwed
jou ase seldoa Jayun po ejep dew ay) Jo sasn Jaylo Auy "Ajuo Juejd Jajep SOWEY] JO UonEDO)|
au) Buimaln jo sasodind sy Joj pasn aq o) st dew SIYL'SHERLO0DL -Joquny 8suasl] eayo
Aeuonels ‘W'H Jo Jajjonuog ey jo uonaues ayy yum depy Aeaing asueupIp ay) uo paseg

APPUROG FOLS e sssessssssssEEs 1955y pasodoly
i ] WHIPUT o e o o o - I_S: E.‘t.ﬂ_aumumﬂ“_.tn__wﬂu
-—wﬂm; @ SOYUE|Y 18I0 Uiy eInssals
WNE m-—.—.. OYUDIY POUOPUTTY JAIES DAUDPUTTY
A_ . BOUUE)Y DEUQLIOT MBS DEUIGLICT
o BIOUUTY BI8UNS 1BMAS ARG
v_s.ou.mmc___mn@:a_m_._:mm._mm_ ) Ty (o 1mog o4

bV UB|d J81BMBISEAN €1/80/91 :pojepdn e)eq  €£'£9.G61'BOEEYS ajua) dey £801:) :0|e0S
spieye0

€L/0L/EZ @leq SrEBLDO0I APAINS BouBUPIO Z10Z SWbY esaqeep pue WliuAdoD umoug (2)




.__,.,,V,S Amuapt oy Ay s_m_:x $01 310k £ : puo; Emmo&..wso fow swaishs co::zrwmﬂw,

s vonnqu)sip |

L Y XL I (P I DTSRI ROR TR TSRO S mai

{10 SJBUMO J3YJ0 ©) cc.a:o_wc\.m@c__\m..ﬁoo DUI28i3 104} 8JOMD 3G ISDAY ./ ) AR ol
DIXD 30} 310D NSS! BY) 12}D SYIUOW § uol) ds0w supid asn jou o( uawdinba ,
1380d MN 109y Buniom a1doad o o) yanibiag 1snw papinosd uoHOWIOJU 3Y] 'Q : s . %0 i
@n0. YN AQ 954Dyl pasoid sSaun am1-ba1aq so pajoay) aq Jsnw s$3|q02 Iy G ' ¢8L£96 10£80 x04 A
. o : 918 ‘ubis . 598 G960 0080 12! ;
3 dusey *Assdesd ysos OJul-91q00 831A9S [ St 3J9Y) 10U} DBWNSSO 3G JSNLL Wy 3 » ,\wmmm“
POVILIIBIBL UBRY AADY SHGID T JO LOYOIO| JIDXE A4) mun syad : .; :,mﬁ
40NN E 0N by busproat opow Anja.na 210 Sajoy 1014) JOYY {DNUASS S )| ¢ M ,f,‘y_,,w__)..“.,uf%.
{00} BubY JIIIPNS DUISD UOIOADOXD 0} Joud comms?m oL

QLT D3A0ILAE 3SN - PBLLOA 3Q DINOUS 5710.0dd0 9u} JO LONISOT 120XB ayy gzt Y IOMION JOMO. Yot
.3 N e X a0 .

PADISLI SBM SPiEIDAGD AU BBUIS POLIYID UBDA BADY ADW SYIDWPLT) 1N o X
20 0] Pardaq s1 Buimpip Syl uo uMOYS sNj0InddD gy o uomsod ay) y

_ MNGEEYOL - 8:5u) doy

g —

NV OVINOD 1SH INOHIIM wx&oa._ IN UEMOA M0 Q) QZGZQC@
NYDOALINIDIA JHE NS G380 0G ON 19NA STI0K O SYFH0H SNYHE BN

{TauNTaN) By Nusw 0 0 SLBuo)

! . i
P28y wriom LON2010s AIssod0u Aup | LOUITORG oul nusw ol 10 sjudiue]) | uondiosag
Ao stoLoddD 5, ALD0WOT Bu 1041 HapI0 i 34986 960 (080 suoydarsy . i
' SEINC, DIGOD ATAYY ;0 23w au0 uluym bubbip 51005 “OUE ADY T AR {
KOO0, U A0S WG R AoRabuLIDY U1 Lang) WG, Aiowsou y)dag €100/01/22 - w0 oavoly ,

.

SHOM B0O'CH L OF 000'CC (A3 STTEVD SOVLI0A HOIH VHLX 2 B
SAMEYD AdVAINd . ! B
. . 4 - [ 1 ioe wop wog woy wog woz wot uip

e R et TP

Page 316



Appendix E

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District
Council by way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential
contamination across all the primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites
that move forward to Planning Applications.

Page 317



Appendix F

Cost Build-up

Page 318



Site P2 9, Bushfields, Loughton IG10
Indicative Estimate of Cost
for East Thames HA

28 November 2013
Gross Internal floor area m2 ft2
Affordable Flat Units 0 0
Allowance for communal space @ 20% 0 0
Affordable House Units 154 1,658
TOTAL GIA 154 1,658
Item  Element Qty Unit Rate Total
£lunit £
1.0 Demolition
1.1 Demolition 271 m? 50 13,545
2.2 Site clearance 557 m? 10 5,673
1.2 Allowance for removal of asbestos 21 No 800 16,800
Sub-total say 40,000
2.0 Affordable Flat units (xx nr. units)
2.1 Flats Private areas 0m? 1,350 0
2.2 Flats communal areas (20% allowed) 0 m? 900 0
Sub-total say 0
3.0 Affordable House units (02 nr. units)
= 3.1 House areas 1564 m? 1,250 193,000
Sub-total say 190,000
4.0 Abnormals / Elo and External Works
4.1 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 301 m? 40 12,000
4.2 Communal Gardens 75 m? 30 2,000
4.3 Access road, parking and turning 330 m? 65 21,000
4.4 Pedestrian paving 0 m? 50 Incl.
4.5 Cross over / highways adaptions 2 item 2,000 4,000
4.6 Allowance for contaminated ground 0 item Excl.
4.7 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 175 m 160 28,000
4.8 Allowance for achieving CfSh Level 3 2nr 4,500 9,000
Sub-total say 80,000
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 310,000
CONTINGENCY @ 5% 20,000
CONTRACTORS DESIGN FEES @ 8% 26,400
PRELIMS AND OVERHEADS AT 15% 46,500
TOTAL INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 2,616 402,900

—

slarifications and Assumptions

Estimate based on Pellings Feasibility drawings and standard ETG specifications

GIA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on a Q3 2014 start on site

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 3

Itis assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber floor structure, sloped tiled
roofs) will be used

Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Hazardous material removal

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and fumishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by TFL or other statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, $108, S278 Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Page 319




This page is intentionally left blank



Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report

Site: 146-171 (Garages) Chequers Road, Loughton 1G10 3QF
(Site A)

Rev: A

Ref: 1JC/srs/612.023
Date: September 2014

Page 321



Pellings

Contents

1. Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
2. Existing Site and Surroundings

3. Proposals

4. Planning Issues and Risks

5.
6
7
8
9

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

. Site Access and Buildability Issues

. Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
. Proposed Procurement Route

. Impact on Parking

10.Legals
11.Costs
12.Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices

A: Development Proposals — Drawings 612.023/P2-12A
Site Photographs

Existing Site Plan 201206014-Y

Statutory Services Information

Information on Possible Contamination

Cost Build-up

nmoow

Page 322



1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

3.0

3.1.

3.2.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

612023

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District
Council for a six year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having
possible development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP have been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites and
which will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located in a residential area 500m to the west of Debden station.

The site consists of 26 single garages and hardstanding. Access is by way of a
3.5m wide driveway between nos. 2 and 12a Chequers Road. The garage site is

abutted by the rear gardens of adjoining housing.

Neighbouring housing is two storey terraced and semi-detached with front and
rear gardens.

There are mature conifer trees not forming part of the site but adjacent to the
boundary in the North East corner.

There is vehicular access afforded into the site from the rear of No. 22
Crossfields.

Proposals
Read in conjunction with drawings 612.023.P2-12A attached at Appendix A.
The proposals are :

Erection of a 3 x two storey 3 bedroom houses each with gardens
Provision of 6 parking spaces and access/landscaping.

Planning Issues and Risks
Relevant Planning Policies/Considerations

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest District Council is the
Combined Local Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area and it is not designated for any
particular purposes in the Epping Forest District Council Combined Local Plan
1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006. The site does not lie in a Flood Zone on
the Environment Agency Flood Map.

Page 323

146-171 (Garages) Chequers Road Site A REV A 1



4.3.

4.4.

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.8.

5.4.

5.5.

612023

There are no specific policies which prevent the loss of existing garages although
policy ST4 (Road Safety) states that planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion or harm
to the character or appearance of the area. Parking spaces to meet with the
Council’'s standards are proposed for the new dwellings.

It will be necessary to undertake a Parking Survey and to prepare a Transport
Statement to demonstrate that the loss of the garages and proposed development
would not cause any parking shortfalls or harm to highway conditions or the
amenities of the area.

The site is located in the settlement of Loughton and the proposal would be
consistent with policy CP7 which encourages the efficient use of existing built-up
areas by the ‘recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-used land to
accommodate the development’ and the ‘re-use of urban sites, which are no
longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in the foreseeable future, for
alternative land uses'.

The proposal would comply with policy H4A which states the need for a range of
dwellings, including an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet
identified housing need on a site-by-site basis.

The development of small family homes with rear gardens and private and
communal parking would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the
area and may comply with Epping Forest’s design policies and guidance.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Southern Gas

Cable and Wireless

Virgin Media

Thames Water

BT

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy
Environment Agency

UK Power Networks

Responses received to date are from the Environment Agency, National Grid, UK
Power Networks, Virgin Media and Thames Water.

The Environment Agency has not pointed out any watercourses which cross the
site.

National Grid: No apparatus appears to be located on the site.

UK Power Networks: There does not appear to be any apparatus within the site.
Virgin Media: There is no apparatus within the site.

Thames Water: There are no drains or sewers crossing the site.

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Page 324

146-171 (Garages) Chequers Road Site A REV A 2



6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

8.0

8.1.

8.2.

612023

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be
any particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic
associated with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area, with also some retail elements
nearby and, accordingly, any appointed contractor should use all best endeavours
to act in a considerate manner and within normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues
have been highlighted with use of the domestic garages, and also a former
horticultural nursery. Possible contaminants in respect of the former use as a
nursery are summarised and indicated within the note produced by EFDC
Planning and Economic Development Directorate at Appendix E.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may
include asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and
the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal
with any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

The site is accessed by way of a narrow driveway and as at present, our
proposals do not include a turning head for refuse or emergency vehicles.
Accordingly, subject to detailed design, an independent refuse storage area may
be required along with sprinkler provision to the new houses for fire protection.

It is possible that the access road could be widened improve vehicular access
subject to the ownership of either No. 2 or 12a Chequers Road which we
recommend should be checked.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P2-12A we do not consider that Party Wall
matters will be relevant.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East
Thames Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage D planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Page 325

146-171 (Garages) Chequers Road Site A REV A 3



8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

612023

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be
subsequently confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East
Thames Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement
documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual
contract packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory
services, highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure
size of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East
Thames Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide —
September 2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as
statutory planning guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest
whole number)

The proposals would quite possibly meet the Council’'s parking standards for new
development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking
surveys, to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any
planning or highway problems.

Legals
We have been provided with a Summary Report of legal matters from EFDC
Solicitors. The report makes reference to the suggested appropriation of land for

planning purposes which would extinguish any prior rights of way.

The report makes reference to possible rights of light risk. A blanket policy
against such risk might be considered.

Page 326

146-171 (Garages) Chequers Road Site A REV A 4



10.3. There are some existing vehicular access points from adjacent properties. The
Housing Management Report advises that there are no licences in place for
these. These accesses are maintained within Pellings development proposals in
any event.

10.4. Item 2.11 of the Legals Report advises that there are notices regarding Party wall
Agreements in place. We suspect that this should read ‘no notices’ but this
requires clarification.

11.0 Costs

11.1. It is considered that a budget of £599,700.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

12.0 Recommendations and Conclusions

12.1. Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for

taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Pellings LLP

Page 327

612023 146-171 (Garages) Chequers Road Site A REV A 5



Appendix A

Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023.P2-12A

Page 328



TOTALS

Site Area 0.084 Ha
3 x 3 Bed Houses @ 93 sqm
6 Parking Spaces

No refuse or ema
vehicle turning

NOTES

Rev Date Description Name Pellings LLP Architecture & Planning m Building Surveying m Project Management m
Report all discrepancies, errors and omissions PRELI M I NARY 24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY Cost Consultancy = CDM Co-ordination

1020 8460 9114 020 8313 0019 e bromley@pellings.co.uk

Do not scale from this drawing - -l www.pellings.co.uk

Verify all dimensions on site before commencing any work or

preparing shop drawings = CLIENT PROJECT .

All materials, components and workmanship are to comply with East Thames HA EFDC House BU|Idmg Preramme

all the relevant British Standards, Cedes of Practice, and e In s TITLE L. DATE SCALE ] DRAWN CHK
appropriate manufacturers recommendations that from time to Existing and Proposed Plans NOV 2013 1:500 @A3 NP

fime shall apply Chequers Road Site A DRAWING No

For all specialist work, see relevant drawings 61 2 ‘ 023 ‘ P2 1 2 ‘A
|

This d d design are co ht of PELLINGS LLP
is drawing an sign ar pyrig




Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 330



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 334



¢ p= Epping Forest
WX, District Council

Page 335




Appendix D

Statutory Services Information

Page 336



Plant Protection
National Grid

. °
nationalgrid
Brick Kiln Street
Hinclde:
LE10 O
E-mail: plantprotection@nationalgrid.com
Telephone: +44 (0)800 688588

Adam Greenhalgh

Pellings National Grid Electricity Emergency Number:

24 Widmore Road 0800 40 40 90°

Bromley National Gas Emergency Number:

Kent 0800 111 999°
* Available 24 hours, 7 daysiweek.

BR11RY Calls may be recorded and monitored.
www.nationalgrid.com

Date: 23/10/2013

Our Ref: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_041969
Your Ref: Site A, Chquers Road. 1a079

RE: Proposed Works, 1G10 3RH, Chequers Road, Loughton
Thank you for your enquiry which was received on 17/10/2013.
Please note this response and any attached map(s) are valid for 28 days.

An assessment has been carried out with respect to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc's and National
Grid Gas plc's apparatus. Please note it does not cover the items listed in the section "Your Responsibilities
and Obligations”, including gas service pipes and related apparatus.

For details of National Grid's network areas please see the National Grid website

(http://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/) or the enclosed documentation.

As your works are at a "proposed" stage, any maps and guidance provided are for information
purposes only. This is not approval to commence work. You must submit a "Scheduled Works"
enquiry at the earliest opportunity and failure to do this may lead to disruption to your plans and
works. National Grid will endeavour to provide an initial assessment within 14 days of receipt of a
Scheduled Works enquiry and dependent on the outcome of this, further consultation may be
required.

In any event, for safety and legal reasons, works must not be carried out until a Scheduled
Works enquiry has been completed and final response received.

National Grid is a trading name for: Naticnal Grid is a trading name for:
National Grid Electricity Transmission plc National Grid Gas pl¢
Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N SEH Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N SEH

Registered in England and Wales, No 2366977 I ngland and Wales, No 2006000
o Pag&“337



Your Responsibilities and Obligations

The "Assessment” Section below outlines the detailed requirements that must be followed when planning or
undertaking your scheduled activities at this location.

It is your responsibility to ensure that the information you have submitted is accurate and that all relevant
documents including links are provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you near
National Grid's apparatus, e.g. as contained within the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations.

This assessment solely relates to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc (NGET) and National Grid Gas plc
(NGG) apparatus. This assessment does NOT include;

o National Grid's legal inter est (easements or wayleaves) in the land which restricts activity in proximity
to National Grid’s assets in private land. You must obtain details of any such restrictions from the
landowner in the first instance and if in douht contact National Grid.

e Gas service pipes and related apparatus

Recently installed apparatus

e Apparatus owned by other organisations, e.g. other gas distri bution operators, local electricity
companies, other utilities, etc.

it is YOUR responsibility to take into account whether the items listed above may be present and if they could
be affected by your proposed activities. Further "Essential Guidance" in respect of these items can be found

on the National Grid Website (http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf).

This communication does not constitute any formal agreement or consent for any proposed development work;
either generally or with regard to National Grid's easements or wayleaves nor any planning or building
regulations applications.

NGG and NGET or their agents, servants or contractors do not accept any liability for any losses arising under
or in connection with this information. This limit on liability applies to all and any claims in contract, tort (including
negligence), misrepresentation (excluding fraudulent misrepresentation), breach of statutory duty or
otherwise. This limit on liability does not exclude or restrict liability where prohibited by the law nor does it
supersede the expres s terms of any related agreements.

If you require further assistance please contact the National Grid Plant Protection team via e-mail (click here) or
via the contact details at the top of this response.

Yours faithfully

National Grid Plant Protection Team

Page 338 Page 2 of 6



ASSESSMENT

Affected Apparatus
The National Grid apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity of your proposed works is:

¢ Low or Medium pressure (below 2 bar) gas pipes and associated equipm ent. (As a result it is highly
likely that there are gas services and associated apparatus in the vicinity)

Requirements
BEFORE carrying out any work you must:

e Carefully read these requirements including the attached guidance documents and maps showing the
location of National Grid apparatus.

o Contact the landowner and ensure any proposed works in private land do not infringe National Grid's
legal rights (i.e. easements or wayleaves). If the works are in the road or footpath the relevant local
authority should be contacted.

o . Ensure that all persons, including direct labour and contractors, working for you on or near National
Grid's apparatus follow the requirements of the HSE Guidance Notes HSG47 - ‘Avoiding Danger from
Underground Services' and GS6 - 'Avoidance of danger from overhead electric power lines'. This
guidance can be downloaded free of charge at hitp://www.hse.gov.uk

e In line with the above guidance, verify and establish the actual position of mains, pipes, cables,
services and other apparatus on site before any activities are undertaken.

Page 339 Page 3 of 6



GUIDANCE

Excavating Safely - Avoiding injury when working near gas pipes:

hitp://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/2D2EEA97-B213-459C-9A26-
18361C6E0B0D/25249/Digsafe_leaflet3e2finalamends061207.pdf

Standard Guidance

Essential Guidance document:

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F 9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf

General Guidance document:

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/55C13C4D-A1AA-4B13-BFDA-
1CF59F88B326/51318/GeneralGuidance.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of gas pipes guidance (Credit card):

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/A3D37677-6641-476C-9DDA-
£89949052829/44257/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCard.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of electricity cables guidance (Credit card):

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/35DDEC6D-D754-4BA5-AF3C-
D607DOSA2502/44858/ExcavatingSaferCreditCardeIeclriciycabIes.gdf

Copies of all the Guidance Documents can also be downloaded from the National Grid Website:

http://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/downloads/

Page 340 Page 4 of 6



ENQUIRY SUMMARY

Received Date
17/10/2013

Your Reference
Site A, Chquers Road. 1a079

Location

Centre Point: 543683, 195965
X Extent: 42

Y Extent: 69

Postcode: IG10 3RH

Location Description: 1G10 3RH, Chequers Road, Loughton

Map Options
Paper Size: A4

Orientation: LANDSCAPE

Requested Scale: 500

Actual Scale: 1:1250 (GAS)

Real World Extents: 361m x 196m (GAS)

Recipients
pprsteam@uk.ngrid.com

Enquirer Details
Organisation Name: Pellings

Contact Name: Adam Greenhalgh

Email Address: bromley@pellings.co.uk

Telephone: 0208 460 9114

Address: 24 Widmore Road, Bromley, Kent, BR1 1RY

Description of Works
Plans request for potential development site.

Enquiry Type
Proposed Works

Activity Type
Development Project

Work Types
Work Type: Plans Only

Page 341

Page 6 of 6



988FZ0001 Jequwnu edues

Aanng esueupig ‘pemtesay yBukdos umols)
"92UJ0 A1suofels WH Jo J9]j0nuod ey) jo

uofjoues ayy ypm *ajd seg pug [euoneN Aq dew g
oy} uo paseq Jo woy peanpoidal sy ueyd siy |

sBuijjed :Aq pajsanbay

pLIBeuOEU

9'L’| UOISI9A JanIBs J0Id SdYIN|

‘enss| jo

ojep ouyy woy shep gz jo poued e puokeq o} pesejel oq jou pinoys ued siyy uo pepnjaul uonewiojul oy | ‘smesedde
seB Jeau Jo uo nok 1oy Bupiom (s1019ERU0I Jo Inoqe) 1204)p Jouye) suosied e o} pepirold S| uonEWLIOJUI S| Jey)
ainsua o} Aigisucdsal inoA s13) “pesn s) juerd [eoueysew Aue elojeq eys o smiesedde sayjo pue sealnses ‘sedid
‘sujew jo uopsod [emoe ay) ysijqesse pue Ajuan o} pasn eq isnw ‘2H(D)SH UM aoueplodoe u) ‘seanoeld

BuiBBip ejes "uoissiwo Jo Joua Aue Ioj SI0jRNUOS 10 SJUBAIBS ‘Sjuabe ey Jo 9|d se9) pus |euonen

Aq paydaaae s Jensosieym puny Aue jo Aniger oN ‘pajedionue aq pjnoys aouasaid sy} Jnq UMOYS Jou Bl 310

‘suofaeuuod qmis ‘suoydAs ‘seajea 'sedid eainleg “pasjueienB oq Jouue joasay) Aveinooe oy ‘Aueiiem noypm uaaib

S! Ue(d SIL} UO UMOYS UONIELLIOJUI 8Y | "SISBUMO JUBAB|DI B LUOY PBUIEIqo Bq pnoys sedid yans o} piefes yym|
uoReLuIoju| “ease sy ul Jueseld eq Aew ‘paumo Ajejeaud astmisyio 1o 's1 9 Jaujo Aq peumo sadid seo
"(19) Jepodsuel )| ses pasues| e se ojol sy uj 9|d se9) U |euopen Aq paumo sed|d esoy smoys uejd sjy |

allueyn
|euaEy

afueys
apwen

O /N ris D™

adeaspue INojog py uo
05741 9jess ajewxouddy

wez | wp

SNIVIN dHN
SNIVIN dH1
SNIVIN dI
SNIYWN dN
SNIVIN d1

G96S61 'EBIEYS ‘IHLNID
GBEFDL ‘434 dvIW

6.08] ‘PeOY Sienbyd 'y aus 43y

€L02/01/S) '31vYA Y1iva

€102/01/€2 :31vd

usjoyusjie’eine| :y3sn

(sv9) | jo | dep|

LON2NIISU0D 10§ pasn aq o} jou de

woEl 'Wwgg [JueXe Malp|

696L¥0 MSE 92 3L IN QI




'}-\dam Greenhalgh

. h
From: SPHatfield <SPHatfield@environment-agency.gov.uk>
Sent: 23 October 2013 17:49
To: Adam Greenhalgh
Subject: RE: Epping Forest DC - potential development sites

Dear Adam,

Further to your letters dated 16 October (your ref: AG/dh/612.023/05), we have the following comments to
make on the specific sites listed below (please note that comments on three sites — Rear of shops,
Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill; Pentlow Way, Buckhurst Hill and Site B, Marlescroft Way, Loughton — will
follow on or before 7 November due to additional site constraints).

Sites: Burton Road, Debden
White Hills, Loughton
Thatchers Close, Loughton
Site A, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles’) Lane, Loughton
: Site B, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles’) Lane, Loughton
- Site A, Chequers Road, Loughton
Site B, Chequers Road, Loughton
Site A, Langley Meadow, Loughton
Site B, Langley Meadow, Loughton
Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill
Hornbeam House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Bourne House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill
Bushfields, Loughton
Etheridge Road, Loughton
Lower Alderton Hall Lane, Loughton
Ladyfields, Loughton
Kirby Close, Loughton
Chester Road, Loughton
Hillyfields, Loughton

Comments

As we are in an area of serious water stress, we endorse the efficient use of water resources. Residential
@Jevelopments such as your proposal should take advantage of water efficient technologies. This is in line

with Epping Forest's local policy CP5 which states that the efficient use of water is encouraged through

water efficient appliances and rainwater harvesting for example.

Page 343



We suggest you use water efficiency measures and aim to achieve 105 litres/person/day. This is equivalent
to level 3/4 for water within the Code for Sustainable Homes. Achieving this standard within new homes

can be accomplished at very little additional cost, and is significantly cheaper than retrofitting such
measures later.

Page §44



-

hEvery opportunity should be taken to maximise Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) such as green
roofs, ponds, swales and permeable pavements, to alleviate surface water runoff. | have attached a copy of
our SuDS guidance, which contains the SuDS hierarchy, to help you with your designs. The methods at the
top of the hierarchy are preferred because they are beneficial in terms of sustainability and biodiversity.
The hierarchy should be used in descending order. Tanks should only be used as a last resort. Epping
Forest’s local policy U3B on sustainable drainage systems advocates this approach.

As the sites are all under a hectare in Flood Zone 1, they fall within cell F5 of our Flood Risk Standing
Advice consultation matrix. Epping Forest Local Planning Authority will therefore be responsible for
assessing flood risk at these sites.

Kind regards,

Clark Gordon

Sustainable Places Planning Advisor
Environment Agency

North East Thames Area - Hatfield Team
01707 632308

Informat tt I may be legally privileged. If vou
have rec this the sender immediately, delete i
and do not copy it to a 1
But you should still check
I asked To under the
for litigation Email messages and
may also be accessed by

nt, for business purposes.

Page 345



BOTRI 00 WOAAD UmD) @ Aasing souwupaD) Wweyg Peaur) wpepy LA AQ peonpasd e uerd my|

c— w " g L0 BT AU KT J0 S0 B way Do
1 w e ————— 10 P e 0 §30) KB o) J0 U Bl LS SeTRATIOR) 20 SUOEL0 Aud sy Kusae A sy 10U B BPeyy Ll st
0 vesdophue 5y wpepy ula 0 ouelsBeu e of 800 M 1 TIeLn "GBupooTy PR M U EDRROeW AUE BI0E B8 LG

J e E‘El!i!ggbitig-ﬁ.i

ey Ul 19 GGUiA B3 1 L0 S0 0 LOGEASIEE um 100 B el ok § uer g Lo Rmes & "wOyh |

_ _ puigen 1squeyn ysuel] ‘19nQ Ty

PEOSLY, 9 BUEN PuUnoy B9 UEI IR i) BUIONG YN L A Uil P POV U9 BAT BRIGRD S

}ﬁiéi!iiii.&glgigs.@glsi

— u_:.B‘mmc___an@_._m_m;cmm&m_ e L R "

¥V ue|d swooaja ) €1/80/SZ ‘paiBpdn Bleq  £°LE6561'8°L89EYS :anua) depy E€80L:| 8225 ELOLYZ ‘8eq 60261000} Aeaing wourupIQ 110Z MBI esuqeep pue IyBuAdoD umaiD (9)

Paoe 346




(c) Crown Copyright and databasa rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100019345 Date: 2310113 Scale: 1:1083 Map Centre: 543687.8,195937.3  Data updated: 16/08/13 Clean Water Plan A4
Based on the Ordnance Survey Map with the sanction of the Controller of |agreenhalgh@peilings.cc.uk
H.M. Stationary Office License Number:- 100019345.This map is to be Water Main Meter ==
used for the purposes of viewing the location of Thames Water plant only.
Any other uses of the map data orf urther copies are not permitted. The Private Water e i e Valv I |
position of the apparatus shown on this plan is given without obligation ive et Th ames
and warranty, and the accuracy cannot be guaranteed. This information is =) d Wat R o s e Hydrant
valid for the date printed. Service pipes are not shown but their presence Topasedryvater x LT, yeian . Water
should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by ~

Abandoned Asset End Item o

Thames Water for any error or omission. The actual position of mains and
services must be verified on site before any works are undertaken,




i A] Bt BAI0uRD IR0}
ADpUNG gl eeeESEseEsEEEReESEw il ¥
[wdd) wengge sR0ueD nop3)

A N ° [T 11,1 R ——— 1055 B1EAL ‘UBYEUBPUN BIB SYIOM AUE BI0}aq B)IS UD PAYLBA B4 ISNU SB82IAIBS pUE sulew jo uonisod
.—mu.mg ] HOYURY B0 U BINSSald _....ﬂm_.:um ay] "uoIssIwo Jo Jous Aue 10} Je1ep) Sawely ) Aq pejdadcoe S| hﬂaoﬁmzi pury Aue
. j0 Aulgey oN “pajedionue aq pinoys aoussaid Jiay) Ing umoys jou ase sadid 8o1aag "paluLd
saul M#—.—. PRI RS, RRER SRR a1ep Bl 10} PIEA SI UONBWLOJUL SIY] *paajueiend aq jouues ADeInose ayy pue ‘AueLEm
_ _ i) BOUUEY PEUIGUIOT) Bnag 2} pue uoneBijqo jnoypm uamB s ueld siy) uo umoys smesedde ay) jo uonisod ey “payuied
o s e T jou aue sajdoo Jayun po ejep dew ay) Jo sasn Jaylo Auy “Ajuc jued Jajep) SBWEY] JO UOIEDOD]
) ) ’ auy) Buimara Jo sesodind ay) Joj pasn aq o} s! dew SIYL'SEEGLO00L -J2quINy 8suaoiT a0
_ x_....cu.mmc___mn@zm_mccmmhmm_ ] SIquTIY N0 1ameg na4 AIBUDIEIS "W'H JO JB]j0AU0D BY) JO UOHOUES BU) Yyim depy A8AINg 8auBupIO ay) uo paseg
¥V UEB|d JOIEMBISEAN £1/80/91 :pajepdn Eleq €' /E€6561 '8 LBIEYS @auaD depy €801 ‘9|E0S EL/OLIEE @eq SHEBLO00L ABAING BouRUPIO 2107 SIBU eseqmep pu WBuAdon umoin (2)

dP\I\_




Page 349 ———



Appendix E

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District
Council by way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential
contamination across all the primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites
that move forward to Planning Applications.

Page 350



Appendix F

Cost Build-up

Page 351



Site P2 12, Chequers Road (Site A), Loughton IG10
Indicative Estimate of Cost
for East Thames HA

28 November 2013

Gross Internal floor area m2 ft2
Affordable Flat Units 0 0
Allowance for communal space @ 20% 0 0
Affordable House Units 279 3,003
TOTAL GIA 279 3,003
Item  Element Qty Unit Rate Total
Elunit £
1.0 Demolition
1.1 Demolition 320 m? 50 15,991
2.2 Site clearance 521 m? 10 5,214
1.2 Allowance for removal of asbestos 26 No 800 20,800
Sub-total say 40,000
2.0 Affordable Flat units (xx nr. units)
2.1 Flats Private areas 0m? 1,350 0
2.2 Flats communal areas (20% allowed) 0 m? 900 0
Sub-total say 0
3.0 Affordable House units (03 nr. units)
-~ 3.1 House areas 279 m? 1,250 349,000
Sub-total say 350,000
4.0 Abnormals / E/o and External Works
4.1 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 239 m? 40 10,000
4.2 Communal Gardens 106 m? 30 3,000
4.3 Access road, parking and turning 343 m? 65 22,000
4.4 Pedestrian paving 0 m? 50 Incl.
4.5 Cross over [ highways adaptions 1 item 2,000 2,000
4.6 Allowance for contaminated ground 0 item Excl.
4.7 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 167 m 160 27,000
4.8 Allowance for achieving CfSh Level 3 3nr 4,500 14,000
Sub-total say 80,000
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 470,000
CONTINGENCY @ 5% 20,000
CONTRACTORS DESIGN FEES @ 8% 39,200
PRELIMS AND OVERHEADS AT 15% 70,500
TOTAL INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 2,149 599,700

—_—
~larifications and Assumptions

" |Estimate based on Pellings Feasibility drawings and standard ETG specifications

GIA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on a Q3 2014 start on site

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme’ contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 3

It is assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber floor structure, sloped tiled

roofs) will be used

Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract

Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Hazardous material removal

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by TFL or other statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, $108, S278 Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Page 352




Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report
Site: 231-258 Chequers Road, Loughton IG10 3QF (Site B)

Rev: A

Ref:  1JC/srs/612.023
Date: September 2014

Page 353



Pellings

Contents

1. Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
2. Existing Site and Surroundings

3. Proposals

4. Planning Issues and Risks

5.
6
7
8
9

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

. Site Access and Buildability Issues

. Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
. Proposed Procurement Route

. Impact on Parking

10.Legals
11.Costs
12.Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices

A: Development Proposals — Drawings 612.023/P2-10A
Site Photographs

Existing Site Plan 201206014-Z

Statutory Services Information

Information on Possible Contamination

Cost Build-up

nmoow

Page 354



1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

3.0

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

612023

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District
Council for a six year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having
possible development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP have been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites and
which will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located in a residential area half a mile to the west of Debden station.

The site consists of 28 single garages and hardstanding. It also includes an
electricity sub-station.

The existing access off Chequers Road is 4m wide. The site is abutted by
residential plots on two sides, an embankment adjoining railway lines to the rear
and Chequers Road at the front. There are several trees close to the rear
boundary beyond the site.

Neighbouring housing is two storey terraced and semi-detached with front and
rear gardens.

There are two sewer crossing the centre of the site.

Proposals

Read in conjunction with drawings 612.023.P2-10A attached at Appendix A.

The proposals are :

Erection of a 2 x two storey 2 bedroom houses each with gardens

Provision of 10 parking spaces and access/landscaping. Retention of sub-station

and access thereto.

The proposals endeavour to take account of the issues highlighted above, with
particular regard to the sewer positions.

We would recommend approach to Network Rail to identify any issues that might
affect proposals.

Please note that there is an option within our proposals to retain some of the
existing garages and we would like to discuss this with you further. Costings at
present allow for around 50% of the existing garages being retained.

Page 355

231-258 Chequers Road Site B REV A 1



4.0

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

612023

Planning Issues and Risks
Relevant Planning Policies/Considerations

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest District Council is the
Combined Local Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area and it is not designated for any
particular purposes in the Epping Forest District Council Combined Local Plan
1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006. The site does not lie in a Flood Zone on
the Environment Agency Flood Map.

There are no specific policies which prevent the loss of existing garages although
policy ST4 (Road Safety) states that planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion or harm
to the character or appearance of the area. Parking spaces to meet with the
Council’'s standards are proposed for the new dwellings.

It will be necessary to undertake a Parking Survey and to prepare a Transport
Statement to demonstrate that the loss of the garages and proposed development
would not cause any parking shortfalls or harm to highway conditions or the
amenities of the area.

The site is located in the settlement of Loughton and the proposal would be
consistent with policy CP7 which encourages the efficient use of existing built-up
areas by the ‘recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-used land to
accommodate the development’ and the ‘re-use of urban sites, which are no
longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in the foreseeable future, for
alternative land uses'.

The proposal would comply with policy H4A which states the need for a range of
dwellings, including an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet
identified housing need on a site-by-site basis.

The development of small family homes with rear gardens and private and
communal parking would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the
area and may comply with Epping Forest’s design policies and guidance.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Southern Gas

Cable and Wireless

Virgin Media

Thames Water

BT

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy
Environment Agency

UK Power Networks

Responses received to date are from the Environment Agency, National Grid, UK
Power Networks, Virgin Media and Thames Water.

Page 356

231-258 Chequers Road Site B REV A 2



5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.8.

5.4.

5.5.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

8.0

8.1.

612023

The Environment Agency has not pointed out any watercourses which cross the
site.

National Grid: No apparatus appears to be located on the site.

UK Power Networks: There is an electricity sub-station with associated cables on
the site.

Virgin Media: There is a cable along the southern part of the site.

Thames Water: A foul water sewer and a substantial surface sewer cross through
the site.

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be
any particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic
associated with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area, with also some retail elements
nearby and, accordingly, any appointed contractor should use all best endeavours
to act in a considerate manner and within normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues
have been highlighted with use of the domestic garages, and also a former
horticultural nursery. Possible contaminants in respect of the former use as a
nursery are summarised and indicated within the note produced by EFDC
Planning and Economic Development Directorate at Appendix E.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may
include asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and
the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal
with any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P2-10A, implications of constructing
alongside the existing substation will need to be considered.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East
Thames Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

Page 357

231-258 Chequers Road Site B REV A 3



8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

10.0

10.1.

612023

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage D planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be
subsequently confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East
Thames Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement
documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual
contract packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory
services, highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure
size of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East
Thames Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide —
September 2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as
statutory planning guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling
2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest
whole number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards
for new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking
surveys, to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any
planning or highway problems.

As indicated above there is an option for this site to retain a substantial number of
the existing garages.

Legals
We have been provided with a Summary Report of legal matters from EFDC

Solicitors. The report makes reference to the suggested appropriation of land for
planning purposes which would extinguish any prior rights of way.

Page 358

231-258 Chequers Road Site B REV A 4



10.2.

10.3.

10.4.
11.0

1.1

12.0

12.1.

612023

The report makes reference to possible rights of light risk. A blanket policy
against such risk might be considered.

The Legals Report advises that there is a small strip of land adjacent to No. 75
Chequers Road that is within the ownership of No. 75 and therefore outside of the
title ownership of EFDC. This may require a slight alteration to the proposed
parking provision for this site, which will be dealt with at detailed planning
application stage, and does not affect the ability of the site to be developed.

Proposals take account of the existing substation.
Costs

It is considered that a budget of £402,900.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

Recommendations and Conclusions

Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for
taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Pellings LLP

Page 359

231-258 Chequers Road Site B REV A 5



Appendix A

Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023.P2-10A

Page 360



NOTES

Report all discrepancies, errors and omissions

Do not scale from this drawing

Verify all dimensions on site before commencing any work or
preparing shop drawings

All materials, components and workmanship are to comply with
all the relevant British Standards, Cedes of Practice, and
appropriate manufacturers recommendations that from time to
fime shall apply

For all specialist work, see relevant drawings

This drawing and design are copyright of PELLINGS LLP

225 FOUL

975 SURFACE

PRELIMINARY

ool

_——\ A

975 SURFACE

Rev Date Description Name Pellings LLP Architecture & Planning m Building Surveying m Project Management m
24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY Cost Consultancy m CDM Co-ordination
i 1020 8460 9114 f020 8313 0019 e bromley@pellings.co.uk
. www.pellings.co.uk
J CLIENT PROJECT I,
n East Thames HA EFDC House Building Programme
TITLE L. DATE SCALE DRAWN CHK
Existing and Proposed Plans NOV 2013 1:500 @A3 NP
e 612 023/P2-10 |A
|
_ 1

mll



Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 362



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 366



¢ = Epping Forest
%2 District Council

e

Directorate of Environment & Streel Scene
Civic Offices

High Street

Epping, Essex,

CM16 4B2

Tel. 01992 564000

Project Content Date
Potential Site for Council House | Site B 04/07/12
Building Program Chequers Road Scale
Draving No. Lought 1:1250 @ A4
Drawn By
201206014 - Z Robert Irwin

Page 367



Appendix D

Statutory Services Information

Page 368



Plant Protection
National Grid

. °
nationalgrid
Brick Kiln Street
Hinckle
LE100
E-mail: plantprotection@nationalgrid.com
Telephone: +44 (0)800 688588

Adam Greenhalgh

Pellings National Grid Electricity Emergency Number:

24 Widmore Road 0800 40 40 80°

Bromley National Gas Emergency Number:

Kent 0800 111 989*
* Available 24 hours, 7 days/iweek.

BR11RY Calls may be recorded and monitored.
www.nationalgrid.com

Date: 23/10/2013

Our Ref: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_041935
Your Ref: AG/DH/612.023/02

RE: Proposed Works, 1G10 3QA,site B,chequers road,loughton,essex
Thank you for your enquiry which was received on 17/10/2013.
Please note this response and any attached map(s) are valid for 28 days.

An assessment has been carried out with respect to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc's and National
Grid Gas plc's apparatus. Please note it does not cover the items listed in the section "Your Responsibilities
and Obligations", including gas service pipes and related apparatus.

For details of National Grid's network areas please see the National Grid website

(hitp://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/) or the enclosed documentation.

As your works are at a "proposed” stage, any maps and guidance provided are for information
purposes only. This is not approval to commence work. You must submit a "Scheduled Works"
enquiry at the earliest opportunity and failure to do this may lead to disruption to your plans and
works. National Grid will endeavour to provide an jnitial assessment within 14 days of receipt of a
Scheduled Works enquiry and dependent on the outcome of this, further consultation may be
required.

In any event, for safety and legal reasons, works must not be carried out until a Scheduled
Works enquiry has been completed and final response received.

National Grid is a trading name for: National Grid is a trading name for:
National Grid Electricity Transmission pic National Grid Gas pic
Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N SEH Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N 5EH

Registered in England and Wales, No 2366977 Regis %igngland and Wales, No 2006000
Pag&3



Your Responsibilities and Obligations

The "Assessment” Section below outlines the detailed requirements that must be followed when planning or
undertaking your scheduled activities at this location.

It is your responsibility to ensure that the information you have submitted is accurate and that all relevant
documents including links are provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you near
National Grid's apparatus, e.g. as contained within the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations.

This assessment solely relates to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc (NGET) and National Grid Gas plc
(NGG) apparatus. This assessment does NOT include:

o National Grid's legal interest (easements or wayleaves) in the land which restricts activity in proximity
to National Grid's assets in private land. You must obtain details of any such restrictions from the
landowner in the first instance and if in doubt contact National Grid.

e Gas service pipes and related apparatus

Recently installed apparatus

e Apparatus owned by other organisations, e.g. other gas distri bution operators, local electricity
companies, other utilities, etc.

Itis YOUR responsibility to take into account whether the items listed above may be present and if they could
be affected by your proposed activities. Further "Essential Guidance” in respect of these items can be found

on the National Grid Website (http://www.nationalarid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf).

This communication does not constitute any formal agreement or consent for any proposed development work:
either generally or with regard to National Grid's easements or wayleaves nor any planning or building
regulations applications.

NGG and NGET or their agents, servants or contraclors do not accept any liability for any losses arising under
or in connection with this information. This limit on liability applies to all and any claims in contract, tort (including
negligence), misrepresentation (excluding fraudulent misrepresentation), breach of statutory duty or
otherwise. This limit on liability does not exclude or restrict liability where prohibited by the law nor does it
supersede the express terms of any related agreements.

If you require further assistance please contact the National Grid Plant Protection team via e-mail (click here) or
via the contact details at the top of this response.

Yours faithfully

National Grid Plant Protection Team

Page 370 Page 2 of 6




ASSESSMENT

Affected Apparatus
The National Grid apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity of your proposed works is:

e Low or Medium pressure (below 2 bar) gas pipes and associated equipm ent. (As a result it is highly
likely that there are gas services and associated apparatus in the vicinity)

Requirements
BEFORE carrying out any work you must:

o Carefully read these requirements including the attached guidance documents and maps showing the
location of National Grid apparatus.

e Contact the landowner and ensure any proposed works in private land do not infringe National Grid's
legal rights (i.e. easements or wayleaves). If the works are in the road or footpath the relevant local
authority should be contacted.

e Ensure that all persons, including direct labour and contractors, working for you on or near National
Grid's apparatus follow the requirements of the HSE Guidance Notes HSG47 - ‘Avoiding Danger from
Underground Services' and GS6 - 'Avoidance of danger from overhead electric power lines'. This
guidance can be downloaded free of charge at http://www.hse.gov.uk

e Inline with the above guidance, verify and establish the actual position of mains, pipes, cables,
services and other apparatus on site before any activities are undertaken.

Page 371 Page 3 of 6




GUIDANCE

Excavating Safely - Avoiding injury when working near gas pipes:

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/2D2E EA97-B213-459C-9A26-
18361C6E0BOD/25249/Digsafe leaflet3e2finalamends061 207.pdf .

Standard Guidance

Essential Guidance document:

hitp://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6 D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf

General Guidance document:

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/55C13C4D-A1AA-4B13-BFDA-
1CF59F 88B326/51318/GeneralGuidance. pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of gas pipes guidance (Credit card):

http://www.nationalarid.com/NR/rdonlyres/A3D37677-6641-476C-9DDA-

E89949052829/44257/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCard.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of electricity cables guidance (Credit card):

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/35DDEC6D-D754-4BA5-AF3C-
0607DOSA2502/44858/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCardeIectriciycabIes.p_df

Copies of all the Guidance Documents can also be downloaded from the National Grid Website:

http.//www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/downloads/

Page 372 Page 4 of 6



ENQUIRY SUMMARY

Received Date
17/10/2013

Your Reference
AG/DH/612.023/02

Location

Centre Point: 543513, 195811
X Extent: 40

Y Extent: 46

Postcode: IG10 3QA

Location Description: IG10 3QA site B,chequers road,loughton,essex

Map Options
Paper Size: A4

Orientation: LANDSCAPE

Requested Scale: 500

Actual Scale: 1:1250 (GAS)

Real World Extents: 361m x 196m (GAS)

Recipients
pprsteam@uk.ngrid.com

Enquirer Details
Organisation Name: Pellings

Contact Name: Adam Greenhalgh

Email Address: bromley@pellings.co.uk

Telephone: 0208 460 9114

Address: 24 Widmore Road, Bromley, Kent, BR1 1RY

Description of Works
MAP FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES

Enqguiry Type
Proposed Works

Activity Type
General Excavation

Work Types
Work Type: Plans Only

Page 373

Page 6 of 6



/¢ obed

ID: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_041935

\View extent: 361m, 196m

Map not to be used for construction

[Map 1 of 1 (GAS)

USER: roy.x.jones LP MAINS
MP MAINS ==
DATE: 23/10/2013 IP MAINS —
DATA DATE: 15/10/2013 |LHP MAINS
NHP MAINS = =———————— e e o= o

REF: AG/DH/612.023/02

MAP REF: TQ4395
CENTRE: 543513, 195811

Om 1 25m

Approximate scale 1:1250
on A4 Colour Landscape

D(] Depth of \/ O Diameter $ Material
Valve ~over Syphon Change

Change

This plan shows those pipes owned by National Grid Gas plc in its role as a Licensed Gas Transporter (GT).

Gas pipes owned by other GTs, or otherwise privately owned, may be present in this area. Information

with regard to such pipes should be obtained from the relevant owners. The information shown on this plan is

given without warranty, the accuracy thereof cannot be guaranteed. Service pipes, valves, syphons, stub connections
etc., are not shown but their presence should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by
National Grid Gas plc or their agents, servants or contractors for any error or omission. Safe digging

practices, in accordance with HS(G)47, must be used to verify and establish the actual position of mains,

pipes, services and other apparatus on site before any mechanical plant is used. It is your responsibility to ensure
that this information is provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you on or near gas
apparatus. The information included on this plan should not be referred to beyond a period of 28 days from the date
of issue.

"

[MAPS Plot Server Version 1.7.6

nationalgrid

Requested by: Pellings

This plan is reproduced from or based on the

OS map by National Grid Gas plc, with the sanction
of the controller of HM Stationery Office.

Crown Copyright Reserved. Ordnance Survey

|Licence number 100024886




~

Adam Greenhalgh

m

From: SPHatfield <SPHatfield@environment-agency.gov.uk>
Sent: 23 October 2013 17:49

To: Adam Greenhalgh

Subject: RE: Epping Forest DC - potential development sites
Dear Adam,

Further to your letters dated 16 October (your ref: AG/dh/612.023/05), we have the following comments to
make on the specific sites listed below (please note that comments on three sites — Rear of shops,
Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill; Pentlow Way, Buckhurst Hill and Site B, Marlescroft Way, Loughton — will
follow on or before 7 November due to additional site constraints).

Sites: Burton Road, Debden

White Hills, Loughton

Thatchers Close, Loughton

Site A, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles’) Lane, Loughton
-~ Site B, Pyries (note: should be ‘Pyrles’) Lane, Loughton
’ Site A, Chequers Road, Loughton

Site B, Chequers Road, Loughton

Site A, Langley Meadow, Loughton

Site B, Langley Meadow, Loughton

Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill

Hornbeam House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill

Bourne House, Hornbeam Road, Buckhurst Hill

Bushfields, Loughton

Etheridge Road, Loughton

Lower Alderton Hall Lane, Loughton

Ladyfields, Loughton

Kirby Close, Loughton

Chester Road, Loughton

Hillyfields, Loughton

Comments
Qs we are in an area of serious water stress, we endorse the efficient use of water resources. Residential
* developments such as your proposal should take advantage of water efficient technologies. This is in line
with Epping Forest's local policy CP5 which states that the efficient use of water is encouraged through
water efficient appliances and rainwater harvesting for example.

Page 375



We suggest you use water efficiency measures and aim to achieve 105 litres/person/day. This is equivalent .
to level 3/4 for water within the Code for Sustainable Homes. Achieving this standard within new homes

can be accomplished at very little additional cost, and is significantly cheaper than retrofitting such
measures later.

Page 376



-

Every opportunity should be taken to maximise Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) such as green
roofs, ponds, swales and permeable pavements, to alleviate surface water runoff. | have attached a copy of
our SuDS guidance, which contains the SuDS hierarchy, to help you with your designs. The methods at the
top of the hierarchy are preferred because they are beneficial in terms of sustainability and biodiversity.
The hierarchy should be used in descending order. Tanks should only be used as a last resort. Epping
Forest’s local policy U3B on sustainable drainage systems advocates this approach.

As the sites are all under a hectare in Flood Zone 1, they fall within cell F5 of our Flood Risk Standing
Advice consultation matrix. Epping Forest Local Planning Authority will therefore be responsible for
assessing flood risk at these sites.

Kind regards,

Clark Gordon

Sustainable Places Planning Advisor
Environment Agency

North East Thames Area - Hatfield Team
01707 632308

-~ . . &
' m The climate is changing. Are you?
b - A suppan sonvice fod by fh .S
IMATE READY S BNV Ironmentl-ae ] . t ¥
&3 Please consider the environment - do you really need to print this email?
Information

have receiv

and do not

ly privileged. If you
mmediately, delet

<

]

We have checked t But you should still check
any attachment be
We may have to mak

= asked to under the
reedom of Information

rt b
'_-.
[®]
-

i
Fr 1a I Email messages and
attachments sent ay also be accessed by
someone other than the poses

’/’\

Page 377



e . Y’\".’Dlh

f""'f\..-rf !

() Crawn Copyright and database rights 2011 Ordnance Survay 100018209 Date: 24/10/13 Scale: 1:1083 Map Centre: 543532.3,185822.3 Data updated: 25/08/13 Telecoms Plan A4
R lagreanhalgh@pellings.co.uk | :

Tha purposs of this plen s 1 dertity Virgn Made spperstus. Wa have Fed ko mske | s scoursis as poasibls but we cannot e
waTad k8 RUracy. I Badon, we caution Tat within Virgin bedia sppadstus thers mary ba inetances whars maina voliage

pownr Cablas harve basen placed inside green, mther Tan bisck ducting. Further detale can be kound using the "Affecisd

Proatoodes paf, which can be downicaded from this wetats, Duct, Trench Chamber Cabinet | l .
Theretors, you mest not rely solely on Shia pian F you e camying oul eny axcevetion of o works in e vicinky of Virgin Media
| spparstiaa. Tha sctusl poation of sy underpround service must bs verfed by dataction who, wnd satnbinbed

on w1t befor sy mechanical plant i used, Accordingly, uniess I is dus ko the regigence of Vingin Madia, ks smaioysss of .
gaeis, Virgn Media wil nol have any labilty for any missions of eccuraces in The plan or for By loss o damage caused of ———— + A mEdIG
9 e of Bndior ey s plan.
Thin pine s Virgl Linviad fro Survey © Crawn Copyright 100010209




El Sub Sta

".lll\

—
T

\ }'. '\.’j"\
\ 4

W

W\

(c) Crown Copyright and datab rights 2012 Ordi

Survey 100018345

Date: 23/10/13

Scale: 1:1083

Map Centre: 543532.3,195822.3 Data updated: 16/08/13

Clean Water Plan A4

Based on the Ordnance Survey Map with the sanction of the Controller of
H.M. Stationary Office License Number:- 100019345.This map is to be
used for the purposes of viewing the location of Thames Water plant only.
Any other uses of the map data orf urther copies are not permitted. The
position of the apparatus shown on this plan is given without obligation
and warranty, and the accuracy cannot be guaranteed. This information is
valid for the date printed. Service pipes are not shown but their presence
should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by
Thames Water for any error or omission. The actual position of mains and
services must be verified on site before any works are undertaken.

Water Main
Private Water
Proposed Water

Abandoned Asset

Meter
Valve
Hydrant

End ltem

oy
el
&
[ ]

I@reenhalgh@pellings.co.uk

L

SN S

Thames

Water
N

~—ll—




= (W Wratge §aauen incy)
1055y pasodioly

APpUnagE)lS eMeseeREERsEsesEe

jou a1e saidod Jayun po ejep dew ayj jo sasn Jayjo Auy “Ajuo Jued Jajep) SeWeY] Jo uoneao|

; (w1 uange weiounp mop)
L] WINPT o o ——— - — 1955y inAuy ‘UBNEUBpUN Ble S}iom AU 810jBq B)IS UO PalUBA 8q ISNLW SBIAIBS PUE SUIBL JO uonisod
h@ﬂﬁg ® matuepy JOu0 LIy BInssalg |enjoe ay | "UOISSIWO JO Jous AUB JOj JBIBAA SAWEY] Aq pajdaooe Si JaAsosieym puly Aue
— jo Aypgey oN “pejedionue aq pinoys eauaseld Jiay) Ing UMOYS Jou aie sadid eainag “pajuud
sau m-_—.—. PRSI PRIy, AT PPN B)ep o) 10} PIjBA I UOjRWIOJUI SIY] “pasjueiend aq jouues Aoeinage ay) pue ‘AueLem
@ O PO 1aMag peuUa]) pue uonediqo noyym uamb si uejd siy) uo umoys smeledde ay) jo uoysod ay] “paniwed

O

k.

BOUUBIY BlENS James aixms
ay) Buimaia jo sesodind ay) Joj pasn eq o} si dew sIYL'SPEELO00L -JaqWNN 85U8917 830
_’ x:.oo.mm:___aa@_._gm_._cmgmm_ sjouu (o4 Jameg [ AeuoneIS "W'H Jo Jajjonuo 8y Jo uonoues ayy yim depy Aeang esuBupIQ aU) Uo paseg

bV ue|d Jojemalsepm £1/80/91 :palepdn Bleq  €'2Z856L'E ZESEYS @IuLD depy £901:L 1008 EL/0L/EZ :@leq GYEB10001 AOAINS BOUBUPIO 7407 SiBY osEqETER pus yBikdon wMag (3)

D
Wm: 9045
L0485
i
s .....-:..mnmm_mm
= |

==
—




‘gL Ve
GoLbs  \

¥ -
. y . | \,r/\» . .




Appendix E

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District
Council by way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential
contamination across all the primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

There is further possible contamination from the existing substation on the site.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites
that move forward to Planning Applications.

Page 382



Appendix F

Cost Build-up

Page 383



Site P2 10, Chequers Road (Site B), Loughton I1G10
Indicative Estimate of Cost
for East Thames HA

28 November 2013

Gross Internal floor area m2 ft2
Affordable Flat Units 0 0
Allowance for communal space @ 20% 0 0
Affordable House Units 154 1,658
TOTAL GIA 154 1,658
Item  Element Qty Unit Rate Total
Elunit £
1.0 Demolition
1.1 Demolition 233 m? 50 11,647
2.2 Site clearance 917 m? 10 9,174
1.2 Allowance for removal of asbestos 28 No 800 22,400
Sub-total say 40,000
2.0 Affordable Flat units (xx nr. units)
2.1 Flats Private areas 0 m? 1,350 0
2.2 Flats communal areas (20% allowed) 0 m? 900 0
Sub-total say 0
3.0 Affordable House units (02 nr. units)
— 3.1 House areas 154 m? 1,250 193,000
Sub-total say 190,000
4.0 Abnormals / E/o and External Works
4.1 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 131 m? 40 5,000
4,2 Communal Gardens 107 m? 30 3,000
4.3 Access road, parking and turning 597 m? 65 39,000
4.4 Pedestrian paving 0 m? 50 Incl.
4.5 Cross over / highways adaptions 2 jtem 2,000 4,000
4.6 Allowance for contaminated ground 0 item Excl.
4.7 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 135 m 160 22,000
4.8 Allowance for achieving CfSh Level 3 2nr 4,500 9,000
Sub-total say 80,000
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 310,000
CONTINGENCY @ 5% 20,000
CONTRACTORS DESIGN FEES @ 8% 26,400
PRELIMS AND OVERHEADS AT 15% 46,500
TOTAL INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 2,616 402,900

—
<larifications and Assumptions

Estimate based on Pellings Feasibility drawings and standard ETG specifications

GIA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on a Q3 2014 start on site

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme’ contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 3

Itis assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber floor structure, sloped tiled
roofs) will be used

Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Hazardous material removal

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by TFL or other statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, S108, $278 Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy chargss

Page 384




Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report
Site: 581-591 Marlescroft Way,Loughton 1G10 3LZ

Rev: A

Ref:  1JC/srs/612.023
Date: September 2014

Page 385



Pellings

Contents

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
Existing Site and Surroundings
Proposals

Planning Issues and Risks
Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
Site Access and Buildability Issues
Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
Proposed Procurement Route

© © N o a0 bk~ wDdRE

Impact on Parking

10.Legals

11.Costs

12.Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices
A: Development Proposals — Drawings 612.023/P2-11B
B: Site Photographs
C: Existing Site Plan 201296914 - AN
D: Statutory Services Information
E: Information on Possible Contamination
F: Cost Build-up

Page 386



1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

3.0

3.1

3.2.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

612023

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District
Council for a six year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having
possible development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP have been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites and
which will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located in a residential estate 500m to the west of Debden station.

The site consists of 11 single garages with some forming part of the lower ground
floor footprint of a four storey block of flats. Immediately in front of the site is a
hardstanding/road which serves the estate and to the west is a footpath and a

grassed area.

The surrounding estate consists of flat roofed concrete panelled two storey
houses and four storey flats.

Proposals
Read in conjunction with drawings 612.023.P2-11B attached at Appendix A.
The proposals are :

Conversion of garages into 2 x 2 bedroom lower ground floor flats and provision of
4 car parking spaces on adjoining grassed area.

Planning Issues and Risks
Relevant Planning Policies/Considerations

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest District Council is the
Combined Local Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area and it is not designated for any
particular purposes in the Epping Forest District Council Combined Local Plan
1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006. The site partly lies in Flood Zone 2 on the
Environment Agency Flood Map.

There are no specific policies which prevent the loss of existing garages although
policy ST4 (Road Safety) states that planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion or harm
to the character or appearance of the area. Parking spaces to meet with the
Council’'s standards are proposed for the new dwellings.

Page 387

581-591 (Garages) Marlescroft Way REV A 1



4.4,

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.3.

5.4.

5.5.

612023

It will be necessary to undertake a Parking Survey and to prepare a Transport
Statement to demonstrate that the loss of the garages and proposed development
would not cause any parking shortfalls or harm to highway conditions or the
amenities of the area.

The site is located in the settlement of Loughton and the proposal would be
consistent with policy CP7 which encourages the efficient use of existing built-up
areas by the ‘recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-used land to
accommodate the development’ and the ‘re-use of urban sites, which are no
longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in the foreseeable future, for
alternative land uses'.

The proposal would comply with policy H4A which states the need for a range of
dwellings, including an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet
identified housing need on a site-by-site basis.

The development of small family homes with parking would be in keeping with the
character and appearance of the area and may comply with Epping Forest's
design policies and guidance.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Southern Gas

Cable and Wireless

Virgin Media

Thames Water

BT

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy
Environment Agency

UK Power Networks

Responses received to date are from the Environment Agency, National Grid, UK
Power Networks, Virgin Media and Thames Water.

The Environment Agency has pointed out that the site partly lies in Flood Zone 2
and that the Sequential Test will have to be passed and a satisfactory Flood Risk
Assessment submitted.

National Grid: No apparatus appears to be located on the site.

UK Power Networks: No apparatus appears to be located on the site.

Virgin Media: There is a cable along the southern part of the site.

Thames Water: There are no drains/sewers on the site. There is a foul water
sewer approximately 3.5m in front of the site.

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Page 388

581-591 (Garages) Marlescroft Way REV A 2



6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

8.0

8.1.

612023

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be
any particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic
associated with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area and, accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and
within normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues
have been highlighted with use of the domestic garages, and also a former
horticultural nursery. Possible contaminants in respect of the former use as a
nursery are summarised and indicated within the note produced by EFDC
Planning and Economic Development Directorate at Appendix E.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may
include asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and
the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal
with any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

Potentially, part of the site may be located within the lower ground floor of the
existing building. The integrity and longevity of the existing building structure will
need to be checked to ensure proposed accommodation is not compromised, and
the impact on thermal and acoustic issues would also need to be considered. In
addition, it should be assumed that domestic services serving the existing building
might need to be altered, and/or enhanced to accommodate increased capacities.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P2-11B, Party Wall matters will be relevant
to development, particularly below ground floor accommodation of the existing
building.

Confirmation of ownership will be required in due course.

Such Party Wall matters may be undertaken ahead of the build contract by direct
appointment by EFDC, or included as a requirement for the contractor to deal with
within the build contract. This later approach, however, would carry increased risk
to programme and cost.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East
Thames Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

Page 389

581-591 (Garages) Marlescroft Way REV A 3



8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

612023

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage D planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be
subsequently confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East
Thames Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement
documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual
contract packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory
services, highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure
size of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East
Thames Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide -
September 2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as
statutory planning guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling
Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest
whole number)

The proposals would quite possibly meet the Council's parking standards for new
development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking
surveys, to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any
planning or highway problems.

Legals
We have been provided with a Summary Report of legal matters from EFDC
Solicitors. The report makes reference to the suggested appropriation of land for

planning purposes which would extinguish any prior rights of way.

The report makes reference to possible rights of light risk. A blanket policy
against such risk might be considered.

Page 390

581-591 (Garages) Marlescroft Way REV A 4



10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

11.0
11.1.

12.0

12.1.

612023

Housing Management Report advises of access to existing unit by way of 2
external staircases. However, these are unaffected by the proposals.

No rights of way or access specifically identified.

It is noted that there appears to be significant surface water flooding risk from
ground water and the site is within Flood Zone 2.

Costs

It is considered that a budget of £318,300.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

Recommendations and Conclusions

It is considered that, whilst there are options to develop this site, there are
difficulties in achieving an economic solution together with issues of the site sitting
in the flood plain, possibly leading to solutions that have been constructed to date.
We would suggest that other sites may be more suitable and would offer more
viable opportunities for new housing.

Pellings LLP

Page 391

581-591 (Garages) Marlescroft Way REV A 5



Appendix A

Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023.P2-11B

Page 392



NOTES

Report all discrepancies, errors and omissions

Do not scale from this drawing

Verify all dimensions on site before commencing any work or
preparing shop drawings

All materials, components and workmanship are to comply with
all the relevant British Standards, Cedes of Practice, and
appropriate manufacturers recommendations that from time to
fime shall apply

For all specialist work, see relevant drawings

This drawing and design are copyright of PELLINGS LLP

, 150 FOUL

PRELIMINARY

TOTALS

Site Area 0.016 Ha
2 x 2 Bed Flats @ 65 sqm
4 Parking Spaces

Rev Date Description Name Pellings LLP Architecture & Planning m Building Surveying = Project Management m
24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY Cost Consultancy m CDM Co-ordination
- 1020 8460 9114 f020 8313 0019 e bromley@pellings.co.uk
www.pellings.co.uk
CLIENT PROJECT I,
n East Thames HA EFDC House Building Programme
TITLE L. DATE SCALE DRAWN CHK
Existing and Proposed Plans NOV 2013 1:500 @A3 NP
—— 612023/P2-11 B
| mll
_ 1



Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 394



Appendix B - Site Photographs

SEpE

Page 395



Page 396



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 397



#g= Epping Forest
%, District Council

Contains Ordnance Survey & Royal Mail Data
© Crown Copyright & Database Right 2011
EFDC License No: 100018534 2011

Directorate of Environment & Street Scene Project nten Date

@ =

Co
ﬁ';: Offices Potential Site for Council House | Site 04/07/12
ph _sueeE i Building Program Marlescroft Way Scale
CM16 4BZ Srawina o Loughton 1:1250 @ A4
Tel 01992 564000 9 . Drawn By
201206014 - AN Robert Irwin

Page 398



Appendix D

Statutory Services Information

Page 399



Plant Protection
' ¢ National Grid
t l rl d Black 1; Floor 1
n a | O n a Brick Kiln Street
Hinckle
LE10 Ol ) )
E-mail: plantprotection@nationalgrid.com
Telephone: +44 (0)800 688588

Adam Greenhalgh

Pellings National Grid Electricity Emergency Number:
24 Widmore Road 0800 40 40 90°

Bromley National Gas Emergency Number:

Kent 0800 111 999°

BR1 1RY * Available 24 hours, 7 days/week.

Calls may be recorded and monitored.

www.nationalgrid.com

Date: 23/10/2013
Our Ref: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_041933
Your Ref: AG/DH/612.023/02

RE: Proposed Works, 1G10 3LZ,site B,marlescroft way,loughton,essex
Thank you for your enquiry which was received on 17/10/2013.
Please note this response and any attached map(s) are valid for 28 days.

An assessment has been carried out with respect to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc's and National
Grid Gas plc's apparatus. Please note it does not cover the items listed in the section "Your Responsibilities
and Obligations", including gas service pipes and related apparatus.

For details of National Grid's network areas please see the National Grid website
(http:/iwww.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/) or the enclosed documentation.

As your works are at a "proposed” stage, any maps and guidance provided are for information
purposes only. This is not approval to commence work. You must submit a "Scheduled Works"
enquiry at the earliest opportunity and failure to do this may lead to disruption to your plans and
works. National Grid will endeavour to provide an initial assessment within 14 days of receipt of a

Scheduled Works enquiry and dependent on the outcome of this, further consultation may be
required.

In any event, for safety and legal reasons, works must not be carried out until a Scheduled
Works enquiry has been completed and final response received.

National Grid is a trading name for: National Grid is a trading name for:
National Grid Electricity Transmission plc National Grid Gas pic
Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N SEH Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N 5EH

Registered in England and Wales, No 2366977 P a g e mﬂered in England and Wales, No 2006000



Your Responsibilities and Obligations

The "Assessment" Section below outlines the detailed requirements that must be followed when planning or
undertaking your scheduled activities at this location.

It is your responsibility to ensure that the information you have submitted is accurate and that all relevant
documents including links are provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you near
National Grid's apparatus, e.g. as contained within the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations.

This assessment solely relates to National Grid Electricity Transmission plc (NGET) and National Grid Gas plc
(NGG) apparatus. This assessment does NOT include:

o National Grid's legal inter est (easements or wayleaves) in the land which restricts activity in proximity
to National Grid's assets in private land. You must obtain details of any such restrictions from the
landowner in the first instance and if in doubt contact National Grid.

e Gas service pipes and related apparatus

Recently installed apparatus

e Apparatus owned by other organisations, e.g. other gas distribution operators, local electricity
companies, other utilities, etc.

It is YOUR responsibility o take into account whether the items listed above may be present and if they could
be affected by your proposed activities. Further "Essential Guidance" in respect of these items can be found
on the National Grid Website (http://www.nationalarid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf).

This communication does not constitute any formal agreement or consent for any proposed development work;
either generally or with regard to National Grid's easements or wayleaves nor any planning or building
regulations applications.

NGG and NGET or their agents, servants or contractors do not accept any liability for any losses arising under
or in connection with this information. This limit on liability applies to all and any claims in contract, tort (including
negligence), misrepresentation (excluding fraudulent misrepresentation), breach of statutory duty or
otherwise. This limit on liability does not exclude or restrict liability where prohibited by the law nor does it
supersede the express terms of any related agreements.

If you require further assistance please contact the National Grid Plant Protection team via e-mail (click here) or
via the contact details at the top of this response.

Yours faithfully

National Grid Plant Protection Team

Page 401 Page 2 of 6



ASSESSMENT

Affected Apparatus
The National Grid apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity of your proposed works is:

e Low or Medium pressure (below 2 bar) gas pipes and associated equipm ent. (As a result it is highly
likely that there are gas services and associated apparatus in the vicinity)

Requirements
BEFORE carrying out any work you must:

o Carefully read these requirements including the attached guidance documents and maps showing the
location of National Grid apparatus.

e Contact the landowner and ensure any proposed works in private land do not infringe National Grid's
legal rights (i.e. easements or wayleaves). If the works are in the road or footpath the relevant local
authority should be contacted.

e Ensure that all persons, including direct labour and contractors, working for you on or near National
Grid's apparatus follow the requirements of the HSE Guidance Notes HSG47 - 'Avoiding Danger from
Underground Services' and GS6 — 'Avoidance of danger from overhead electric power lines’. This
guidance can be downloaded free of charge at hitp://www.hse.gov.uk

e In line with the above guidance, verify and establish the actual position of mains, pipes, cables,
services and other apparatus on site before any activities are undertaken.

Page 402 Page 3 of 6



GUIDANCE

Excavating Safely - Avoiding injury when working near gas pipes:
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/2D2EEA97-B213-459C-9A26-
18361CB6EQBOD/25249/Digsafe leaflet3e2finalamends061207.pdf

Standard Guidance

Essential Guidance document:

http://www.nationalgrid.com/N R/rdonlyres/6D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance. pdf

General Guidance document:

hitp://www.nationalarid.com/NR/rdonlyres/55C13C4D-A1AA-4B1 3-BFDA-
1CF59F88B326/51318/GeneralGuidance. pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of gas pipes guidance (Credit card):

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/A3D37677-6641-476C-9DDA-
E89949052829/44257/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCard.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of electricity cables guidance (Credit card):
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/35DDEC6D-D754-4BA5-AF3C-
D607 D05A25C2/44858/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCardelectricitveables.pdf

Copies of all the Guidance Documents can also be downloaded from the National Grid Website:
http://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/downloads/

Page 403 Page 4 of 6



ENQUIRY SUMMARY

Received Date
17/10/2013

Your Reference
AG/DH/612.023/02

Location

Centre Point: 543664, 185608
X Extent: 41

Y Extent: 24

Postcode: IG10 3LZ

Location Description: 1G10 3LZ,site B,marlescroft way,loughton,essex

Map Options

Paper Size: A4

Orientation: LANDSCAPE

Requested Scale: 500

Actual Scale: 1:1250 (GAS)

Real World Extents: 361m x 196m (GAS)

Recipients
pprsteam@uk.ngrid.com

Enquirer Details
Organisation Name: Pellings

Contact Name: Adam Greenhalgh

Email Address: bromley@pellings.co.uk

Telephone: 0208 460 9114

Address: 24 Widmore Road, Bromley, Kent, BR1 1RY

Description of Works
MAP FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES

Enquiry Type
Proposed Works

Activity Type
General Excavation

Work Types
Work Type: Plans Only

Page 404

Page 6 of 6



E
8
.%
8
:

e 464432 o~ *

g8
3
8
C
2
§ sllovs206l0964011>

1 Woraeonn  Close L ),
2 bYormbeoon &I )
3 Mexnbeor Yowe 7 )
4 _ Cocane. Cooso _ )
3 ) Doy ~ )
b <=v-0n <o Egé; e ey o )
1 ¥3oon Clesa o )
8 e Pooe Ve terno — D
8 T _oiciewx - D
10 Crociwox Cocd Siae R — )
11 Ned\es o coch k/\)c:_:») )
12 o oo o o> Tiae O D,
13 D
14 D
15 )
16 D
17 >
18 >
19 >
20 >
21 >
22 >
73 S
27 S
75 S
26 >
27 S
78 S
79 D
30 RPage 405 D
31 — D




988FZ000 | Joqunu eaued)

Aemng eaueupiQ ‘penesey WbBukdog umoig
‘0o Ateuonms WH Jo 191jouod e jo

uonaLes oy} yum 'ojd seg pug [euoney Aq dew 5O
o) uo paseq Jo woyy peanpoides s) ueid siy |
sBujjjed :Aq pajsenbay

plibjeuoneu

9’/ L uoIsiap 1aA8s 10|d SdVWl

{

ojep oy woy sAep gz Jo poued B puokeq o PoLIs)e oq Jou PiNoys eyd siL Uo PePN|aU} uogeuLoju) oY) “snjesedde

seb seou Jo uo nok Joj Bupjiom (s10}08NU0D 10 INoqe| Joelp Joyye) suosied (e o) pepiacid S| uoneWLIOM SIL JeLy
ainsue o} Ayjgisuodsas 1nok s1 ) pasn i juejd [eoueyseww Aue alojeq ejis uo smesedde Jaujo pue saoies 'sedid

‘onss| Jo

‘sujew jo uopisod [enjoe ey ysijgese pue Auea o) pasn aq isnul '/ p(9)SH UM eoueploade u| ‘saonoerd
BuiBB6ip ejes "uoissiwo Jo Joue Aue Jo) SiojoRNUOI Jo SjueAles 'sjuabe sjey Jo aid seg pug [euonen

Aq pejdenoe s) sonsosieym puny Aue jo Ajqer oy ‘pejediogue aq pinoys asuasasd Jiay) Ing umoys jou ale 9|
‘suofreuuod gnys ‘suoydAs 'soalea 'sedid eaiaieg ‘poajueienB aq Jouued joaisy) AdeIN2oe oy} Aueiiesm Jnoypm uoalB)

5| uejd S|U} UO UMOUYS UONELLLIOJUI BY | ‘SIEUMD JUBAB|S) B} Wolj paulelqo oq pinoys sadid yans o} preBas ypm)
uopeLLou| "eale siy Ul juesald eq Aew 'peumo Ajejeaud esimuayio Jo ‘s 9 Jayo Aq paumo sadid seo
(1) Jepodsues) ses pasuad|] e se oo s)i u) 2id seo) puo |euoneN Aq paumo sadid esol smoys ueid sy

afueyn albueyn
|eualen JPpweq

O Npuo D™

(Sv9) | Jo | dep|

UOIONIISU0D 10} Pasn aq o} jou dejy

0"9";’:‘:":;};’;‘:53,};‘};‘;% 609561 'PO9EYS :IHINID

wee wo G6EYDL :43Y dVIN

= =< e o 20/€20'2L9/HA/DY 434

snivw aH| €102/01/GL -31VA Y1Va

———— SNV ol €L0g/0L/ee -:31va
- SNIVIN dN e

SNIVIN sauol'x'Aos :y3sn

wge | ‘Wige Weme MeIAIEEELY0 MSE 9Z J1 Nl

o
Q
«Q
)
AN
o
o
-/':JM
i H %0 o}

\

Y




creating a better place e\ Environment
WU Agency

Adam Greenhalgh Our ref: NE/2013/119025/01-L01

Pellings LLP Yourref: AG/dh/612.023/05

24 Widmore Road

Bromley Date: 5 November 2013

Kent

BR1 1RY

Dear Adam,
Enquiry for proposed development of 'Site B', Marlescroft Way, Loughton.

Thank you for consulting us with details of the above site. In addition to our
comments that we have already provided to you for the majority of the sites you
consulted us with, this site is also partially in Flood Zone 2 from the nearby River
Roding. This will require Epping Forest District Council to undertake a flood risk
Sequential Test (ST), and a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) to be submitted with
any planning application.

As discussed above, this site is partially in Flood Zone 2, an area of medium
fluvial risk, from the nearby River Roding. Given this, Epping Forest District
Council (EFDC) will need to undertake a ST to determine whether there are other
available sites that are at a lower risk of flooding, where these sites should be
developed before those located in a Flood Zone. Alternatively, you can carry out
a ST yourselves with the agreement of — and to the satisfaction of — the EFDC
planning case officer. Further details about the requirements of the ST can be
found here: http://iwww.environment-
agency.gov.uk/static/documents/Sequential test process 4.pdf.

If the site passes the ST, you should use a sequential approach to site layout to
locate all of the built development in the areas of lowest flood risk within the site
boundary.

Additionally, an FRA would need to be submitted with any application. Further
details about the requirements for an FRA for residential developments in Flood
Zone 2 can be found here:

hitp://www.environment-

agency.gov.uk/static/documents/Utility/MoreVulnerable v3.1.pdf.

As the site is in Flood Zone 2 and less than one hectare, we would pass the
responsibility for assessing flood risk to EFDC in this case, so the FRA will need
to be completed to their satisfaction. -

As we are in an area of serious water stress, we endorse the efficient use of
water resources. Residential developments such as your proposal should take
advantage of water efficient technologies. This is in line with Epping Forest’s local
policy CP5 which states that the efficient use of water is encouraged through
water efficient appliances and rainwater harvesting for example.

Environment Agency
Apollo Court, 2 Bishops Sq Business park, Hatfield, HertzI: A]710 9EX.
Page 40



We suggest you use water efficiency measures and aim to achieve 105
litres/person/day. This is equivalent to level 3/4 for water within the Code for
Sustainable Homes. Achieving this standard within new homes can be
accomplished at very little additional cost, and is significantly cheaper than
retrofitting such measures later.

Every opportunity should be taken to maximise Sustainable Drainage Systems
(SuDS) such as green roofs, ponds, swales and permeable pavements, to
alleviate surface water runoff. | have previously provided a copy of our SuDS
guidance, which contains the SuDS hierarchy, to help you with your designs. The
methods at the top of the hierarchy are preferred because they are beneficial in
terms of sustainability and biodiversity. The hierarchy should be used in
descending order. Tanks should only be used as a last resort. Epping Forest's
local policy U3B on sustainable drainage systems advocates this approach.

Yours sincerely,

Clark Gordon
Sustainable Places Planning Advisor

Direct dial 01707 632308
E-mail SPHatfield@environment-agency.gov.uk

Page 408



(c) Crown Copyright and rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 100019209 Date: 24/10/13  Scale: 1:1083

Map Centre: 543635.9,195621.3 Data updated: 25/08/13 Telecoms Plan A4

Importard Informartion - pleats reed

Tha purposs of e plan i t kenefy Vingin Media spperstus. W have fried 1 maka £ s scoursts s possibis but we cannal
warrand B scouracy. in sddiion, we Caution that within Virgin Media spparstus Tars may ba instances whare masins voltages
[povens calies have boen placed Inaide preen, rrther than black ducting. Furthar details can ba found weing ta "Afisciad
Posicodes (xif, which can be doeniosded fom Fis webete.

Tharafors, you mest ot resy salsly on B pien f you sne CRTying oul BNy SECEVITON of DTe! work in T vicnty of Virgn Meds
appmata. Tha ectusl pottion of &ny Underground servica must be verified by cabis Getection squipment, sto. srd ssisbiahed
on s betors sy pianl s usad. unines i Is due gl of Vingin Madia, ks smpicysss of
ageis, Virgin Media will nol hirve sy Babilty lor sy omissions of Inaccummciss In e plan or kr sy loss or damsgs caused of
mrising from the use of mndior sy relence on this plan

from O Survey © Crown Copyright 100010208

This pien I produced by

Duct, Trench

Chamber

+

Cabinet

A

|a7c_;raanhalgh@pellings‘co.uk |

l |

media




\

\ \
\ \

\\

A\
\\

() Crown Copyright and databasa rights 2012 Ord

Survey 100018345

Date: 23/10/13

Scale: 1:1083

Map Centre: 543635.9,195621.3 Data updated: 16/08/13

Clean Water Plan A4

Based on the Ordnance Survey Map with the sanction of the Controller of
H.M. Stationary Office License Number:- 100019345.This map is to be
used for the purposes of viewing the location of Thames Water plant only.
Any other uses of the map data orf urther copies are not permitted. The
position of the apparatus shown on this plan is given without obligation
and warranty, and the accuracy cannot be guaranteed. This information is
valid for the date printed. Service pipes are not shown but their presence
should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by
Thames Water for any error or omission. The actual position of mains and
saervices muslt be verified on site before any works are undertaken.

Water Main
Private Water
Proposed Water

Abandoned Assel

Meter
Valve
Hydrant

End item

|agreenhalgh@pellings.co.uk

|
|

Thames

Water
N

~ll—




- [BAY Jbrgd SHI0URD inOR
AUpUNC pOls eeENEEEESSEeRsSsEES rlr,s\.rp.wuud
[y wonnge sejouen mop )
S e\ ° W] o — - —— 1SSy BEAlg ‘UBYEHBPUN BIE Sy1om AUE DI0Jaq 8)IS LD PalLIaA aq 1SN SB2IAIBS PUB sUlew Jo uonisod
,la],EM ® ) Ly BInssalg |ENI2E 8] "UOISSIWO 10 Joua AU 1o} 191ep Salwey ] Aq pajdadoe Si 1aABosIeYM puny Aue
K Jo Annigen o ‘paiedionue aq pinoys aauasasd 118y Ing umoys jou ale sadid eaeg "pajund
Soll El.ll i i S PR Y BJEP AU} 10) PIEA S UOHEWIOJ SIL| ‘pasjueiend aq jouues AJBINJJE By pue 'SJ‘IUELIEM
—l ® PIOLURIY PAWIT IBWEG PIUIGWOD pue uonebiqo Jnoyim uaalb s| ueld siyy uo umoys smededde ay) Jo uonisod 8y “peyuied
0 ST 300G T e 10U ase sa|do2 Jaypn po ejep dew ay) jo sasn Jayjo Auy “Ajuo jued Jalep) Seley] jo uoleso)
h ayy Bumala jo sasodind By) o) pasn aq o} st dew SIYLGHEELO00) - Jaqunp asus ao0
[ xn'o::'sﬁumad@uﬁmquaa.lﬁe| [} epoyuBIy 104 1amBg n04 AeuonEIS ‘W'H JO J8|j05u0 BY) Jo uolouES BU) yim dep AeAing 8ouBUpIQ Y} uo paseg
PV ue|d J9|EMa)SEAN £1/80/9} :pojepdn ejed  €£°129561'6'SEQEPS anua] dep £801:1 :9|E2S E€LI0L/EZ ®leq SFEBL0001 APAING SuURUPIO Z)0Z SBy aseqmep pue buidog umoid (9)

TT¥ abed




e
-

FRRRI

Page 412



Appendix E

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District
Council by way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential
contamination across all the primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites
that move forward to Planning Applications.

Page 413



Appendix F

Cost Build-up

Page 414



Site P2 11, 67 - 69 & 80 - 85 Marlescroft Way, Loughton 1G10 3NA
Indicative Estimate of Cost
for East Thames HA

28 November 2013
Gross Internal floor area m2 ft2
Affordable Flat Units 130 1,399
Allowance for communal space @ 20% 26 280
Affordable House Units 0 0
TOTAL GIA 156 1,679
Item Element Qty Unit Rate Total
Elunit £
1.0 Demolition
1.1 Demolition 163 m? 50 8,139
2.2 Site clearance 53 m? 10 532
1.2 Allowance for removal of asbestos 8 No 800 6,400
Sub-total say 20,000
2.0 Affordable Flat units (02 nr. units)
2.1 Flats Private areas 130 m? 1,350 176,000
2.2 Flats communal areas (20% allowed) 26 m? 900 23,000
Sub-total say 200,000
3.0 Affordable House units (xx nr. units)
. 3.1 House areas 0 m? 1,250 0
Sub-total say 0
4.0 Abnormals / E/o and External Works
4.1 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 0 m? 40 0
4.2 Communal Gardens 49 m? 30 1,000
4.3 Access road, parking and turning 53 m? 65 3,000
4.4 Pedestrian paving 0 m? 50 Incl.
4.5 Cross over / highways adaptions 2 item 2,000 4,000
4.6 Allowance for contaminated ground 0 item Excl.
4.7 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 73 m 160 12,000
4.8 Allowance for achieving CfSh Level 3 2nr 4,500 9,000
Sub-total say 30,000
£/m2 £/it2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 250,000
CONTINGENCY @ 5% 10,000
CONTRACTORS DESIGN FEES @ 8% 20,800
PRELIMS AND OVERHEADS AT 15% 37,500
TOTAL INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 2,040 318,300

J—

slarifications and Assumptions

Estimate based on Pellings Feasibility drawings and standard ETG specifications

GIA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on a Q32014 start on site

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 3

It is assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber floor structure, sloped tiled
roofs) will be used

Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Hazardous material removal

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by TFL or other statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, S108, 5278 Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Page 415



This page is intentionally left blank



Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report
Site: 332-353 (Garages) Ladyfields, Loughton 1G10 3RP

Rev: A

Ref:  1JC/srs/612.023
Date: September 2014

Page 417



Pellings

Contents

1. Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
2. Existing Site and Surroundings

3. Proposals

4. Planning Issues and Risks

5.
6
7
8
9

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

. Site Access and Buildability Issues

. Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
. Proposed Procurement Route

. Impact on Parking

10.Legals
11.Costs
12.Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices

A: Development Proposals — Drawings 612.023/P2-14A
Site Photographs

Existing Site Plan : 201206014 - AK

Statutory Services Information

Information on Possible Contamination

Cost Build-up

nmoow

Page 418



1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

3.0

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

612023

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District
Council for a six year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having
possible development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP have been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites and
which will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located in a residential part of Loughton 150m to the west of Debden
station. It adjoins the embankment of the Central Line.

The site consists of 22 garages and hardstanding and it is accessed by way of
two crossovers (one at each end) on to Ladyfields. The rear boundary adjoins the
railway embankment of the Central Line (the line being above the level of the
site), the eastern side adjoins a grassed area and the western side adjoins a sub-
station. The area in general consists of two storey family houses (terraced and
semi-detached) with front and rear gardens. There are mature trees on the site
and also overhanging the site on the adjoining railway land, and which will need to
be recognised in final design.

‘Ladyfield’ the road fronting the site was heavily parked at time of our survey.
Proposals

Read in conjunction with drawings 612.023/P2-14A attached at Appendix A.
The proposals are :

Erection of a 7 x two storey 2 bedroom houses (6 semi-detached and 1 detached)
each with gardens. Provision of 14 parking spaces and access/landscaping

Please note that the positions of trees are approximated pending detailed survey
information.

Planning Issues and Risks
Relevant Planning Policies/Considerations

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest District Council is the
Combined Local Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area and it is not designated for any
particular purposes in the Epping Forest District Council Combined Local Plan
1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006. The site does not lie in a Flood Zone on
the Environment Agency Flood Map.

Page 419

332-353 (Garages) Ladyfields REV A 1



4.3.

4.4.

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.3.

5.4.

612023

There are no specific policies which prevent the loss of existing garages although
policy ST4 (Road Safety) states that planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion or harm
to the character or appearance of the area. Parking spaces to meet with the
Council’'s standards are proposed for the new dwellings.

It will be necessary to undertake a Parking Survey and to prepare a Transport
Statement to demonstrate that the loss of the garages and proposed development
would not cause any parking shortfalls or harm to highway conditions or the
amenities of the area.

The site is located in the settlement of Loughton and the proposal would be
consistent with policy CP7 which encourages the efficient use of existing built-up
areas by the ‘recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-used land to
accommodate the development’ and the ‘re-use of urban sites, which are no
longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in the foreseeable future, for
alternative land uses'.

The proposal would comply with policy H4A which states the need for a range of
dwellings, including an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet
identified housing need on a site-by-site basis.

The development of small family homes with rear gardens and private and
communal parking would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the
area and may comply with Epping Forest's design policies and guidance.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Southern Gas

Cable and Wireless

Virgin Media

Thames Water

BT

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy
Environment Agency

UK Power Networks

Responses received to date are from the Environment Agency, National Grid, UK
Power Networks, Virgin Media and Thames Water.

The Environment Agency has not pointed out any watercourses which cross the
site.

National Grid: No apparatus appears to be located on the site.

UK Power Networks: There do not appear to be any installations on the site.
There are cables under the highway in front of the site, and there is a substation
to the Western end but outside of the site boundary.

Virgin Media: No apparatus appears to be located on the site.

Thames Water: No drains or sewers are located on any part of the site.

Page 420

332-353 (Garages) Ladyfields REV A 2



5.5.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

8.0

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

612023

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be
any particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic
associated with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area and, accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and
within normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues
have been highlighted with use of the domestic garages.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may
include asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and
the like, please see Appendix E.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal
with any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P2-14A, Party Wall matters may be relevant
to the existing substation position.

Such Party Wall matters may be undertaken ahead of the build contract by direct
appointment by EFDC, or included as a requirement for the contractor to deal with
within the build contract. This later approach, however, would carry increased risk
to programme and cost.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East
Thames Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage D planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be
subsequently confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East
Thames Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement
documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual
contract packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory
services, highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

Page 421

332-353 (Garages) Ladyfields REV A 3



8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

11.0

11.1.

612023

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure
size of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East
Thames Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’'s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide -
September 2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as
statutory planning guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

¢ 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest
whole number)

The proposals may be considered to meet the Council's parking standards for
new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking
surveys, to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any
planning or highway problems.

Legals

We have been provided with a Summary Report of legal matters from EFDC
Solicitors. The report makes reference to the suggested appropriation of land for
planning purposes which would extinguish any prior rights of way.

The report makes reference to possible rights of light risk. A blanket policy
against such risk might be considered.

It is stated that the site is subject to a Wayleave Agreement between EFDC and
NTL for access for maintenance of telecommunications equipment. The impact of
this needs to be clarified.

The existing garages form a retaining wall to a bank in front of the railway line.
Any works in this area will need to be cleared with the railway owners.

Costs

It is considered that a budget of £1,076.400 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

Page 422

332-353 (Garages) Ladyfields REV A 4



12.0

12.1.

612023

Recommendations and Conclusions

Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for
taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Date: ($+' ................................ 20 e

Pellings LLP

Page 423

332-353 (Garages) Ladyfields REV A 5



Appendix A

Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023/P2-14A

Page 424



~z

TOTALS

NOTES

Rev Date  Description Name Pellings LLP Architecture & Planning m Building Surveying m Project Management m
Report all discrepancies, errors and omissions PRELI M I NARY 24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY Cost Consultancy m CDM Co-ordination

Do not scale from this drawing - o= 020 8460 9114 0208313 0019 e bromley@pellings.co.uk

Verify all dimensions on site before commencing any work or R e

preparing shop drawings CLIENT PROJECT .

All materials, components and workmanship are to comply with - East Thames HA EFDC House Building Programme

all the relevant British Standards, Codes of Practice, and e In TITE . DATE SCALE DRAWN CHK
appropriate manufacturers recommendations that from time to Existing and Proposed Plans NOV 2013 1:500 @A3 NP

Ladyfields DRAWING No

S Page 425
i e, g | 612023 P2-14 |A

This drawing and design are copyright of PELLINGS LLP
9 g pyrig




Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 426



Appendix B - Site Photographs







Page 429



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 430



#7= Epping Forest
"‘“" District Council

Directorate of Environment & Street Scene Project Content Date

Civic Otfices Polential Site for Council House | Ladyfields 04/07/12

High S"Ees‘se& Building Program Loughton Scale

Coping. B Drawing Mo 1:1250 @ A4

Tel. 01992 564000 ) Orawn By
201206014 - AK Robert Irwin

Page 431



Appendix D

Statutory Services Information

Page 432



Plant Protection
. ¢ National Grid
nationalgrid oo
Brick Kiln Street
Hinckle
LE10 ONA .
E-mail: plantprotection@nationagrid.com
Telephone: +44 (0)800 688588

Adam Greenhalgh

Pellings National Grid Electricity Emergency Number:
24 Widmore Road 0800 40 40 80*

Bromley National Gas Emergency Number:

Kent 0800 111 999°

BR1 1RY * Available 24 hours, 7 daysiweek.

Calls may be recorded and monitored.

www.nationalgrid.com

Date: 24/10/2013
Our Ref: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_042150
Your Ref: LADYFIELDS

RE: Proposed Works, 1G10 3RT,ladyfields.loughton,essex
Thank you for your enquiry which was received on 17/10/2013.
Please note this response and any attached map(s) are valid for 28 days.

An assessment has been carried out with respect to National Grid Electricity Transmission pic's and National
Grid Gas pic's apparatus. Please note it does not cover the items listed in the section "Your Responsibilities
and Obligations", including gas service pipes and related apparatus.

For details of National Grid's network areas please see the National Grid website
(http://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safetv/iwork/) or the enclosed documentation.

As your works are at a "proposed" stage, any maps and guidance provided are for information
purposes only. This is not approval to commence work. You must submit a "Scheduled Works"”
enquiry at the earliest opportunity and failure to do this may lead to disruption to your plans and
works. National Grid will endeavour to provide an initial assessment within 14 days of receipt of a
Scheduled Works enquiry and dependent on the outcome of this, further consultation may be
required.

In any event, for safety and legal reasons, works must not be carried out until a Scheduled
Works enquiry has been completed and final response received.

Naticnal Grid is a trading name for: National Grid is a trading name for:
National Grid Electricity Transmission pic National Grid Gas pic
Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, Londen WC2N SEH Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, Londen WC2N SEH

Registered in England and Wales, No 2366977 P ag@iﬂg SEngland and Wales, No 2006000



Your Responsibilities and Obligations

The "Assessment" Section below outlines the detailed requirements that must be followed when planning or
undertaking your scheduled activities at this location.

It is your responsibility to ensure that the information you have submitted is accurate and that all relevant
documents including links are provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you near
National Grid's apparatus, e.g. as contained within the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations.

This assessment solely relates to National Grid Electricity Transmission pic (NGET) and National Grid Gas plc
(NGG) apparatus. This assessment does NOT include:

e National Grid's legal inter est (easements or wayleaves) in the land which restricts activity in proximity
to National Grid's assets in private land. You must obtain details of any such restrictions from the
landowner in the first instance and if in doubt contact National Grid.

e Gas service pipes and related apparatus

Recently installed apparatus

e Apparatus owned by other organisations, e.g. other gas distri bution operators, local electricity
companies, other utilities, etc.

It is YOUR responsibility to take into account whether the items listed above may be present and if they could
be affected by your proposed activities. Further "Essential Guidance" in respect of these items can be found
on the National Grid Website (hitp://www.nationalarid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance.pdf).

This communication does not constitute any formal agreement or consent for any proposed development work;
either generally or with regard to National Grid's easements or wayleaves nor any planning or building
regulations applications.

NGG and NGET or their agents, servants or contractors do not accept any liability for any losses arising under
or in connection with this information. This limit on liability applies to all and any claims in contract, tort (including
negligence), misrepresentation {excluding fraudulent misrepresentation), breach of statutory duty or
otherwise. This limit on liability does not exclude or restrict liability where prohibited by the law nor does it
supersede the expres s terms of any related agreements.

If you require further assistance please contact the National Grid Plant Protection team via e-mail (click here) or
via the contact details at the top of this response.

Yours faithfully

National Grid Plant Protection Team

Page 434 Page 2 of 6



ASSESSMENT

Affected Apparatus
The National Grid apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity of your proposed works is:

e Low or Medium pressure (below 2 bar) gas pipes and associated equipment. (As a result itis highly
likely that there are gas services and associated apparatus in the vicinity)

Requirements
BEFORE carrying out any work you must:

o Carefully read these requirements including the attached guidance documents and maps showing the
location of National Grid apparatus.

e Contact the landowner and ensure any proposed works in private land do not infringe National Grid's
legal rights (i.e. easements or wayleaves). If the works are in the road or footpath the relevant local
authority should be contacted.

e Ensure that all persons, including direct labour and contractors, working for you on or near National
Grid's apparatus follow the requirements of the HSE Guidance Notes HSG47 - 'Avoiding Danger from
Underground Services’ and GS6 - 'Avoidance of danger from overhead electric power lines'. This
guidance can be downloaded free of charge at http.//www.hse.gov.uk

¢ In line with the above guidance, verify and establish the actual position of mains, pipes, cables,
services and other apparatus on site before any activities are undertaken.

Page 435 Page 3 of 6



GUIDANCE

Excavating Safely - Avoiding injury when working near gas pipes:
htlg:llwww.nationalgrid.comlNRIrdonlyres/ZD2EEA97-BZ13-459C-9A26-
18361CH6E0BOD/25249/Digsafe leaflet3e2finalamends061207.pdf

Standard Guidance

Essential Guidance document:

http://www nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/6D6525F9-59EB-4825-BA89-
DBD7E68882C7/51319/EssentialGuidance. pdf

General Guidance document:

http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/55C13C4D-A1AA-4813-BF DA-
1CF59F88B326/51318/GeneralGuidance.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of gas pipes guidance (Credit card):
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/A3D37677-6641-476C-9DDA-
E89949052829/44257/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCard.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of electricity cables guidance (Credit card):
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdoniyres/35DDEC6D-D754-4BAS-AF3C-
D607D05A25C2/44858/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCardelectricitycables.pdf

Copies of all the Guidance Documents can aiso be downloaded from the National Grid Website:
http://www.nationalgrid.com/uk/Gas/Safety/work/downloads/

Page 436 Page 4 of 6



ENQUIRY SUMMARY

Received Date
17/10/2013

Your Reference
LADYFIELDS

Location

Centre Point; 544125, 196047

X Extent: 73

Y Extent: 59

Postcode: 1G10 3RT

Location Description: 1G10 3RT ladyfields.loughton,essex

Map Options
Paper Size: A4

Orientation: LANDSCAPE

Requested Scale: 500

Actual Scale: 1:1250 (GAS)

Real World Extents: 361m x 196m (GAS)

Recipients
pprsteam@uk.ngrid.com

Engquirer Details
Organisation Name: Pellings

Contact Name: Adam Greenhalgh

Email Address: bromley@pellings.co.uk

Telephone: 0208 460 9114

Address: 24 Widmore Road, Bromley, Kent, BR1 1RY

Description of Works
MAP FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES

Enquiry Type
Proposed Works

Activity Type
General Excavation

Work Types
Work Type: Plans Only

Page 437

Page 6of 6



8¢t abed

A

[ P // - B
| V \.\-. | . !

ID: NL_TE_Z6_3SW_042150

View extent: 361m, 196m

Map not to be used for construction

[Map 1 of 1 (GAS)

USER: roy.x.jones

LP MAINS

DATE: 24/10/2013

MP MAINS -

IP MAINS —

DATA DATE: 15/10/2013

LHP MAINS

REF: LADYFIELDS

MAP REF: TQ4496
CENTRE: 544125, 196047

Om 25m

Approximate scale 1:1250
on A4 Colour Landscape

NEP MAING —  e— ;- -

—_— [><] Deptf: of \/ Betdun O Diameier$ g:;i;il

Change

of issue,

This plan shows those pipes owned by National Grid Gas plc in its role as a Licensed Gas Transporter (GT).

Gas pipes owned by other GTs, or otherwise privately owned, may be present in this area. Information

with regard to such pipes should be obtained from the relevant owners. The information shown on this plan is

igiven without warranty, the accuracy thereof cannot be guaranteed. Service pipes, valves, syphons, stub connections,
letc., are not shown but their presence should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by
National Grid Gas plc or their agents, servants or contractors for any error or omission. Safe digging

practices, in accordance with HS(G)47, must be used to verify and establish the actual position of mains,

pipes, services and other apparatus on site before any mechanical plant is used. It is your responsibility to ensure
|that this information is provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you on or near gas
apparatus. The information included on this plan should not be referred to beyond a period of 28 days from the date

)

IMAPS Plot Server Version 1.7.6

nationalgrid

Requested by: Pellings

This plan is reproduced from or based on the

OS map by National Grid Gas plc, with the sanction
of the controller of HM Stationery Office.

Crown Copyright Reserved. Ordnance Survey
Licence number 100024886




BOTHI 0001 WOUAIOD UniD) @ ASAng eouwpr) ey pewar] wpepy UELRA A peonpasd w ey o)

‘L g L0 EOUmYR A yTUE 0 S e woy Busue

e 10 P ey 10 wE0) At ) 20 L W L BTN S0 T Aus 0y ey Auw aamy o e mpeY Wilas 'Ruste
] w3 ‘mpeyy s o ! o 8np ) ) Fveun “ABupscooy peen B jued ISR AT RCieg B o

PRmGETe pUn T8 usadinbe LR B AQ Pl Ao sonywed -ﬁnte-lkl

DIpaW

ey LA, 0 Apurns s U TR S0 10 uopeAEe Aue 100 Bulue s nod g s wia v Ampon LR TY

— _ suiged Jequieud yauesl 123ng e L |

PRy, 1) Buren PNy B9 LI BeD 18y BUEIng KoM LE s Ledul] Bprig PIOSK LeSq Bam BGED Jeod

oA BUERL B U RS 8] Gl ey snanide mpoyy A LI 15 LD S LORETE U AEImos By s

SOUNED G 11 GIETIO] Y GUROON W § G CF PIRLG BARY B4 Wnsmdd mpayy ULA A L w Lsk W o eeodind By)

" _ x_._.ou.mmch__wn@;m_m;_._mm_mm_ s o R WA

$V ue|d SwWoaala] €£1/80/5Z :pajepdn ejleq 820961 'v'ZZLYHS :enuag dey €801 ‘a|B2g EHOLPE [@eq 60261000} A9ang souRUPID 1102 S4By sseqmep pue yBuidod umai) (9)




{c) Crown Copyright and databasa rights 2012 Ordnanca Survey 100018345 Date: 23/10/13 Scale: 1:1083 Map Centre: 544122.4,196078 Data updated: 16/08/13 Clean Water Plan A4

Based on the Ordnance Survey Map with the sanction of the Controller of |agreenhalgh@pallings,co.uk |

H.M. Stationary Office License Number:- 100019345.This map is to be Water Main — N2LET o

used for the purposes of viewing the location of Thames Water plant only.

Any other uses of the map data orf urther copies are not permitted. The ——————— i g I

position of the apparatus shown on this plan is given without obligation Private Water Vaive — Th ames
and warranty, and the accuracy cannot be guaranteed. This information is P d Wat R Hvdrant

valid for the date printed. Service pipes are not shown but their presence ropose ater e e oy ydran . water
should be anlicipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by )

Thames Water for any error or omission, The actual position of mains and Abandoned Asset Lnd ltem °

services must be verified on sile before any works are underiaken, ili—




—————

A}
191eM
sawey]

L JoN RN B

Appunag) FoLS
) palg

LU S0
U PAUOPURLNY

BOUUIRIY PEOUKRPLOT

(AL B BRNaD inejon)

SEEssEEEEEESEEEEE sy pasoikilg
[y poargs sunmp mop)

- - 1S5y MeALS
LBy BINSSaLY

FANDGS PAUTPUTTY

IBAMAS PAUIICT

‘UDYEHAPUN BIE SHyIoM AUB BIDJOY B)IS LO PaljusA ag JSNU SBdIAIAS PUB SulewW jo uolysod
[EMOE 8] "UOISSIWO JO Joua AUE 10} JaJEpA Selwey ) £q peidadoe s1 tansosieym puny Aue

jo Aungen oy "paledionue aq pinoys asuasald J1ay) Ing umoys jou ase sadid aoineg pajuud
ajep 8y} 10} pijEA S1 UCHEWIOMU SIY | ‘pasjueient aq jouued Aoeinooe ay) pue ‘Ajuelem

pue vonebigo noypm uaalb si ueid si uo umoys smesedde ay) jo vopsed sy payued
jou ase se1dod saypn po ejep dew sy} Jo sasn Jayio Auyy “Ajuo Jueid Jajep SOLEY] JO UOKEDO)

o i bl st B ay) Buimala Jo sasodind ey 10j pasn aq o} s| dew SIYLGPELO00 ~1BqUWINN 5UB0IT 8310
v_:.oo.mm:___mn@cm_m_.__._mﬁmm_ ooyUB P04 1ameg Ino4 AIBUOIEIS “W'H JO 18]|01U0D) BY) JO UoHaUES By yim depy Asang asueupiQ ay) uo paseg
PV ue|d JejeMBSEAN £1/80/91 :paiepdn ejeqQ 8.0961'¥'ZZL¥¥S -enua) dey €80L:| 9|e2S E€L/0L/EZ 9eq GFEBL000) ABAING B2URUPIQ Z10Z S1yBy sseqmep pur WyBuAdog umoi (9)

\&

1000,

\
ol % XD

i3

g, 2000

Fage44L




Isub Sie
105 Ny

LADYR

5

{5005

nrovided to ve

UK Power Networks does not warraat that the informn*

o

PRIMARY CABLES

I

0
e

$0imn

30m



Appendix E

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District
Council by way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential
contamination across all the primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites
that move forward to Planning Applications.

Page 443



Appendix F

Cost Build-up

Page 444



Ladyfields, Epping Forest
Indicative Estimate of Cost
for East Thames HA

Friday, 6 December 13

Gross Internal floor area m2 ft2
Affordable Flat Units 0 0
Allowance for communal space @ 20% 0 0
Affordable House Units 539 5,802
TOTAL GIA 539 5,802
Item Element Qty Unit Rate Total
£lunit £
1.0 Demolition
1.1 Demolition 260 m? 50 13,022
2.2 Site clearance 1,276 m? 10 12,756
1.2 Allowance for removal of asbestos 22 Per roof 1,000 22,000
Sub-total say 50,000
2.0 Affordable Flat units (xx nr. units)
2.1 Flats Private areas 0m? 1,350 0
2.2 Flats communal areas (20% allowed) 0 m? 900 0
Sub-total say 0
3.0 Affordable House units (07 nr. units)
3.1 House areas 539 m? 1,250 674,000
Sub-total say 670,000
4.0 Abnormals / E/o and External Works
4.1 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 727 m? 40 29,000
4.2 Communal Gardens 251 m? 30 8,000
4.3 Access road, parking and turning 151 m? 65 10,000
4.4 Pedestrian paving 0 m? 50 Incl.
4.5 Cross over / highways adaptions 7 item 2,000 14,000
4.6 Allowance for contaminated ground 0 item Excl.
4.7 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 193 m 160 31,000
4.8 Allowance for achieving CfSh Level 3 7 nr 4,500 32,000
Sub-total say 120,000
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 840,000
CONTINGENCY @ 5% 40,000
CONTRACTORS DESIGN FEES @ 8% 70,400
PRELIMS AND OVERHEADS AT 15% 126,000
TOTAL INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 1,997 1,076,400

Clarifications and Assumptions

Estimate based on Pellings Feasibility drawings and standard ETG specifications

GlA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on a Q3 2014 start on site

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 3

It is assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber floor structure, sloped tiled roofs) will be
used

Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Asbestos (except removal of low risk asbestos roofs priced above) and hazardous material removal
Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by TFL or other statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, S108, S278 Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Page 445



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Terms of Reference
	5 Feasibility Reports
	1 - Kirby Close Loughton - Garages 1-4
	2 - Whitehills Road, Loughton - Garages 354-380
	3 - Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill (Site A) - Garages 1-24
	4 - Hornbeam Close, Buckhurst Hill (Site B) - Garages 25-38
	5 - Hornbeam House Buckhurst Hill - Garages 1-22
	6 - Bourne House, Buckhurst Hill - Garages 12-36
	7 - Pentlow Way Buckhurst Hill - Garages 1-19
	8 - Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill - Garages 1-24
	9 - Lower Alderton Hall, Loughton - Garages 440-445
	10 - Bushfields, Loughton - Garages 51-70
	11 - Chequers Road, Loughton (Site A) - Garages 146 - 171
	12 - Chequers Road Loughton  (Site B) - Garages 231-258
	13 - Marlescroft Way, Loughton - Garages 581-59
	14 - Ladyfields, Loughton - Garages 332-353


